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TO THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE CENTRAL 

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA AND TO PLAINTIFF JUAN M. GUZMAN-LOPEZ 

AND HIS COUNSEL OF RECORD: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendants THE AMERICAN BOTTLING 

COMPANY (“ABC”) and KEURIG DR PEPPER INC. (“KDP”) (collectively, 

“Defendants”) file this Notice of Removal, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332, 1441, 1446, 

and 1453, to effectuate the removal of the above-captioned action, which was originally 

commenced in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los 

Angeles, to the United States District Court for the Central District of California.  This 

Court has original jurisdiction over the action pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act 

of 2005 (“CAFA”) for the following reasons: 

I. BACKGROUND 

1. On April 16, 2019, Plaintiff Juan M. Guzman-Lopez (“Plaintiff”) filed a 

class action complaint in the Superior Court of California for the County of Los Angeles, 

titled “JUAN M. GUZMAN-LOPEZ, individually and on behalf of all others similarly 

situation, Plaintiff, v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY, a corporation; KEURIG 

DR. PEPPER, INC., a corporation; and DOES 1-20,, inclusive, Defendants,” 

Case No. 19STCV13050 (“Complaint”).  The Complaint asserts nine causes of action for: 

(1) Failure to Pay Minimum Wage; (2) Failure to Pay Overtime Wages; (3) Failure to 

Provide Meal Periods; (4) Failure to Provide Rest Periods; (5) Failure to Furnish 

Accurate Wage Statements; (6) Failure to Maintain Required Records; (7) Failure to Pay 

All Wages Due to Discharged and Quitting Employees; (8) Unfair Business Practices; 

and (9) Failure to Indemnify Employees for Business Expenditures and Losses.  

2. On April 18, 2019, ABC’s registered agent for service of process in 

California received, via process server, a copy of the Civil Case Cover Sheet, Summons, 

Complaint, Notice of Case Assignment, Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations, 

Stipulation—Early Organizational Meeting, Stipulation—Discovery Resolution, Informal 

Discovery Conference, Stipulation and Order—Motions in Limine, and Alternative 
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Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Packet.  A true and correct copy of the service 

packet received by ABC is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

3. On April 18, 2019, KDP’s registered agent for service of process in 

California received, via process server, a copy of the Civil Case Cover Sheet, Summons, 

Complaint, Notice of Case Assignment, Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations, 

Stipulation—Early Organizational Meeting, Stipulation—Discovery Resolution, Informal 

Discovery Conference, Stipulation and Order—Motions in Limine, and Alternative 

Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Packet.  A true and correct copy of the service 

packet received by KDP is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

4. On May 15, 2019, Defendants jointly filed the Answer to Plaintiff’s 

Complaint in Los Angeles Superior Court.  A true and correct copy of Defendants’ 

Answer to Plaintiff’s Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit C.  

5. Defendants have not filed or received any other pleadings or papers, other 

than the pleadings described as Exhibits A through C in this action prior to the Notice of 

Removal.  

II. TIMELINESS OF REMOVAL 

6. Notice of removal is timely if it is filed within 30 days after the service of 

the complaint or summons—“The notice of removal … shall be filed within 30 days after 

the receipt by the defendant, through service or otherwise, of a copy of the initial 

pleading setting forth the claim for relief upon which such action or proceeding is based, 

or within 30 days after the service of summons upon the defendant….”  28 U.S.C. 

§1446(b)(1). 

7. Defendants’ Notice of Removal is timely because it is filed on May 20, 

2019, which is within 30 days of service of the Summons and Complaint.  See Murphy 

Bros., Inc. v. Michetti Pipe Stringing, Inc., 526 U.S. 344, 347-48 (1999) (“we hold that a 

named defendant’s time to remove is triggered by simultaneous service of the summons 

and complaint….”).  
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III. REMOVAL UNDER THE CLASS ACTION FAIRNESS ACT  

8. Under the CAFA, district courts have original jurisdiction for class actions 

“if [1] the class has more than 100 members, [2] the parties are minimally diverse, and 

[3] the amount in controversy exceeds $5 million.”  Dart Cherokee Basin Operating Co., 

LLC v. Owens, 135 S. Ct. 547, 552 (2014) (citing 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2), (5)(B)).  

A. The Class Action Includes At Least 4,783 Putative Class Members 

9. A removal under CAFA requires at least 100 members in a proposed class.  

See 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(5)(B) (providing that CAFA jurisdiction does not apply to any 

class action in which “the number of members of all proposed plaintiff classes in the 

aggregate is less than 100”).   

10. Here, Plaintiff defines the “proposed class” to include “[a]ll persons who 

have been employed by [Defendants] in California as a non-exempt employee at any time 

during the period beginning four years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on 

the date as determined by the Court.”  (Complaint, ¶23.)  Based on the filing date of the 

Complaint on April 16, 2019, the proposed class period covers the time period of April 

16, 2015, to the present.   

11. Based on the proposed class definition, there are at least 4,783 current 

and former non-exempt employees in the proposed class as of May 10, 2019.  

(Declaration of Brenda Lasater (“Lasater Decl.”), ¶5.)  Thus, there is no question that the 

size of the proposed class far exceeds the minimum threshold of 100 members under 

CAFA.   

B. Plaintiff And Defendants Are Minimally Diverse  

12. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A), CAFA requires only minimal diversity for 

the purpose of establishing federal jurisdiction—that is, at least one purported class 

member must be a citizen of a state different than any named defendant.  28 U.S.C. 

§ 1332(d)(2)(A) (“any member of a class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a State different from 

any defendant”).  
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13. A party’s citizenship is determined at the time the lawsuit was filed.  In re 

Digimarc Corp. Derivative Litig., 549 F.3d 1223, 1236 (9th Cir. 2008) (“[T]he 

jurisdiction of the court depends upon the state of things at the time of the action [was] 

brought.”).   

14. In this case, currently and at the time the lawsuit was filed, Plaintiff has been 

a citizen of the State of California, and both Defendants are citizens of a state other than 

California—ABC is a citizen of Delaware and Texas and KDP is a citizen of Delaware, 

Massachusetts, and Texas.  

1. Plaintiff Is A Citizen of California 

15. For diversity purposes, a natural person’s state citizenship is determined by 

that person’s domicile—i.e., “[one’s] permanent home, where [that person] resides with 

the intention to remain or to which [that person] intends to return.”  Kanter v. Warner-

Lambert Co., 265 F.3d 853, 857 (9th Cir. 2001); Armstrong v. Church of Scientology 

Int’l, 243 F.3d 546, 546 (9th Cir. 2000) (“For purposes of diversity jurisdiction, an 

individual is a citizen of his or her state of domicile, which is determined at the time the 

lawsuit is filed”).   

16. In this case, Plaintiff alleges that he “is an individual residing in the County 

of Los Angeles, California.”  (Complaint, ¶7.)  Plaintiff also alleges that he was “jointly 

employed by Defendants at its facility in Vernon, California as a merchandiser from 

approximately November 2017 to September 2018.”  (Id. at ¶7.)   

17. Additionally, Plaintiff provided Defendants with his home address during 

the course of his employment for purposes of his personnel file, payroll checks, and tax 

withholdings.  (Lasater Decl., ¶4.)  Defendants’ review of Plaintiff’s personnel file from 

his employment with Defendants reveals that Plaintiff resides in Los Angeles, California.  

(Id.)  

18. Plaintiff’s intent to remain domiciled in California also is evident from the 

fact that he brought this lawsuit against Defendants in Los Angeles Superior Court.  
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Therefore, Plaintiff was at all relevant times, and still is, a citizen and resident of the 

State of California.  

2. ABC Is Not A Citizen Of California 

19. ABC has been a citizen of Delaware and Texas within the meaning of 

28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1).  

20. For diversity purposes, the citizenship of a corporation is “every state and 

foreign state by which it has been incorporated and of the state or foreign state where it 

has its principal place of business[.]”  28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1).   

21. The “principal place of business” means the corporate headquarters where a 

corporation’s high level officers direct, control and coordinate its activities on a day-to-

day basis, also known as the corporation’s “nerve center.”  Hertz Corp. v. Friend, 

559 U.S. 77, 80-81, 92-93 (2010) (rejecting all prior tests in favor of “nerve center” test).  

Under the “nerve center” test, the “principal place of business” means the corporate 

headquarters where a corporation’s high level officers direct, control and coordinate its 

activities on a day-to-day basis.  Id. at 92-93 (“We conclude that ‘principal place of 

business’ is best read as referring to the place where a corporation’s officers direct, 

control, and coordinate the corporation’s activities”); see also Industrial Tectonics, Inc., 

v. Aero Alloy, 912 F.2d 1090, 1092-93 (9th Cir. 1990) (holding that the “nerve center” is 

where “its executive and administrative functions are performed”). 

22. ABC is now, and ever since the commencement of this action has been a 

corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of 

business in Plano, Texas.  (Declaration of Janet Barrett (“Barrett Decl.”), ¶3.)  ABC’s 

principal place of business is in Texas because that is where its headquarters is located, 

where its high level officers direct, control, and coordinate its activities.  (Id. at ¶4.)  

Additionally, the majority of ABC’s executive and administrative functions are 

performed in or directed from the Plano, Texas office, including corporate finance, 

accounting, purchasing, marketing, and information systems.  (Id.) 
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23. Given that ABC’s place of incorporation is in the State of Delaware and its 

principal place of business is in the State of Texas, ABC is a citizen of Delaware and 

Texas.  Thus, there is complete diversity between Plaintiff (California) and ABC 

(Delaware and Texas).   

3. KDP Is Not A Citizen Of California 

24. KDP has been a citizen of Delaware, Massachusetts, and Texas within the 

meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1).   

25. KDP is now, and ever since the commencement of this action has been a 

corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of 

business in both Burlington, Massachusetts and Plano, Texas.  (Barrett Decl., ¶5.)  KDP’s 

principal places of business are in Massachusetts and Texas because that is where its 

headquarters are located, where its high level officers direct, control, and coordinate its 

activities.  (Id. at ¶6.)  Additionally, the majority of KDP’s executive and administrative 

functions are performed in or directed from either the Burlington, Massachusetts or 

Plano, Texas offices, including corporate finance, accounting, purchasing, marketing, and 

information systems.  (Id.)   

26. Thus, there is complete diversity between Plaintiff (California) and KDP 

(Delaware, Massachusetts, and Texas).   

4. Doe Defendants’ Citizenship Should Be Disregarded 

27. The other defendants named in the Complaint are merely fictitious parties 

identified as “DOES 1 through 100” whose citizenship shall be disregarded for purposes 

of this removal.  28 U.S.C. § 1441(b) (for purposes of removal, “the citizenship of 

defendants sued under fictitious names shall be disregarded”); see also Soliman v. Philip 

Morris, Inc., 311 F. 3d 966, 971 (9th Cir. 2002) (“citizenship of fictitious defendants is 

disregarded for removal purposes and becomes relevant only if and when the plaintiff 

seeks leave to substitute a named defendant”); Newcombe v. Adolf Coors Co., 157 F.3d 

686, 690 (9th Cir. 1998) (“For purposes of removal under this chapter, the citizenship of 

defendants sued under fictitious names shall be disregarded.”). 
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C. The Amount In Controversy Is More Than $49 Million, Which Exceeds 
The $5 Million Statutory Threshold Under CAFA 

28. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2), “district courts shall have original 

jurisdiction of any civil action in which the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or 

value of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs[.]”  Under CAFA, the claims of the 

individual members in a class action are aggregated to determine if the amount in 

controversy exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000.  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(6).   

29. In addition, Congress intended for federal jurisdiction to be appropriate 

under CAFA “if the value of the matter in litigation exceeds $5,000,000 either from the 

viewpoint of the plaintiff or the viewpoint of the defendant, and regardless of the type of 

relief sought (e.g., damages, injunctive relief, or declaratory relief).”  Senate Judiciary 

Committee Report, S. Rep. No. 109-14, at 42 (2005), reprinted in 2005 U.S.C.C.A.N. 3, 

40.   

30. The Senate Judiciary Committee’s Report on the final version of CAFA also 

makes clear that any doubts regarding the maintenance of interstate class actions in state 

or federal court should be resolved in favor of federal jurisdiction.  Id. at 42-43 (“[I]f a 

federal court is uncertain about whether ‘all matters in controversy’ in a purposed class 

action ‘do not in the aggregate exceed the sum or value of $5,000,000, the court should 

err in favor of exercising jurisdiction over the case. . . .  Overall, new section 1332(d) is 

intended to expand substantially federal court jurisdiction over class actions.  Its 

provision should be read broadly, with a strong preference that interstate class actions 

should be heard in a federal court if properly removed by any defendant.”). 

31. Where, as here, a complaint does not allege a specific amount in damages, 

the removing defendant bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of the 

evidence that the amount in controversy exceeds the statutory minimum.  See Dart 

Cherokee Basin Operating Co., LLC, 135 S. Ct. at 553-54 (“Removal is proper on the 

basis of an amount in controversy asserted by the defendant if the district court finds, by 

the preponderance of the evidence, that the amount in controversy exceeds the 
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jurisdictional threshold”); Rodriguez v. AT&T Mobility Servs. LLC, 728 F.3d 975, 977 

(9th Cir. 2013) (holding that “the proper burden of proof imposed upon a defendant to 

establish the amount in controversy is the preponderance of the evidence standard”); 

accord Guglielmino v. McKee Foods Corp., 506 F.3d 696, 701 (9th Cir. 2007) (“the 

complaint fails to allege a sufficiently specific total amount in controversy . . . we 

therefore apply the preponderance of the evidence burden of proof to the removing 

defendant”); Abrego v. The Dow Chem. Co., 443 F.3d 676, 683 (9th Cir. 2006) (“Where 

the complaint does not specify the amount of damages sought, the removing defendant 

must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the amount in controversy 

requirement has been met”); Sanchez v. Monumental Life Ins. Co., 102 F.3d 398, 404 (9th 

Cir. 1996) (holding that under the “preponderance of the evidence” standard, “the 

defendant must provide evidence establishing that it is ‘more likely than not’ that the 

amount in controversy exceeds that amount”). 

32. To satisfy this standard, the “defendants’ notice of removal need include 

only a plausible allegation that the amount in controversy exceeds the jurisdictional 

threshold.”  Dart Cherokee Basin Operating Co., LLC, 135 S. Ct. at 554. 

33. The burden of establishing the jurisdictional threshold “is not daunting, as 

courts recognize that under this standard, a removing defendant is not obligated to 

research, state, and prove the plaintiff’s claims for damages.”  Korn v. Polo Ralph Lauren 

Corp., 536 F. Supp. 2d 1199, 1204-05 (E.D. Cal. 2008) (internal quotations omitted); see 

also Valdez v. Allstate Ins. Co., 372 F.3d 1115, 1117 (9th Cir. 2004) (“the parties need 

not predict the trier of fact’s eventual award with one hundred percent accuracy”). 

34. For purposes of ascertaining the amount in controversy, “the court must 

accept as true plaintiff’s allegations as plead in the Complaint and assume that plaintiff 

will prove liability and recover the damages alleged.”  Muniz v. Pilot Travel Ctrs. LLC, 

2007 WL 1302504, at *3 (E.D. Cal. May 1, 2007).  

35. As explained by the Ninth Circuit, “the amount-in-controversy inquiry in the 

removal context is not confined to the face of the complaint.”  Valdez, 372 F.3d at 1117; 
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see also Rodriguez, 728 F.3d at 981 (holding that a plaintiff “may not ‘sue for less than 

the amount she may be entitled to if she wishes to avoid federal jurisdiction and remain in 

state court”). 

36. If a plaintiff asserts statutory violations, the court must assume that the 

violation rate is 100% unless the plaintiff specifically alleges otherwise: 

As these allegations reveal, plaintiff includes no fact-specific 
allegations that would result in a putative class or violation rate 
that is discernibly smaller than 100%, used by defendant in its 
calculations.  Plaintiff is the “master of [her] claim[s],” and if 
she wanted to avoid removal, she could have alleged facts 
specific to her claims which would narrow the scope of the 
putative class or the damages sought.  She did not. 

Muniz, 2007 WL 1302504, at *4 (citing Caterpillar, Inc. v. Williams, 482 U.S. 386, 392 

(1987)); see also Soratorio v. Tesoro Ref. and Mktg. Co., LLC, 2017 WL 1520416, at *3 

(C.D. Cal. Apr. 26, 2017) (“Plaintiff’s Complaint could be reasonably read to allege a 

100% violation rate.  The Complaint notes that Defendants ‘did not provide’ Plaintiff and 

the other class members ‘a thirty minute meal period for every five hours worked,’ and 

that this was Defendants’ ‘common practice.’  It also alleges that Defendants had a 

practice of ‘requiring employees to work for four hours and more without a rest period’ 

and that Defendants had a ‘common practice’ of failing to provide required breaks.”); 

Arreola v. The Finish Line, 2014 WL 6982571, at *4 (N.D. Cal. Dec. 9, 2014) (“District 

courts in the Ninth Circuit have permitted a defendant removing an action under CAFA 

to make assumptions when calculating the amount in controversy—such as assuming a 

100 percent violation rate, or assuming that each member of the class will have 

experienced some type of violation—when those assumptions are reasonable in light of 

the allegations in the complaint.”); Coleman v. Estes Express Lines, Inc., 730 F. Supp. 

2d 1141, 1149 (C.D. Cal. 2010) (“[C]ourts have assumed a 100% violation rate in 

calculating the amount in controversy when the complaint does not allege a more precise 

calculation.”). 

37. Numerous other District Courts have similarly concluded that alleging a 

policy of noncompliance in a complaint justifies the assumption of a 100 percent 
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violation rate.  See Ritenour v. Carrington Mortg. Servs. LLC, 228 F. Supp. 3d, 1025 

1030 (C.D. Cal. 2017) (“Given the vague language of the Complaint and the broad 

definition of the class, it is reasonable for Defendants to assume a 100% violation rate – 

especially since Plaintiffs offer no alternative rate to challenge Defendant’s 

calculations.”); Franke v. Anderson Merchandisers LLC, 2017 WL 3224656, at *2 (C.D. 

Cal. July 28, 2017) (“Courts in this Circuit have generally found the amount in 

controversy satisfied where a defendant assumes a 100% violation rate based on 

allegations of a ‘uniform’ illegal practice – or other similar language – and where the 

plaintiff offers no evidence rebutting this violation rate”); Feao v. UFP Riverside, LLC, 

2017 WL 2836207, at *5 (C.D. Cal. June 26, 2017) (“Plaintiff’s allegations contain no 

qualifying words such as ‘often’ or ‘sometimes’ to suggest less than uniform violation 

that would preclude a 100 percent violation rate.”); Torrez v. Freedom Mortg., Corp., 

2017 WL 2713400, at *3-5 (C.D. Cal. June 22, 2017) (where complaint alleged “FMC 

engaged in a pattern and practice of wage abuse against its hourly-paid or non-exempt 

employees within the state of California,” the complaint “can reasonably be interpreted to 

imply nearly 100% violation rates”); Soratorio, LLC, 2017 WL 1520416, at *3 

(“Plaintiff’s Complaint could be reasonably read to allege a 100% violation rate. The 

Complaint notes that Defendants ‘did not provide’ Plaintiff and the other class members 

‘a thirty minute meal period for every five hours worked,’ and that this was Defendants’ 

‘common practice.’  It also alleges that Defendants had a practice of ‘requiring 

employees to work for four hours and more without a rest period’ and that Defendants 

had a ‘common practice’ of failing to provide required breaks.”); Jones v. Tween Brands, 

Inc., 2014 WL 1607636, at *3 (C.D. Cal. Apr. 22, 2014) (using 100 percent violation rate 

for waiting-time penalties since the complaint did not limit the number or frequency of 

violations). 

38. As set forth below, the alleged amount in controversy implicated by the 

class-wide allegations exceeds $49 million.  All calculations supporting the amount in 

controversy are based on the Complaint’s allegations, assuming, without any admission 
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of the truth of the facts alleged and solely for purposes of this Notice of Removal, that 

liability is established.1

1. The Second Cause Of Action For Failure To Pay Overtime 
Wages: The Amount In Controversy Exceeds $6,021,277.34 Based 
On Only One Half-Hour Of Unpaid Overtime Per Employee Per 
Week 

39. Plaintiff alleges that “Defendants employed Plaintiff and Class members for 

more than eight hours per day and more than 40 hours per workweek during the operative 

timeframe, but Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and Class members the correct 

applicable overtime rate for the number of overtime hours they worked as required by the 

California Labor Code and the applicable IWC Wage Order.”  (Complaint, ¶46.) Plaintiff 

thus seeks “to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed to [Plaintiff and Class 

members].”  (Id., ¶49.)  Plaintiff also seeks “restitution of wages withheld and retained by 

Defendants.”  (Id. at ¶81, Prayer For Relief, ¶1.)   

40. California Labor Code section 510(a) states that “any work in excess of 

eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one workweek . . . 

shall be compensated at the rate of no less than one and one-half times the regular rate of 

pay for an employee.”    

41. The statute of limitations for recovery for overtime pay under California 

Labor Code section 510 pay is three years.  Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 338.  The limitations 

period is extended to four years when a plaintiff also seeks restitution for the Labor Code 

violations.  Falk v. Children's Hosp. Los Angeles, 237 Cal. App. 4th 1454, 1462, n.12 

1/  For purposes of this motion, Plaintiff’s first cause of action for failure to pay 
minimum wages was not counted as it is duplicative to Plaintiff’s remaining causes of 
action.  Specifically, Plaintiff alleges that “Defendants failed to, and continue to fail to 
pay Plaintiff and Class members minimum wages for all hours worked by, among other 
things: requiring, suffering, or permitting Plaintiff and Class members to work off-the-
clock; requiring, suffering, or permitting Plaintiff and Class members to work through 
meal breaks; illegally and inaccurately recording time worked by Plaintiff and Class 
members; failing to properly maintain Plaintiff’s and Class members’ records; failing to 
provide itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and Class members for each pay period; 
and other methods to be discovered.”  (Complaint, ¶37.) 
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(2015) (holding that “actions for restitution and under Business and Professions Code 

section 17200 are subject to a four-year statute of limitation”).  Accordingly, the 

proposed class period for the first cause of action begins on April 16, 2015. 

42. In this case, the average hourly rate of the putative class members is $17.79.  

(Lasater Decl., ¶6.)  The average overtime rate would be no less than $26.69 ($17.79 x 

1.5). 

43. During the proposed class period of April 16, 2015 and May 10, 2019, the 

putative class members worked approximately 451,201 weeks.  (Lasater Decl., ¶7.)  

Based on the allegations of the Complaint, if each putative class member is entitled to 

one half-hour of unpaid overtime per week (i.e., six minutes of unpaid overtime per 

workday), the amount in controversy on this claim would equal no less than 

$6,021,277.34 ($26.69 x 451,201 weeks x 0.5).   

2. The Third Cause Of Action For Failure To Provide Meal Periods: 
The Amount In Controversy Exceeds $6,201,095.88 Based On 
Only One Hour Of Premium Pay Per Employee Per Week 

44. Plaintiff alleges that “Plaintiff and Class members regularly worked greater 

than five hours and on occasion greater than ten hours per day.”  (Complaint, ¶51.)  

Plaintiff further alleges that “Defendants required, permitted or otherwise suffered 

Plaintiff and Class members to take less than the 30 minute meal period, or to work 

through them, and have failed to otherwise provide the required meal periods to Plaintiff 

and Class members.  (Id. at ¶52.)   

45. Plaintiff seeks to “recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in which a 

lawful meal period was not provided.”  (Id. at ¶54.)   

46. California Labor Code Section 512 provides that “[a]n employer may not 

employ an employee for a work period of more than five hours per day without providing 

the employee with a meal period of not less than 30 minutes….”  Section 512 further 

provides that “[a]n employer may not employ an employee for a work period of more 

than 10 hours per day without providing the employee with a second meal period of not 

less than 30 minutes….”  California Labor Code Section 226.7 requires employers to pay 
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an hour of premium pay to employees who are not provided full or timely meal periods.  

An employee is entitled to an additional hour’s wages per day, for both a rest and meal 

period violation each day.  Lyon v. W.W. Grainger, Inc., 2010 WL 1753194, *4 (N.D. 

Cal. Apr. 29, 2010) (noting that Labor Code section 226.7 provides recovery for one meal 

break violation per work day and one rest break violation per work day). 

47. The statute of limitations for recovery for meal period premium pay under 

California Labor Code section 226.7 is three years.  Murphy v. Kenneth Cole Prods., Inc., 

40 Cal. 4th 1094, 1099 (2007) (“[T]he remedy provided in Labor Code section 226.7 

constitutes a wage or premium pay and is governed by a three-year statute of 

limitations.”).  Accordingly, the proposed class period for the second cause of action 

begins on April 16, 2016. 

48. During the proposed class period of April 16, 2016 and May 10, 2019, the 

putative class members worked approximately 348,572 weeks.  (Lasater Decl., ¶8.)  

Based on the allegations of the Complaint, assuming each putative class member is 

entitled to one hour of premium pay per week for the alleged non-provision of meal 

periods, the amount in controversy on this claim would equal no less than $6,201,095.88

($17.79 x 348,572 weeks).   

3. The Fourth Cause Of Action For Failure To Provide Rest 
Periods: The Amount In Controversy Exceeds $6,201,095.88 
Based On Only One Hour Of Premium Pay Per Employee Per 
Week 

49. Plaintiff alleges that “Defendant provided Plaintiff and Class members with 

policies that did not permit first or second rest breaks for shifts between six and eight 

hours or third rest breaks for shifts over ten hours.”  (Complaint, ¶57.)  Plaintiff further 

alleges that Defendants “fail[ed] to pay Plaintiff and Class members who were not 

provided with a rest break, in accordance with the applicable wage order, one additional 

hour of compensation at each employees’ regular rate of pay for each workday that a rest 

period was not provided.”  (Id. at ¶58.)   
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50. Plaintiff seeks to “recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in which a 

lawful meal [sic] period was not provided.”  (Complaint, ¶59.)     

51. Under California law, “[e]very employer shall authorize and permit all 

employees to take rest periods, which … shall be based on the total hours worked daily at 

the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof.”  

Brinker Rest. Corp. v. Superior Court, 53 Cal. 4th 1004, 1028 (2012).  California Labor 

Code Section 226.7 requires employers to pay an hour of premium pay each day that an 

employee is not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest periods. 

52. The statute of limitations for recovery for rest period premium pay under 

California Labor Code section 226.7 is three years.  Murphy, 40 Cal. 4th at 1099 (“[T]he 

remedy provided in Labor Code section 226.7 constitutes a wage or premium pay and is 

governed by a three-year statute of limitations.”).   

53. Based on the allegations of the Complaint, assuming each putative class 

member is entitled to one hour of premium pay per week for the alleged non-provision of 

rest periods, the amount in controversy on this claim would equal no less than 

$6,201,095.88 ($17.79 x 348,572 weeks). 

4. The Fifth Cause of Action For Failure To Furnish Accurate 
Itemized Wage Statements: The Amount In Controversy Exceeds 
$12,211,050.00 

54. Plaintiff alleges that “Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to 

furnish Plaintiff and Class members with timely, itemized statements as required by 

California Labor Code § 226(a) and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B).”  (Complaint, 

¶62.)   

55. California Labor Code section 226(e) provides a minimum of $50 for the 

initial violation as to each employee, and $100 for each further violation as to each 

employee, up to a maximum penalty of $4,000 per employee.   

56. The statute of limitations for recovery of penalties under California Labor 

Code section 226 is one year.  Caliber Bodyworks, Inc. v. Sup. Ct., 134 Cal. App. 4th 

365, 376 (2005); Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 340(a).  Accordingly, the statutory period for a 
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claim under California Labor Code section 226 begins on April 16, 2018, which is one 

year prior to the date of the filing of the Complaint.   

57. During the statute of limitations period for the wage statement claim, from 

April 16, 2018, to May 10, 2019, there are at least 2,989 putative class members who, 

according to Plaintiff, failed to receive accurate wage statements.  (Lasater Decl., ¶9.)  

The putative class members are paid on a weekly basis.  (Id. at ¶9.)   

58. After excluding those pay periods that would not be entitled to a penalty 

because the statutory $4,000 maximum has been reached, the 2,989 putative class 

members worked at least 123,605 pay periods that could qualify for a wage statement 

penalty.  (Lasater Decl., ¶9.)  When including a $50 penalty for the initial wage statement 

and $100 for each subsequent wage statement (up to a maximum of $4,000 for each 

employee), the amount in controversy on this claim would equal no less than 

$12,211,050.00.  (Id.) 

5. The Seventh Cause Of Action For Failure to Pay All Wages Due  
to Discharged and Quitting Employees: The Amount In 
Controversy Exceeds $8,637,400.80 

59. Plaintiff alleges that “Defendants have willfully failed, and continue to 

willfully fail, to pay accrued wages and other compensation to Plaintiff and class 

members in accordance with California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202.”  (Complaint, ¶74.)  

Plaintiff also alleges that “Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to all available 

statutory penalties, including the waiting time penalties provided in California Labor 

Code § 203.”  (Id. at ¶75.) 

60. Under California Labor Code section 203(a), an employee may recover “the 

[daily] wages . . . as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate” but not “for 

more than 30 days.”   

61. The statute of limitations period for California Labor Code section 203 

penalties extends back only three years from the date of filing of the complaint.  See

Pineda v. Bank of Am., N.A., 50 Cal. 4th 1389, 1399 (2010) (holding that “if an employer 

failed to timely pay final wages to an employee who quit or was fired, the employee 
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would have … three years to sue for the unpaid final wages giving rise to the penalty”).  

Accordingly, the proposed class period for a claim under California Labor Code section 

203 begins on April 16, 2016, which is three years prior to the date of the filing of the 

Complaint.   

62. During the applicable statute of limitations period between April 16, 2016, 

and May 10, 2019, there are at least 2,023 proposed class members who are former non-

exempt employees.  (Lasater Decl., ¶10.)   

63. Based on the average hourly rate of $17.79, the amount in controversy on 

this claim would equal no less than $8,637,400.80 ($17.79 x 8 hours x 30 days x 2,023 

employees).  

6. The Ninth Cause Of Action For Failure To Indemnify Employees 
For Necessary Expenditures Incurred In Charge Of Duties: The 
Amount In Controversy Exceeds $478,300.00 

64. Plaintiff alleges “Defendants have knowingly and willfully failed and 

continue to fail to indemnify Plaintiff for all business expenses and/or losses incurred in 

direct consequence of the discharge of Plaintiff’s duties while working under the 

direction of Defendants, including but not limited to, by failing to reimburse employees 

for use of their personal mobile phone for work purposes.”  (Complaint, ¶84.)  Plaintiff 

seeks to “reimbursement of all necessary expenditures, coerced payments, and unlawful 

deductions, plus interest thereon….”  (Id. at ¶86.)   

65. An employer has a statutory obligation to “indemnify his or her employee 

for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct consequence 

of the discharge of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of the 

employer, even though unlawful, unless the employee, at the time of obeying the 

directions, believed them to be unlawful.”  Cal. Labor Code § 2802(a).   

66. Plaintiff does not specify the amount of mobile phone expenses incurred by 

the putative class members that allegedly should have been reimbursed.  Assuming that 

each putative class member incurred $100 of unreimbursed mobile phone expenses that 
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allegedly should have been reimbursed, the amount in controversy on this claim would 

equal no less than $478,300.00 ($100 x 4,783 putative class members).   

7. The Attorneys’ Fees And Costs 

67. For purposes of determining the amount in controversy, only “interest and 

costs” are excluded from the calculation.  28 U.S.C. § 1332.  Therefore, the Court must 

consider the aggregate of general damages, special damages, punitive damages, and 

attorneys’ fees.  Galt G/S v. JSS Scandinavia, 142 F.3d 1150, 1156 (9th Cir. 1998) 

(claims for statutory attorneys’ fees to be included in amount in controversy, regardless 

of whether such an award is discretionary or mandatory) ; Brady v. Mercedes-Benz USA, 

Inc., 243 F. Supp. 2d 1004, 1010-11 (N.D. Cal. 2002) (“Where the law entitles the 

prevailing plaintiff to recover reasonable attorney fees, a reasonable estimate of fees 

likely to be incurred to resolution is part of the benefit permissibly sought by the plaintiff 

and thus contributes to the amount in controversy.”).  

68. A reasonable estimate of fees likely to be recovered may be used in 

calculating the amount in controversy.  Longmire v. HMS Host USA, Inc., 2012 WL 

5928485, at *9 (S.D. Cal. Nov. 26, 2012 (“[C]ourts may take into account reasonable 

estimates of attorneys’ fees likely to be incurred when analyzing disputes over the 

amount in controversy under CAFA.”); Muniz v. Pilot Travel Centers LLC, 2007 U.S. 

Dist. LEXIS 31515, at *15 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 30, 2007) (attorneys’ fees appropriately 

included in determining amount in controversy). 

69. The Ninth Circuit held that “a court must include future attorneys’ fees 

recoverable by statute or contract when assessing whether the amount-in-controversy 

requirement is met.”  Fritsch v. Swift Transp. Co. of Arizona, LLC, 899 F.3d 785, 794 

(9th Cir. 2018); see also Chavez v. JPMorgan Chase & Co., 888 F.3d 413, 414-15 (9th 

Cir. 2018) (“[T]he amount in controversy is not limited to damages incurred prior to 

removal—for example, it is not limited to wages a plaintiff-employee would have earned 

before removal (as opposed to after removal).  Rather, the amount in controversy is 

determined by the complaint operative at the time of removal and encompasses all relief a 
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court may grant on that complaint if the plaintiff is victorious.”); Lucas v. Michael Kors 

(USA), Inc., 2018 WL 2146403 (C.D. Cal. May 9, 2018) (holding that “unaccrued post-

removal attorneys’ fees can be factored into the amount in controversy” for CAFA 

jurisdiction). 

70. In the class action context, courts have found that 25 percent of the 

aggregate amount in controversy is a benchmark for attorneys’ fees award under the 

“percentage of fund” calculation and courts may depart from this benchmark when 

warranted.  See Campbell v. Vitran Exp., Inc., 471 F. App’x 646, 649 (9th Cir. 2012) 

(attorneys’ fees appropriately included in determining amount in controversy under 

CAFA); Powers v. Eichen, 229 F.3d 1249, 1256-57 (9th Cir. 2000) (“We have also 

established twenty-five percent of the recovery as a ‘benchmark’ for attorneys’ fees 

calculations under the percentage-of-recovery approach”); Wren v. RGIS Inventory 

Specialists, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 38667 at *78-84 (N.D. Cal. Apr. 1, 2011) (finding 

ample support for adjusting the 25% presumptive benchmark upward and found that 

plaintiffs’ request for attorneys’ fees in the amount of 42% of the total settlement 

payment was appropriate and reasonable in the case); Cicero v. DirecTV, Inc., 2010 U.S. 

Dist. LEXIS 86920 at *16-18 (C.D. Cal. July 27, 2010) (finding attorneys’ fees in the 

amount of 30% of the total gross settlement amount to be reasonable); see also In re 

Quintas Secs. Litig., 148 F. Supp. 2d 967, 973 (N.D. Cal. 2001) (noting that in the class 

action settlement context the benchmark for setting attorneys’ fees is 25 percent of the 

common fund).  Even under the conservative benchmark of 25 percent of the total 

recovery for the applicable claims, attorneys’ fees alone would be upward of 

$9,937,554.98 in this case which is 25% of the potential recovery of the claims alleged in 

the Complaint—$6,021,277.34 (unpaid overtime) + $6,201,095.88 (unpaid meal 

premiums) + $6,201,095.88 (unpaid rest premiums) + $12,211,050.00 (wage statement 

claim) + $8,637,400.80 (waiting time penalties) + $478,300.00 (reimbursement claim).   
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8. The Total Aggregate Amount In Controversy Exceeds $49 Million 

71. Although Defendants deny Plaintiff’s allegations that he or the putative class 

are entitled to any relief for the above-mentioned claims, based on the foregoing 

calculations, the aggregate amount in controversy for the putative class for all asserted 

claims is approximately $49,687,774.90: 

Cause of Action 
Amount In Controversy Based On The 

Allegation Of The Complaint 
Unpaid Overtime $6,021,277.34  

(one half-hour of overtime per employee per 
week) 

Unpaid Meal Period Premiums $6,201,095.88 
(one hour of premium pay per employee per week)

Unpaid Rest Period Premiums $6,201,095.88 
(one hour of premium pay per employee per week)

Non-Compliant Wage Statements $12,211,050.00 
(based on 123,605 pay periods) 

Final Wages Not Timely Paid $8,637,400.80  
(based on 2,023 former employees) 

Unreimbursed Business Expenses $478,300.00  
($100 of reimbursement per employee) 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs $9,937,554.98 
(based on 25% of the potential recovery) 

Total $49,687,774.90 

72. Although Defendants deny Plaintiff’s allegations that he or the putative class 

are entitled to any relief, based on Plaintiff’s allegations and prayer for relief, and a 

conservative estimate based on those allegations, the total amount in controversy far 

exceeds the $5,000,000 threshold set forth under 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2) for removal 

jurisdiction. 

73. Because minimal diversity of citizenship exists, and the amount in 

controversy exceeds $5,000,000, this Court has original jurisdiction of this action 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).  This action is therefore a proper one for removal to 

this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a). 

74. To the extent that Plaintiff has alleged any other claims for relief in the 

Complaint over which this Court would not have original jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. 
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§ 1332(d), the Court has supplemental jurisdiction over any such claims pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. section 1367(a). 

IV. VENUE 

75. Venue lies in the United States District Court for the Central District of 

California, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(a), 1441, and 84(c).  This action originally was 

brought in Los Angeles County Superior Court of the State of California, which is 

located within the Central District of California.  28 U.S.C. § 84(c).  Therefore, venue is 

proper because it is the “district and division embracing the place where such action is 

pending.”  28 U.S.C. § 1441(a).  A true and correct copy of this Notice of Removal will 

be promptly served on Plaintiff and filed with the Clerk of the Los Angeles County 

Superior Court of the State of California as required under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d). 

V. NOTICE TO STATE COURT AND TO PLAINTIFF 

76. Defendants will give prompt notice of the filing of this Notice of Removal to 

Plaintiff and to the Clerk of the Superior Court of the State of California in the County of 

Los Angeles.  The Notice of Removal is concurrently being served on all parties. 

VI. PRAYER FOR REMOVAL 

77. WHEREFORE, Defendants pray that this civil action be removed from 

Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles to the United 

States District Court for the Central District of California. 

DATED: May 20, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 

By:    /s/ Jennifer R. Nunez 
Daniel Whang 
Jennifer R. Nunez 

Attorneys for Defendants 
THE AMERICAN BOTTLING 
COMPANY and KEURIG DR 
PEPPER INC. 
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ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Name, State Bar number, and address) 

_ Vache Thomassian, Esq. I SBN: 289053 
KJT Law Group, LLP 
230 N. Maryland Ave. Suite 306 Glendale, CA 91206 

TELEPHONE NO.: (818) 507-85251 FAX NO. 

E-MAIL ADDRESS vache@kjtlawgroup.com  

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): Plaintiff: 

FOR COURT USE ONLY 

FILED  

Surior Court ot California 
pe 
County of Los Angeles 

2 4 2019  
. Carter xe tivet*Gierit of Court 

/4Sit} Deputy 
By  

B igitte De La Rosa 

Sherri 

APRSTREET 

Los Angeles County Superior Court - Stanley Mosk Courthouse 

ADDRESS: 111 North Hill Street 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

CITY AND ZIP CODE: Los Angeles, CA 90012 

BRANCH NAME: Stanley Mosk - Central District 

PLAINTIFF: Juan M. Guzman-Lopez, individually 

DEFENDANT: The American Bottling Company, a corporation 19STCV13050  

CASE NUMB ER: 

PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS EM00091 
Ref. No. or File No.: 

- Guzman v. Am. Botting Co. 

(Separate proof of service is required for each party served.) 

1. At the time of service I was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action. 
2. I served copies of: 

a- 0  Summons 

b. Complaint 

c. Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) package 
d. 171 Civil Case Cover Sheet 

e. r~I
Cross-complaint 

f. NJ other (specify documents): Civil Case Cover Sheet Addendum and Statement of Location;Notice of Case Assignment 
Unlimited Civil Case; Standing Order Re: Personal Injury Proicedures, Central District; First Amended Standing 
Orde-Re:Final Status Conference, Personal Injury ('PI') Courts (effective as of April 16, 2018) 

3. a. Party served (specify name of party as shown on documents served): 
The American Bottling Company, a corporation 

b. 0  Person (other than the party in item 3a) served on behalf of an entity or as an authorized agent (and not a person under 
item 5b on whom substituted service was made) (specify name and relationship to the party named in item 3a): 

CT Corporation System, c/o Albert Delamonte - Registered Agent for Service of process 
Age: 29 Weight: 180 Hair: Brown Sex: Male Height: 5'11" Eyes: Race: Hispanic 

4. Address where the party was served: CT Corporation System 
818 W 7th St Ste 930 
Los Angeles, CA 90017-3476 

FILED BY FAX 
(CRC 2005) 

111.,§Aalaa 

5. I served the party (check proper box) 

a. by personal service. I personally delivered the documents listed in item 2 to the party or person authorized to 
receive service of process for the party (1) on (date): 4/18/2019 (2) at (time): 9:21 AM 

b. El by substituted service. On (date): at (time): I left the documents listed in item 2 with or 
in the presence of (name and title or relationship to person indicated in item 3b): 

(1) 0 

(2) 0 

(3) El 

(business) a person at least 18 years of age apparently in charge at the office or usual place of business of the 
person to be served. I informed him of her of the general nature of the papers. 

(home) a competent member of the household (at least 18 years of age) at the dwelling house or usual place of 
abode of the party. I informed him or her of the general nature of the papers. 

(physical address unknown) a person at least 18 years of age apparently in charge at the usual mailing address 
of the person to be served, other than a United States Postal Service post office box. I informed him of her of the 
general nature of the papers. 

(4) ❑ I thereafter mailed (by first-class, postage prepaid) copies of the documents to the person to be served at the 
place where the copies were left (Code Civ. Proc., §415.20). I mailed the documents on 
(date): from (city): or ❑ a declaration of mailing is attached. 

(5) El I attach a declaration of diligence stating actions taken first to attempt personal service. 

  

Pa.e 1 of 2 

Code of Civil Procedure, § 417.10 
POS010-1/115189A 

Form Approved for Mandatory Use 
Judicial Council of California 
POS-010 [Rev. January 1, 2007] 

PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS 
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PETITIONER: Juan M. Guzman-Lopez, individually CASE NUMBER: 

19STCV13050 
RESPONDENT: The American Bottling Company, a corporation 

c. 1=1 by mail and acknowledgment of receipt of service. I mailed the documents listed in item 2 to the party, to the address 
shown in item 4, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, 

(1) on (date): (2) from (city): 

(3) ❑ with two copies of the Notice and Acknowledgment of Receipt and a postage-paid return envelope addressed to me. 
(Attach completed Notice and Acknowledgement of Receipt.) (Code Civ. Proc., § 415.30.) 

(4) ❑ to an address outside California with return receipt requested. (Code Civ. Proc., § 415.40.) 

d. 1=1 by other means (specify means of service and authorizing code section): 

El Additional page describing service is attached. 
6. The "Notice to the Person Served" (on the summons) was completed as follows: 

a. 1=1 

b. 0 
c.  ❑ 

d.  

415.95 (business organization, form unknown) 
416.60 (minor) 
416.70 (ward or conservatee) 
416.90 (authorized person) 
415.46 (occupant) 

other: 

7. Person who served papers 
a. Name: Oscar Herrera - ON-CALL LEGAL 
b. Address: 1875 Century Park East, STE H Los Angeles, CA 90067 
c. Telephone number: (310) 858-9800 
d. The fee for service was: $ 106.40 
e. I am: 

(1) not a registered California process server. 
(2) exempt from registration under Business and Professions Code section 22350(b). 
(3) re istered California prt 

employee
ss  server: 

(i) LI owner 
(ii) Registration No.: 2018048510 
(iii) County: Los Angeles 

8. I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

or 

9. El I am a California sheriff or marshal and I certify that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Date: 4/22/2019 

ON-CALL LEGAL 
1875 Century Park East, STE H 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
(310) 858-9800 
www.OnCallLegal.com  

as an individual defendant. 

as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify): 

as occupant. 

On behalf of (specify): The American Bottling Company, 
under the following Code of Civil Procedure section: 

416.10 (corporation) 0 
D 416.20 (defunct corporation) ❑ 

D 416.30 (joint stock company/association) ❑ 

D 416.40 (association or partnership) ❑ 

❑ 416.50 (public entity) El 

a corporation 

D independent contractor. 

Oscar Herrera 
(NAME OF PERSON WHO SERVED PAPERS/SHERIFF OR MARSHAL) 

POS-010 [Rev January 1, 2007]
PROOF OF SERVICE OF SUMMONS Page 2 of 2 

POS-010/115189A 
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c_cr tt-exTre. 

SUM-100 
SUMMONS 

(CITACION JUDICIAL) 
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: 
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): 

THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY, a corporation; 
KEURIG-DR. PEPPER, INC., a corporation; and DOES 1-20, inclusive, 
YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: 
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): 

JUAN M. GUZMAN-LOPEZ, individually and on behalf of all others S 
similarly situated, 

FOR coon USE ONLY 
(SOLO PAU too DE LA CORTE) 

cONFORIVIEU eaPv 
OlfrIONNAL tirietttt 

Superior Court ol California 
Connly nr I nc Annalps 

APR 1 61019 

erri R. Carter, Executive 011icer/Clerk ol Court 

By: Steven Drew, Deputy 

NOTICE, You have been sued. The court may deckle against you without your being hoard unless you respond within 30 days. Road the Informatbn 
below. 

You-have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after thls summons and legal papers ere served on you to file a written response at this court and have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response musthe hi proper legal form ft you want the court to hear your 
case. Them-may bee court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more Infommtion at the California Courts 
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.tagovisedhelp). your county law library, or the courthouse newest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask 
the court cleric for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on lime, you may bee the case by default, and your wages, money, and property 
may be taken without further warning from the court. 

There arpothor legal requirements. You may want to call en attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want b call an attorney 
referral service. If yeti cannot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal services ham a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate . 
these noniyottl groups et the California Legal Services Web site (vnvw.latihelpcalifomia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Canter 
(vnew.coustritice.gcnaelfhe(o). or by contacting your local court or county bar assedation. NOTE: The court hes a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more In a call case. The court's Gen must be paid before the court will dismiss the case. 

114WS01-  Lo hen demandado. SI no responds derifro do 30 dies, la onto puedo docldk en all centre sin oscucher au version. Lea la Informecien a 
continuation. • • 

Thane 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despu6s.de QUO lo•entroguon osta °Macron y paroles locales pare presenter tine respuesta pot °strife en este 
code ',hear quasi animus tine copier al &mandate. Una torte o tine llamado felefrroke no lo protegen. Su respuesto poritSailt Ilene quo inter 
en famato legal correct° al doses queprocesen su case on la cafe. Es postblo qua haya tin formvlario qua creed puede usar para ru respuesta. 
Proxfo caesarian( Gatos formularies de I e coda y mss information en el Centre de Ayude do lee Codas do California cierow.sucorte.ca.gov), en la 
bibecifece de hOyes do su•oondado o an la code oil le quedo mascara Si no padsi pager to outdo de presentation, plde al secretes* de la arts 
quo le de tin fairnulado.de sicencion depogo deewfes. Si no-present° arrespripste o tempo, puede ponder or caso par Incumpanclento y la code k 
podni quitter a roof° diner° y bloats slit male ealvertantle. 

Hayotros roquisitos looks. Es recomendebb quo Remo a cm abound°, inrnediatemente. Si no conoco a tin abroad°, puede liana' gun sonicio do 
nurthrron a ebogadas. SI no puede pager a un abolido, es parole quo cumpla con bs regular's pare °broiler servicias logelas gratultos do tin 
programs de sandal= legates sin fides de fucro. Riede encontrar silos grupos sh Mesa (ice en el alo web do Califorrea.Leael Senates, 
(wiwritawhelPoitfornborg), on el Centro do Ayucfa de las Codes de Cerro, Avveasucorte.ce.gov) o porirondose en contact° con la cafe o el 
cologroap alrorgadosloceles. AO SO: Paley, le torte Hang dorocho a rociamar 1 a s cuotos y los costes excintos par baronet un•gravemen mare 
cuakiiniOr ratuparecron de 310,000 6 mss de valor reabide mediente to acuenfo o tine arocesfiro do eroltraro en tin caso de dorsal° ail. Done quo 
pager el gravamen dole cafe antes do quo la code puede desochar of area 

The name and address of the court Is: 
(El neatly y &reactor de la coffees): Superior Court of California 
Stanley Mosk Courthouse - Central District 
11 l North Hill Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

The name, address, and telephone number of .plaIntif8s attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, Is: 
(Elnonibre, la dlracciony el armor° detelefono del °booed° del demandante, o del demandante quo no liens °booed°, es): 
Vache Thomassian, Esq., 230 North Maryland Avenue, Suite 306; Glendale, CA 91206 Ph:818-507-8525 

DATF:. APR 1 6 :2019 Sherri R. Carter, Clerk clerk;  by , Deputy 
Feci7a) (Secretado) STEVEN DREW (Ad)unto)  
(For. prOof of service Of this summons, usci:ProOf of Service Of Summons. (form POSL010).) 
(Para prueba de entmga de rale citation use el formulado Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)). 

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served 
1. F-1 as an Individual-defendant. 
2. r---1 the personsued under the fictitious name of.(specity): 

keu Or. er f I hc - / ecy- 
rerciAtcr? of (specify): 

under. Lid CCP 416.10 (corporation) Q CCP 416.60 (minor) 
M CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) C:1 CCP 416.70 (conservatee) 
F-1  CCP 416.40 (association or partnership)  CCP 416.90 (authorized person) 

ED other (specify): 
4. r--1  by personal delivery on (date): 

Papa 1 al  
Form Adopted I MAndetory Ulm 

Jul/clad Could at Callfamia 
std-loo ercer.,myr. nal 

SUMMONS Cods of CM Prommee fd 41220, 455 
vAtitaxr&to.ospav 

=MOSt 
19STCV13050 

fSEALJ 
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(CITACION JUDICIAL) 
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: 
(AWSO AL DEMANDADO): 

I 
CQNpQj4M[) COPY  

O?IfllNaL PILtO 
THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY, a corporation; Superior  Court of  California 

YOU ARE  BEING SUED  BY PLAINTIFF: APR 16  2019 
(LOESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): 

KEURIG-DR. PEPPER, INC., a corporation; and DOES 1-20, inclusive, 
Co nl, nil nc Anr.olpq 

JUAN  M. GUZI'vlAN-LOPEZ, individually and on behalf of all  oth ers S erri R. Carter, Executive ollicer/Cler* of Court 
similarly situated, By: Steven Drew, Deputy 

NOI10EI You have been sued. The oorst may decide against you without your bang hoard unless you respond within 30 days. Road the Information 
below. - 

You -have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legal papers ore served on you to file a written response at this oowt and have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letterer phone call wifi not protect you. Your written response must be In proper legal form If you want the win to hear your 
case. Them maybee court form that you can use for your response. You can (lad these court forms and more Information at the California Courts 
Online Sell-Help Center (wtnv.cowtlnfo.ce.goclseh?wlp). your county law library,or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fe, ask 
the ouji cleric for a fee waiver form. If you do not (lie your response on limo, you may Ieee the case by default, and your wages, money, and property 
may be taken without further warning from the court 

There smother legal requirements. You may want to can an attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want to call an attorney 
refeaal saMe.. if you carviot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for tee legal services (mm a nonprofit legal saMces program. You can locate 
these nonfrofit groups at the Caiiforfla LegAl Services Web site (vn.ew.iay.t.elpcoflfam/a erg), the California Courts Online Self-Help Canter 
(wwwcatmb.cagcw's&Th), or by contacting your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any settle,nenter art,itnUon award of $10.000 or more In a dvii case. The courts flea must be paid before the court win dismiss the case. 
iAt4S01Lo hen demane'ado. Sine responde derito do 30 dIM In cafe puedo dccldk on at, contra sin oscuchar ai vcr35n. Lea is inform addr a 
conrinuaridn. 

Then. 30 DIAS DC CALENDARFO despuósda qi.0 loonfroguon oslo citadon ypape!es loge/os porn presenter tine mospuesta pot sadie an os/a 
on yharar quasi enfr'oguo tine c*a at doniandw,to. Line torte o tine ilamoda (eiofov*a no So p'otogen. Su respma ala per esalto (lone quo ester 
on fame/a legal wmcft af doses queprocesen su coao gala carta. Es posblo qua hays mn formtilarlo quo titled puods uaarpwa sit rnspues/a. 
Puedo cncanlmros(os 60mui4os do ft cotta ymas in(ormeclon en of Contra do Ajvda do lea Corfos do California wMcsucorte.ca.gov), en is 
bibildloca do kyos do sucondado son to cute quo ft quedo mat -n Si no wodi pager to otiS do pasoniacldn, pkla eisecrota'lo dole cdl. 
qua ft do wi 16mul,4odo exendd.rp do pagedo -cafes. Si no-  prawn ia a' iespuesta a tlempo, ponds pwSr Si caso per fnownp&ntMo y Is coda Jo 
pod/a quiet so sun/do, dfr,ero yb/ones sin n7dsethonenaa. 

Hay alias rnquis.tos.legalos. Es rocvntondobk, quo Rams a w, ebogodo frmicc'ietornente. SI no oonoco a un abogedo, poSe llamaaun s&%tlo do 
rem/s/one abogedos. Si no,  founds pager sun abogado, es posfb.b quiD cumpla con Jos requisites pars obtdne, ser4dos loge/as grsM?os do on 
mwr"a do sSvlcfts Wafts alA (lies 4. hsay. Psthi oncanfrarosjos gaspos sin fiats do tuna en of eltis v,vb do CalifamJaLegel Swte 
frW.WIIaaVOmIa.OmJ, anal Can ho do Ayudà do Ins Credo Cellbnla, frww.sucoite.ca.gov) o prldndosw,  on contac4t, con La sale eel 
caloglo.do  abogac s-kc&aa. A VISO: Pa-by,  Is cat. Hene damdro a redwnwbas cuotos y Sos wales oxen/as po-bnponet un.grnvamon sabre 
wafq&drrr, cuf,aaec/on do 310,0W 6 més do t,vbr me/bk/a modlento an aamrdo o tins concealOn do aft/Us/a on tin cow do dome/to cM. 1/otto quo 
pwjeral gwe men dole cute un/os do quo is cot/a puado desodrw a! car. 

The name and address of the court is: CASE NUAMM.  
(El nthitv yd/a'uccldn do be corteGe): Superior Court of California °f9 S T C V 130 50 Stanley Mask Courthouse - Centiul District 
Ill North Hill Street, Los Angeles, CA 900I2 

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintifEs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is: 
(El.nonibm, Is dirocciOny el nOmesa detalOfono del ebogado del domandante, o del dumandante quo no liens ebogado, as): 
Vache Thomassian, Esq., 230 North Maryland Avenue, Suite 306; Glendale, CA 91206 Ph:818-507-8525 

DATE: APR 16'2019 Sheryl R. Carter, CIek Clerk, by Deputy 

(Pam prueba do on/toga do otIs cltatiÔA use of fwmulanb Proof oi Service of Summons, (PQS-0 10)). 
NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served 

= as an Individóál-defendant. 

C the personsued under the fictitious name of ('spec!!y): 

2beof(spoc: 
PrPj, gç 1 1hc-1  

under iJ CCP 416.10 (corporation) [J CCP 416.60 (minor) 
C] CCP 416.20 (defund corporation) C CCP 416.70 (conservatee) 

C] CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) [J CCP 416.90 (authorized person) 

C other (specify): 
C by personal delivery on (date): 
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PlaintiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez brings this action on behalf of himself, and on behalf of 

all other similarly-situated members of the public, and alleges the following: 

I. INTRODUCTION  

1. PlaintiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez ("Plaintiff") brings this dass action to remedy wage-

and-hour violations by Defendants Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., The American Bottling Company and 

Does 1 through 20 (collectively, "Defendants"). For at least four years prior to the filing of this 

Complaint and through the present, Defendants have engaged in a uniform policy and systematic 

scheme of wage abuse against Plaintiff and other non-exempt employees of Defendants in violation 

of applicable California laws, including, without limitation, failing to provide meal and rest breaks, 

and failing to pay minimum and overtime wages. 

II. THE PARTIES 

2. Defendant The American Bottling Company is a subsidiary of Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

Inc. offering bottling services and is distributor of Dr. Pepper affiliated soft drinks. At all times 

mentioned herein, Defendant The American Bottling Company was and is an employer covered 

by the California Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage 

Order. 

3. Defendant &trig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., formerly Dr. Pepper-Snapple Group, Inc., is a 

nationwide conglomerate and makers of various assortments of soft drinks. M all times mentioned 

herein, Defendant Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. was and is an employer covered by die California 

Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order. 

4. Plaintiff is unaware and ignorant of the true names and capacities of defendants sued 

herein as Does I through 20, inclusive, and for that reason sues said defendants by such fictitious 

names (the "Doe Defendants"). 

5. At all times herein relevant, Defendants, and each of them, were die agents, 

partners, joint-venturers, joint employers, alter-egos, representatives, servants, employees, 

successors-in-interest, co-conspirators and assigns, each of the other, and at times relevant hereto 

were acting with the course and cope of theirs authority as such agents, partners, joint-venturers, 
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PlaintiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez brings this action on behalf of himself; and on behalf of 
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3 

4 1. PlaintiffJuan  M. Guzman-Lopez ("Plaintiff") brings this class action to remedy wage- 

5 and-hour violations by Defendants Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., The American Bottling Company and 

6 Does 1 through 20 (collectively, "Defendants"), For at least four years prior to the filing of this 

7 Complaint and through the present, Defendants have engaged in a uniform policy and systematic 

scheme of wage abuse against Plaintiff and other non-exempt employees of Defendants in violation 

of applicable California laws, including, without limitation, failing to provide meal and rest breaks, 

and failing to pay minimum and overtime wages. 

II. THE PARTIES 

Defendant The American Bottling Company is a subsidiary of Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

Inc. offering bottling services and is distributor of Dr. Pepper affiliated soft drinks. Mall times 

mentioned herein, Defendant The American Bottling Company was and is an employer covered 

by the California Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage 

Order. 

DcfindantKeurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., formerly Dr. Pepper-Snapp!e Group, Inc., is a 

nationwide conglomerate and makers of various assortments of soft drinks. Mall times mentioned 

herein, Defendant Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. was and is an employer covered by die California  

Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("rWC") Wage Order. 

Plaintiff is unaware and ignorant of the true names and capacities of defendants sued 

herein as Does I through 20, inclusive, and for that reason sues said defendants by such fictitious 

names (the "Doe Defendants"). 

At all times herein relevan Defendants, and each of them, were die agents, 

partners, joint-venturers, joint employers, alter-egos, representatives, servants, employees, 

successors-in-interest, co-conspirators and assigns, each of the oilier, and at times relevant hereto 

were acting with the course and cope of theirs authority as such agents, partners, joint-venturers, 
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1 joint employers, alter-egos, representatives, servants, employees, successors-in-interest, co- 

2 conspirators and assigns, and all acts or omissions alleged herein were duly committed with the 

3 i ratification, knowledge, permission, encouragement, authorization, and consent of each defendant 

4 designated herein. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that the acts of 

5 each Defendants are legally attributable to the other Defendants. 

6 6. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that each of the Doe 

7 Defendants is legally responsible for die events and happenings referred to in this Complaint, and 

8 unlawfully caused the injuries and damages to Plaintiff and similarly situated employees as alleged 

9 in this Complaint. Plaintiff will file and serve an amendment to this Complaint alleging the true 

10 names and capacities of the Doe Defendants when such true names, capacities, and involvement is 

11 ascertained. 

12 • 7. PlabatiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez was jointly employed by Defendants at its facility 

13 in Vernon, California as a merchandiser from approximately November 2017 to September 2018. 

14. As a merchandiser, Plaintiff would drive to various storefronts throughout Los Angeles County in 

15 order to set up promotional signs and stock-up on merchandise under the Keurig-Dr. Pepper 

16 banner. At all times during his employment with Defendants, Plaintiff was a non-exempt 

17 employee, paid in whole or in part on an hourly basis. Plaintiff is an individual residing in the 

18 County of Los Angeles, California. 

19 8. Plaintiff brings this class action on behalf of himself and a Class, defined as: All 

20 persons who have been employed by The American Bottling Company and Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

21 Inc. in California as a non-exempt employee at any time during the period beginning four years 

22 prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the "Class 

23 Period"). 

24 9. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants jointly exercised control over die 

25 wages, hours, and working conditions of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; suffered and 

26 permitted Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to work; and otherwise engaged Plaintiff and 

27 similarly situated employees to work, so as to create an employer-employee relationship between 

28
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14. As a merchandiser, Plaintiff would drive to various storefronts throughout Los Angeles County in 

15 other to set up promotional signs and stock-up on merchandise under the Keurig-Dr. Pepper 

16 banner. At all times during his employment with Defendants, Plaintiff was a non-exempt 

17 employee, paid in whole or in part on an hourly basis. Plaintiff is an individual residing in die 

18 County of Los Angeles, California. 

19 S. Plaintiff brings this class action on behalf of himself and a Class, defined as: All 

20 persons who have been employed by The American Bottling Company and Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

21 Inc. in California as a non-exempt emplo3lec at any time during the period beginning four years 

22 prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as determined by die Court (die "Class 

23 Period"). 

24 9. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants jointly exercised control over die 

25 wages, hours, and working conditions of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; suffered and 

26 permitted Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to work; and otherwise engaged Plaintiff and 

27 similarly situated employees to work, so as to create an employer-employee relationship between 
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Defendants and Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. AL all relevant. times, Defendants were 

2 j "employers" of Plaintiff within the meaning of all applicable California state laws. 

3 III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4 10. This class action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 382. 

5 i The monetary damages and restitution sought by Plaintiff exceed the minimal jurisdiction limits of 

6 the Superior Court and will be established according to proof at trial. 

7 11. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under the California Constitution, Article 

8 VI, Section 10, which grants the Superior Court original jurisdiction in all causes except those 

9 given by statute to other courts. The statutes under which this action is brought do not specifically 

10 grant jurisdiction to any other court, and the issues are based solely on California statutes and law, 

11 including the California Labor Code, California 1VVC Wage Orders, California Code of Civil 

12 Procedure, California Civil Code, and the California Business and Professions Code. 

13: 12. The California Superior Court has jurisdiction over Defendants, because they are 

14 citizens of California, have sufficient minimum contacts in California, and otherwise intentionally 

15 avail themselves to die California market, including establishing their principal place of business 

16 and transacting business in California. Venue is proper in this Court, because Defendants transact 

17 business in the County of Los Angeles, including offering their services in the county, and during 

18 relevant time periods, Plaintiff was employed by'Defendants in the County of Los Angeles. 

19 IV. FACTUAL BACKGROUND  

20 13. At all relevant times set forth in this Complaint, Defendants employed Plaintiff and 

21 similarly situated employees as hourly, non-exempt employees. 

22 I 14. Plaintiff and each member of the Class were covered under one or more IWC 

23 Wage Orders and/or the California Labor Code provisions relating to wage-and-hour laws, and 

24 other applicable wage orders, regulations, and statutes, which imposed an obligation on the part of 

25 Defendants, among other things, to provide uninterrupted meal and rest periods, to pay overtime 

26 wages, to pay wages for all hours worked, and to provide accurate wage statements. 

27 15. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants are, 

28
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15 avail themselves to the California market, including establishing their principal place of business 
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17 business in the County of Los Angeles, including offering their services in die county, and during 

18 relevant time periods, Plaintiff was employed by Defendants in the County of Los Angeles. 

19 IV. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

20 13. At all relevant times set forth in this Complaint, Defendants employed Plaintiff and 

21 similarly situated employees as hourly, non-exempt employees. 

22 14. Plaintiff and each member of the Class were covered under one or more IWC 

23 Wage Others and/or the California Labor Code provisions relating to wage-and-hour laws, and 
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1 and at all times relevant hereto were, authorized to conduct business in the state of California, and 

2 does conduct business in the state of California. Specifically, Defendants maintains facilities and 

3 j conducts business in, and engages in illegal payroll practices or policies in the county of Los 

4 Angeles, State of California. 

5 16. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants 

6 I engaged in a uniform policy and systematic scheme of wage abuse against its non-exempt 

7 1 employees, including, without limitation, depriving their employees of uninterrupted thirty-minute 

8 meal periods for work periods of at least five hours; depriving their employees of ten-minute rest 

9 periods for work periods of four hours or major fractions; failing to compensate employees for all 

10 hours worked, including overtime wages; failing to provide timely, accurate itemized wage 

11 statements; and failing to pay, within the time constraints imposed by applicable laws, all earned 

12 compensation at separation of employment. 

13 17. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

14 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees the required meal periods or payment of one 

15 additional hour of pay at Plaintiff's and the other Class members' regular rate of Pay when a meal 

16 break was missed during the Class Period. This was a result of Defendants' uniform policy and 

17 practice of altering Plaintiffs and other Class members' time records by recording fictitious 30- 

18 minute meal breaks in Defendants' timekeeping system so as to create the appearance that 

19 Defendants provided Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 30-minute meal breaks when in fact 

20 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were not at all times provided 30-minute meal breaks. 

21 As a result of Defendants' demanding deadlines, Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were 

22 required to perform work as ordered by Defendants for more than five hours during a shift 

23 without receiving a duty-free, uninterrupted meal break and/or more than ten hours in a shift 

24 without receiving a second meal break. Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice for 

25 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to report missed meal periods or recover lost wages, and 

26 Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice to provide one hour of additional wages for each 

27 workday that the meal breaks were not provided. 

28 5 
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1 

18. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

2 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees rest periods of at least ten minutes per four 

3 hours worked, or major fraction thereof, and failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated 

4 employees one hour of additional wages at Plaintiff's and other Class members' regular rate of pay 

5 when a rest break was not provided during the Class Period. Defendants had no policy, 

6 procedure, or practice for Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to report missed rest breaks or 

7 recover lost wages, and Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice to provide one hour of 

8 additional wages for each workday that the rest break was not provided. 

9 19. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

10 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees' wages, including overtime wages, for all hours 

11 worked, meaning the time during which Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were subject to 

12 the control of Defendants, including all the time they were suffered or permitted to work. This 

13 was a result of Defendants' uniform policy and practice of requiring Plaintiff and similarly situated 

14 employees to work off-the-clock without paying them for all the time they were under Defendants' 

15 control performing pre-shift and post-shift duties and during purported meal breaks. Plaintiff and 

16 similarly situated employees were entitled to receive compensation for all hours worked, and that 

17 they did not receive compensation for all hours worked. Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

18 worked over eight hours in a day, and/or forty hours in a week during their employment with 

19 Defendants and Defendants failed to pay overtime wages to Plaintiff and similarly situated 

20 employees for all hours worked more than eight hours in a day and/or forty hours per week. 

21 20. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants had 

22 unlawfully failed to provide timely, accurate, itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and similarly 

23 situated employees. 

24 21. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants have 

25 failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees California's prevailing minimum wage for 

26 "all hours worked". Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were subject to Defendants' 

27 excessive expectation that its employees complete their assigned routes within predetermined 

28
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21 20. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants had 
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timeframe at all cost. As a result of Defendants' demands, Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees had their 30 minute meal breaks deducted so as to appear as if they took their duty-

free, uninterrupted meal breaks. Such deducted time expended by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees qualified as "hours worked" within the meaning of the California Labor Code and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, for which Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and similarly 

situated employees. 

22. As a direct result and proximate result of the unlawful actions of Defendants, 

Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings in 

amounts as yet unascertained, but subject to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

V. CLASS ALLEGATIONS  

23. Class Definition. The named individual Plaintiff brings this action on his own behalf 

and on behalf of all similarly-situated persons as a class action under California Code of Civil 

Procedure § 382. Plaintiff proposes the following class ("Class"): 

All persons who have been employed by Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. 
and The American Bottling Company in California as a non-exempt 
employee at any time during the period beginning four years prior 
to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as determined 
by the Court (the "Class Period"). 

24. Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or modify the class description with greater 

particularity or further division into subclasses. 

25. AscertainableClass. The proposed Class is ascertainable, because the members can 

be identified and located using information contained in Defendants' payroll and personnel 

records. 

26. Numerosity. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members would be impractical and unfeasible. While the precise number of Class members is 

currently unknown to Plaintiff, Plaintiff is informed and believes drat the Class is estimated to be 

greater than 50 individuals. A) 

27. Typicality. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the Class as Plaintiff and members of the 

Class were all subjected by Defendants to the same violations of die Labor Code, the applicable 
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timeframe at all cost As a result of Defendants' demands, Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees had their 30 minute meal breaks deducted so asia appear as if they took their duty-

free, uninterrupted meal breaks. Such deducted time expended by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees qualified as "hours worked" within the meaning of the California Labor Code and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, for which Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and similarly 

situated employees. 

All persons who have been employed by Kcurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. 
and The American Bottling Company in California as a non-exempt 
employee at any time during the period beginning four years prior 
to the filing of this Complaint and endingon the date as determined 
by the Court (the "Class Period"). 

Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or modify die class- description with greater 

particularity or further division into subclasses. 

Asceiithnah1e Class. The proposed Class is ascertainable, because the members can 

be identified and located using information contained in Defendants' payroll and personnel 

records. 

Numcrosily. The members.of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members would be impractical and unfeasible. While the precise number of Class members is 

currently unknown to Plaintiff, Plaintiff is informed and believes-  that the Class is estimated to be 

greater than 50 individuals. 

27. Typicalfty. Plaintiffs claims are typical of the Class as Plaintiff and members of the 

Class were all subjected by Defendants to the same violations of die Labor Code, the applicable 

S. 7 

CLASS ACTION AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 

As a direct result and proximate result of the unlawful actions of Defendants, 

Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings in 

amounts as yet unascertained, but subject to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

IYL fl1 I! *1 I I'J 1 

Class Definition. The named individual Plaintiff brings this action on his own behalf 

and on behalf of all similarly-situated persons as a class action under California Code of Civil 

Procedure § 382. Plaintiff proposes the following class ("Class"): 
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IWC Wage Order, and the Business and Professions Code. 

2 28. Adequacy of Representation. The named Plaintiff is fully prepared to take all 

3 necessary steps to represent fairly and adequately the interests of the Class, and has retained 

4 counsel who is experienced in class action and wage-and-hour litigation of this nature. Plaintiff 

5 does not have any interests adverse to the interests of the Class members and will fairly and 

6 adequately protect the interests of all Class members. 

7 29. Superiority. A class action is superior to other available means for the fair and 

8 efficient adjudication of this controversy. The potential class is a significant number. Individual 

9 joinder of all former and current employees is not practicable. 

10 30. Common Question of Law and Fact There are questions of law and fact common 

11 to the potential Class that predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of the 
• 

12 Class which focuses on Defendants' illegal practices and policies which were applied to all non- 

13 exempt employees in violation of the Labor Code, applicable IWC Wage Order, and the Business 

14 and Professions Code which prohibits unfair business practices arising from such violations. 

15 These common questions of law and fact, include, without limitation: 

16 a. Whether Defendants' policies and practices provide meal and rest periods in 

17 compliance with applicable laws; 

18 b. Whether Defendants deprived Plaintiff and similarly situated employees of 

19 meal or rest periods; 

20 c. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

21
adequate off-duty meal periods and missed meal period compensation; 

22
d. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of failing to 

23
properly compensate the Plaintiff and similarly situated employees for all hours 

24
worked; including overtime wages; 

c. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of encouraging 
25 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees not to report all time worked; 
26 

f. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees for 
27 

the work that Defendants required them to perform; 
28 

-8 
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1 IWC Wage Order, and the Business and Professions Code. 

2 28. Adequacy of Representation. The named Plaintiff is fully prepared to take all 

3 necessary steps to represent fairly and adequately the interests of the Class, and has retained 

4 counsel who is experienced in class action and wage-and-hour litigation of this nature. Plaintiff 

5 does not have any interests adverse to the interests of the Class members and will fairly and 

6 adequately protect the interests of all Class members. 

7 29. Superiority. A class action is superior to other available means for the fair and 

8 efficient adjudication of this controversy. The potential class is a significant number. Individual 

9 joinder of all former and current employees is not practicable. 

10 30. Common Question of Law and. Fact There are questions of law and fact common 

11 to the potential Class that predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of the 

12 Class which focuses on Defendants' illegal practices and policies which were applied to all non- 

13 exempt employees in violation of the Labor Code, applicable lWC Wage Order, and the Business 

14 and Professions Code which prohibits uMairbusines practices arising from such violations. 

15 These common questions of law and fact, include, without limitation: 

16 a. 'Whether Defendants' policies and practices provide meal and rest periods in 

17 compliance with applicable laws; 

18 b. Whether Defendants deprived Plaintiff and similarly situated employees of 

19 meal or rest periods; 

20 c. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

21 adequate off-duty meal periods and missed meal period compensation; 

22 
d. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of failing to 

23 
properly compensate the Plaintiff and similarly situated employees for all hours 

24 
worked; including overtime wages; 

c. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of encouraging 
25 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees not to report all time worked; 
26 

f. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated en ployees for 
27 

the work that Defendants required them to perform; 
28 

-8 

CLASS ACTION AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLA.rNT FOR DAMAGES 

Case 2:19-cv-04358   Document 1-1   Filed 05/20/19   Page 12 of 107   Page ID #:39



     

2 

3 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

  

g. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of threatening 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees with discharge, demotion, or 

discrimination or otherwise intimidating them if they do not work off-the-clock; 

h. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation when Plaintiff and similarly situated employees worked 

in excess of eight hours in a day or forty in a workweek; 

i. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation at double their regular rate of pay when Plaintiff and 

similarly situated employees worked in excess of twelve hours in a day or in 

'excess of eight on the seventh consecutive day of work in a workweek; 

j. Whether Defendants included all required compensation in calculating the 

overtime rate of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; 

k. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

with accurate itemized wage statements; 

1. Whether Defendants failed to reimburse for business expenditures and losses; 

m. Whether Defendants acted with malice, oppression, or fraud; 

n. Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code SS 201-204, 226.7, 227.3, 

210, 510, 512, 551, 552, 1118.12, 1194 et seq., 1197, and 1198; 

o. Whether Defendants violated Industrial Welfare Commission Orders; 

p. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair business practices in violation of 

California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq.; and 

q. The nature and extent of the injury suffered by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees and the measure of damages for the injury. 

31. The nature of this action and the format of laws available to Plaintiff and members 

of die Class make the class action format a particularly efficient and an appropriate procedure to 

redress the wrongs alleged herein. If each member of the Class were required to file an individual 

lawsuit, Defendants would necessarily gain an unconscionable advantage since they would be able 

to exploit and ovenvhelin the limited resources of each individual plaintiff with their vastly superior 

  

9 
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g. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of threatening 

2 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees with discharge, demotion, or 

discrimination or otherwise intimidating them if they do not work off-die-clock, 

Ii. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

S overtime compensation when Plaintiff and similarly situated employees worked 

21 
in excess of eight hours in a day or forty in a workweek, 

i. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation at double their regular rate of pay when Plaintiff and 

9 
similarly situated employees worked in excess of twelve hours in a day or in 

excess of eight on the seventh consecutive day of work in a workweek; 
10 

j. Whether Defendants included all required compensation in calculating the 
11 

overtime rate of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; 
12 

k. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

13 
with accurate itemized wage statements; 

14 1. Whether Defendants failed to reimburse for business expenditures and losses; 

15 in. Whether Defendants acted with malice, oppression, or fraud; 

16 n. Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code SS 201-204,226.7, 227.3, 

17 210,510,512, 551,552,1118.12,1194 ctscq., 1197, and 1198; 

18 o. Whether Defendants violated Industrial Welfare Commission Others; 

19 P. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair business practices in violation of 

20 California Business & Professions Code SS 17200, ctscq.; and 

21 q. The nature and extent of the injury suffered by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

22 employees and- die measure of damages for die injury. 

23 31. The nature of this action and the format of laws available to Plaintiff and members 

24 of the Class make the class action format a particularly efficient and an appropriate procedure to 

25 redress the wrongs alleged herein. If each member of the Class were required to ifie an individual 

26 lawsuit, Defendants would necessarily gain an unconscionable advantage since they would be able 

27 to exploit and overwhelm the limited resources of each individual plaintiff with their vastly superior 

28 
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financial and legal resources Requiring each Class member to pursue an individual remedy would 

also discourage the assertion of lawful claims by employees who would be disinclined to file an 

3 action against their former or current employer for real and justifiable fear of retaliation and 

4 permanent damage to their careers at subsequent employment 

5 32. Plaintiff is unaware of any difficulties in managing this case that should preclude class 

6 I action. 

7 i VI. CAUSES OF ACTION  

8 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Pay Minimum Wage 

9 (Cal. Labor Code §§ 204, 1194 et seq., 1197, 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No..1-2001, § 4) 

10 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

11 33. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

12 though set forth fully herein: Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

13 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

14 34. California Libor Code § 204, IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 4, and other applicable 

15 laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked. 

16 35. California Labor Code § 1197 further provides, "The minimum wage for employees 

17 fixed by the commission or by any applicable state or local law, is the minimum wage to be paid to 

18 employees, and the payment of a lower wage than the minimum so fixed is unlawful." 

19 36. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

20 wages, including interest, and the cost of suit.. California Labor Code § 1198 further provides that 

21 the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 

22 37. Defendants failed to, and continue to fail to pay Plaintiff and Class members 

23 minimum wages for all hours worked by, among other things: requiring, suffering, or permitting 

24 Plaintiff and Class members to work off-the-clock; requiring, suffering or permitting Plaintiff and 

25 Class members to work through meal breaks; illegally and inaccurately recording time worked by 

26 Plaintiff and Class members; failing to properly maintain Plaintiffs and Class members' records; 

27 failing to provide itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and Class members for each pay period; 

28 and other methods to be discovered. 

CLASS ACTION AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 

10 

I financial and legal resources. Requiring each Class member to pursue an individual remedy would 

2 also disccwnge the assertion of lawful claims by employees who would be disinclined to file an 

3 action against their former or current employer for real and justifiable fear of retaliation and 

4 permanent damage to their careers at subsequent employment. 

5 32. Plaintiff is unaware of any difficulties in managing this case that should preclude class 

6 action. 

7 VI. CAUSES OFACTION 

8 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

9 
Failure to Pay Minimum Wage 

(Cal. Labor Code §S 204, 1194 ctscq., 1197, 1197.1, 1198, 1\'VC Wage Order No.. 1-2001, § 4) 

10 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

11 33. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

12 though set forth fully herein: Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

13 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

14 34. California Labor Code § 204, )WC Wage Order 1-2001, § 4, and other applicable 

15 laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked. 

16 35. California Labor Code § 1197 further provides, "The minimum wage for employees 

17 
fixed by the commission or by any applicable state or local law, is the minimum wage to be paid to 

18 employees, and the payment of a lower wage than the minimum so fixed is unlassThl." 

19 36. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

20 wages, including interest, and the cost of suiL California Labor Code § 1198 further provides that 

21 
the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 

22 37.Defendants failed to, and continue to fail to pay Plaintiff and Class members 

23 
minimum wages for all hours worked by, among other things: requiring, suffering, or permitting 

24 Plaintiff and Class members to work off-the-doclq requiring, suffering or permitting Plaintiff and 

25 
Class members to work through meal breaks; illegally and inaccurately recording time worked by 

26 Plaintiff and Class members; failing to properly maintain Plaintiffs and Class remben' records; 

27 failing to provide itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and Class members for each pay period; 

28 and other methods to be discovered. 
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1 38. Defendants knew or should have known that Plaintiff and Class members worked 

2 hours for which they were not compensated. 

3 i 39. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

4 iLabor Code §§ 1194 and 1197 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, §4. Asa proximate result of 

5 the aforementioned violations, Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount 

6 according to proof at trial. Therefore, pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 200, 203, 226, 558, 

7 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions under the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 

8 No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed 

9 to them by Defendants, plus interest, penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

10 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

11
Failure to Pay Overtime Wair-s 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 510, 204, 1194 et seq., 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3) 
12 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

13 40. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

14 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

15 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

16 41. California Labor Code § 204, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3, and other 

17 applicable laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all 

18 hours worked. 

19 42. California Labor Code § 510 provides that employees in California shall not be 

20 employed more than eight hours per workday or forty hours per workweek unless they receive 

21 additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts specified by law. 

22 43. California Labor Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not 

23 be employed more than twelve hours per workday unless they receive wages at double their regular 

24 rate of pay. 

25 4,4. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

26 f wages, induding overtime compensation and interest, and the cost of suit California Labor Code 

27 § 1198 further provides that the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the 

28 IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 

CLASS ACTION AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 

38. Defendants knew or should have known that Plaintiff and Class members worked 

hours for which they were not compensated. 

39. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

4 Labor Code SS 1194 and 1197 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, §4. As a proximate result of 

the aforementioned violations, Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount 

according to proof at trial. Therefore, pursuant to California Labor Code §S 200, 203, 226, 558, 

7 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions under die Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 

No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed 

to them by Defendants, plus interest, penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

10 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

1•1 (Cal. Labor Code §S 510, 204, 1194 et seq., 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3) 
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages 

(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 12 

40. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and - re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 13 

though set forth hilly herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 14 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 15 
41. California Labor Code § 204, 1WC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3, and other 16 

applicable laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all 17 

hours worked. 18 

42. California Labor Code § .510 provides that employees in California shall not be 19 

employed more than eight hours per workday or forty hours per workweek unless they receive 20 

additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts specified by law. 21 

43. California Labor Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not 22 

be employed more than twelve hours per workday unless they receive wages at double their regular 23 

rate of pay. 24 

44. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 25 
wages, including overtime compensation and interest, and-the cost of suit California Labor Code 26 

§ 1198 further provides that die employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the 27 

IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 28 
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45. Plaintiff and Class members are current and former non-exempt employees entitled 

2 to the protections of California Labor Code §§ 510 and 1194, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

3 46. Defendants maintained and enforced policies and practices of refusing to pay 

4 Plaintiff and Class members for all hours worked. Defendants employed Plaintiff and Class 

5 members for more than eight hours per day and more than 40 hours per workweek during die 

6 operative timefrarnc, but Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and Class members the correct 

7 applicable overtime rate for the number of overtime hours they worked as required by the 

8 f California Labor Code and the applicable IWC Wage Order. 

9 47. Defendants thus required Plaintiff and Class members to work under conditions 

10 prohibited by order of die IWC, in violation of those orders. 

11 48. Defendants owe Plaintiff and Class members overtime wages, have failed and 

12 refused, and continues to fail and refuse, to pay the overtime wages owed. Additionally, 

13 Defendants did not include all the required compensation in calculating the overtime rate of 

14 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. 

15 49. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

16 Labor Code §§ 510, 1194 and 1198 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3. Therefore, pursuant 

17 to California Labor Code §§ 200, 203, 226, 558, 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions 

18 under the labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are 

19 entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed to them by Defendants, plus interest, 

20 penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Provide Meal Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226.7, 512, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 11) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

50. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

51. Plaintiff and Class members regularly worked greater than five hours and on 

occasion greater than ten hours per day. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 512, an employer 
12 
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Plaintiff and Class members are current and fomier non-exempt employees entitled 

2 to the protections of California Labor Code §5510 and 1194, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

Defendants maintained and enforced policies and practices of refusing to pay 

Plaintiff and Class members for all hours worked. Defendants employed Plaintiff and Class 

members for more than eight hours per day and more than 40 hours per workweek during die 

M operative timeframe, but Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and Class members the correct 

7 applicable overtime rate for the number of overtime hours they worked as required by die 

California Labor Code and the applicable IWC Wage Order. 

Defendants thus required Plaintiff and Class members to work under conditions 

prohibited by order of the IWC, in violation of those orders. 

Defendants owe Plaintiff and Class members overtime wages, have failed and 

refused, and continues to fail and refuse, to pay the overtime wages owed. Additionally, 

Defendants did not include all the required compensation in calculating the oveninie rate of 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. 

Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

Labor Code §5 510, 1194 and 1198 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3. Therefore, pursuant 

to Calilbrnia Labor Code §5.200, 203, 226, 558, 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions 

under the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are 

entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed to them by Defendants, plus interest, 

penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Provide Meal Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code §5226.7,512, tM/C Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 11) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class-action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

Plaintiff and Class members regularly worked greater than five hours and on 

occasion greater than ten hours per day. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 512, an employer 
12 
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may not. employ someone for a shift of more than five hours without providing him or her with a 

meal period of not less than thirty minutes or for more than ten hours without providing him or 

her with a second meal period of not less than thirty minutes. 

52. Despite the requirements of the applicable IWC Wage Order and California Labor 

Code §§ 512 and 226.7, Defendants required, permitted or otherwise suffered Plaintiff and Class 

members to take less than the 30 minute meal period, or to work through them, and have failed to 

otherwise provide the required meal periods to Plaintiff and Class members. 

53. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members were required to work 

through or cut short their meal breaks due to Defendants' requirement that Plaintiff and Class 

members complete their assignments within predetermined amount of time, without taking into 

consideration such factors as travel time, and need to stop for meal breaks. Defendants failed to 

'factor in such impediments, or enact protocols that would have allowed Plaintiff and Class 

members to report missed, delayed, or interrupted meal breaks. 

54. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have 

sustained economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an 

amount according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each 

day in which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further 

entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021-5,-and pursuant to Labbr 

Code section 2699(8)(1), Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of 

the California labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
Failure to Provide Rest Periods 

(Cal. LabOr Code § 226.7, 512; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12) 
(By Plaintiff and the ClaSs AgainSt Each Defendant) 

55. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
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may not. employ someone for a shift of more than five hours without providing him or her with a 

2 meal period of not less than thirty minutes or for more than ten hours without providing him or 

3 her with a second meal period of not less than thirty minutes. 

4 52. Despite the requirements of the applicable 1WC Wage Order and California Labor 

5 Code SS 512 and 226.7, Defendants required, permitted or otherwise suffered Plaintiff and Class 

6 members to take less than die 30 minute meal period, or to work through them, and have failed to 

otherwise provide the required meal periods to Plaintiff and Class members. 

During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members were required to work 

through or cut short their meal breaks due to Defendants' requirement that Plaintiff and Class 

members complete their assignments Wit1IkI predetermined amount of time, without taking into 

consideration such factors as travel time, and need to stop for meal breaks. Defendants failed to 

factor in such impediments, or enact protocols that would have allowed Plaintiff and Class 

members to report missed, delayed, or interrupted meal breaks 

Pursuant to California Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have 

sustained economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an 

amount according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each 

day in which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further 

entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 10213,-and pursuant to Labbr 

Code section 26991g)(1),  Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of 

the California Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Provide Rest Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code § 226.7,512; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12) 
(By Plaintiff and die Class Againt Each Defendant) 

Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
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1 56. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 (A) , "le'very employer shall 

2 authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall he in the 

3 middle of each work period.. . . (The] authorized rest period time shall be based on the total 

4 hours worked daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours worked or major 

5 fraction thereof.. . . Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours worked, for which 

6 there shall be no deduction from wages." California Labor Code § 226.7(a) prohibits an employer 

7 from requiring any employee to work during any rest period mandated by an applicable order of 

8 the IWC. Under these laws, Defendant was required to authorize and permit Plaintiff and Class 

9 members to take rest periods, based upon the total hours worked at a rate of ten minutes' net rest 

10 per four hours, or major fraction thereof, with no deduction from wages. 

11 .57. During the Covered Period, Defendant provided Plaintiff and Class members with 

12 policies that did not permit first or second rest breaks for shifts between six and eight hours or 

13 third rest breaks for shifts over ten hours. 

14 58. Defendants violated, and continue to violate California Labor Code § 226.7 and 

15 IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 by failing to pay Plaintiff and Class members who were not 

16 provided with a rest break, in accordance with die applicable wage order, one additional hour of 

17 compensation at each employees' regular rate of pay for each workday that a rest period was not 

18 provided. 

19 59. Pursuant to Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have sustained 

20 economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an amount 

21 according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in 

22 which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further entitled to 

23 attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, and pursuant to Labor Code section 

24 2699(8)(1), Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and 

25 costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of the California Labor 

26 Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

27 

28
14 
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1 56. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 (A) , "ejvery employer shall 

2 authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall he in the 

3 middle of each work period... . ITliel authorized rest period time shall be based on the total 

4 hours worked daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours worked or major 

5 fraction thereof.... Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours worked, for which 

6 there shall be no deduction from wages." California Labor Code § 226.7(a) prohibits an employer 

7 from requiring any employee to work during any rest period mandated by an applicable order of 

8 the IWC. Under these laws, Defendant was required to authorize and permit Plaintiff and Class 

9 members to take rest periods, based upon the total hours worked at a the of ten minutes' net rest 

10 per four hours, or major fraction thereof, with no deduction from wages. 

11 .57. During the Covered Period, Defendant provided Plaintiff and Class members with 

12 policies that did not permit first or second rest breaks for shifts between six and eight hours or 

13 third rest breaks for shifts over ten hours. 

14 58. Defendants violated, and continue to violate California. Labor Code § 226.7 and 

15 IWC Wage Other No. 1-2001, § 12 by failing to pay Plaintiff and Class members who were not 

16 provided with a rest break, in accordance with the applicable wage order, one additional hour of 

17 compensation at each employees' regular rate of pay for each workday that a rest period was not 

18 provided. 

19 59. Pursuant to Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have sustained 

20 economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an amount 

21 according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in 

22 which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are fuither entitled to 

23 attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, and pursuant to Labor Code section 

24 2699)(1), Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable aliorneys' fees and 

25 costs relating to theirclaims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of the California Labor 

26 Code and IIWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

27 

28 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226 & 226.3, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 7) 
(By Plaintiff and die Class Against Each Defendant) 

60. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

61. California Labor Code § 226(a) and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B) require 

employers semimonthly or at the time of each payment of wages to furnish each employee with a 

statement itemizing, among other things, all applicable hourly rates. Labor Code § 226(b) provides 

that if an employer knowingly and intentionally fails to provide a statement itemizing, among other 

things, all applicable hourly rates, then the employee is entitled to recover the greater of all actual 

damages or fifty dollars for the initial violation and one hundred dollars for each subsequent 

violation, up to four thousand dollars. 

62. Defendants knowingly and intentionally.failed to furnish Plaintiff and Class 

members with timely, itemized statements as required by Califoniia Labor Code § 226(a) and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B). As a result, Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and to the Class 

for the amounts provided by Labor Code § 226(b) and for penalties, and attorneys' fees. 

63. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members suffered, and continue to 

suffer, injury as a result of Defendants' failure to.provide timely and accurate itemized wage 

statements, as Plaintiff and Class members could not promptly and easily determine from the wage 

statement alone one or more of the. following: the gross wages earned, the total hours worked, all 

deductions made, the net wages earned, the name and address of the legal entity or entities 

employing Plaintiff and Class members, and/or all applicable hourly rates in effect during cad' pay 

period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate. 

64. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, 

Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial, and seek 

all wages earned and due, plus interest. thereon. Additionally, Plaintiff and Class members are 

entitled to all available statutory and civil penalties, including but not limited to statutory and civil 
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16 IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B). As a result, Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and to die Class 
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18 63. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members suffered, and continue to 

19 suffer, injury as aresult of Defendants' failure to provide timely and accurate itemized wage 

20 staements, as Plaintiff and Class members could not promptly and easily determine from the wage 

21 statement alone one or more of the. following- the gross wages earned, the total hours worked, all 

22 deductions made, the net wages earned, the name and address of the legal entity or entities 

23 
employing Plaintiff and Class members, and/or all applicable hourly rates in effect during each pay 

24 period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate. 

25 64. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, 

26 
Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial, and seek 

27 all wages earned and due, plus interest, thereon. Additionally, Plaintiff and Class members are 

28 entitled to all available statutory and civil penalties, including but not limited to statutory and civil 
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penalties pursuant to California Labor Code § 226(e) and 1174.5, and an award of costs, expenses, 

and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in California Labor 

Code § 226(e), as well as other available remedies. 
SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Failure to Maintain Required Records 
(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226, 1174, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 7) 

(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

65. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

66. As part of Defendants' illegal policies and practices to deprive Plaintiff of all wages 

earned and due, Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to maintain records as required 

under California Labor Code §§ 226 and 1174 and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7, including but 

not limited to the following records, total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of 

pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each employee begins and ends each 

work period; and accurate itemized statements. 

67. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff has 

been damaged in an amount accofding to proof at trial, and is entitled to all wages earned and due, 

plus interest thereon. 

68. Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all available statutory penalties, including but not 

limited to civil penalties pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 226(2) and 1174.5, and an award of 

costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in 

California Labor Code § 226(e), as well as other remedies available. 

5EVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Pay All Wages Due to Discharged and Quitting Employees 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 201,202, 203) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

69. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
16 
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earned and due, Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to maintain records as required 
11 

under California Labor Code §5 226 and 1174 and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, 5 7, including but 
12 

not limited to the following records,-total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of 
13 

pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each employee begins and ends each 
14 

work period; and accurate itemized statements. 
15 
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16 
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19 
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70. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 201, 202, and 203, Defendants are required to 

2 pay all earned and unpaid wages to discharged and quitting employees. 

3 71. California Labor Code § 201 mandates that if an employer discharges an employee, 

4 the employee's wages accrued and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable 

5 immediately. 

6 72. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 202, Defendants are required to pay all 

7 accrued wages due to an employee no later than 72 hours after die employee quits his or her 

8 employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours previous notice Of his or her intention to 

9 quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages at the time of quitting. 

10 73. California Labor Code § 203 provides that if an employer willfully fails to pay, in 

11 accordance with California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202, any wages of an employee who 

12 discharged or who quits, die employer is liable for waiting time penalties in the form of continued 

13 compensation to the employee at the same rate for up to 30 workdays. 

14 74. During the Class Period, Defendants have willfully failed, and continue to willfully 

15 fail, to pay accrued wages and other compensation to Plaintiff and Class members in accordance 

16 with California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202. 

17 75. As a result, Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to all available statutory 

18 penalties, including the waiting time penalties provided in California Labor Code § 203, together 

19 with interest thereon, as well as other available remedies. 

20
EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION. 

21 Unfair and Unlawful Business Practices 
(Cal. Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq.) 

22 (By Plaintiff and die Class Against Each Defendant) 

23 76. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

24 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as representative cause of action on behalf 

25 of himself and all Class members. 

26 77. A violation of California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., may be 

27 predicated on the violation of any state or federal law. Defendants' policies, activities, and actions 

28
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as alleged herein, arc violations of California law and constitute unlawful business acts and 

2 practices in violation of California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. Defendants 

3 have engaged and continues to engage in unfair and unlawful business practices in California by 

4 practicing, employing, and utilizing the employment practices outlined above, including failing to 

5 pay reporting time pay, and failing to provide meal and rest breaks in violation of the applicable 

6 IWC Wage Order and California Labor Code. 

7 78. Defendants' violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business 

8 practice because Defendants' aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly over a 

9 significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to die detriment of Plaintiff and Class 

10 members. 

11 79. Defendants have avoided payment of wages, overtime wages, meal and rest break 

12 premium payments, and other benefits as required by the California Labor Code, the California 

13 Code of Regulations, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. Furthermore, Defendants have failed to 

14 record, report, and pay the correct sums of assessment to the state authorities under die California 

15 Labor. Code and other applicable regulations. 

16 80. Defendants' unfair and unlawful business practices, as alleged in this Complaint, 

17 have allowed Defendant to reap in unfair and illegal profits during die Class Period at the expense 

18 of Plaintiff; Class members, and members of the public. Defendants should be made to disgorge 

.19 their ill-gotten gains and restore them to Plaintiff and Class members. Plaintiff seeks to enforce 

20 important rights affecting the public.interest within the meaning of the California Code of Civil 

21 Procedure § 1021.5 

22 81. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., Plaintiff 

23 and Class members are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained by Defendants 

24 during the Class Period; an award of attorneys' fees pursuant to California Labor Code § 1194; 

25 and California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5; interest; and an award of costs. 

26 NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Indemnify Employees for Necessary Expenditures Incurred In Charge of Duties 

27 (Cal. Labor Code §§ 221, 450, 1198, 2802, 1194.5; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 9) 
(By Plaintiff Against Each Defendant) 

28 
18 
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82. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

2 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

3 83. California Labor Code § 2802(a) requires an employer to indemnify an employee 

4 for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by an employee in direct consequence of the 

5 discharge of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of the employer. 

6 California Labor Code § 221 makes it unlawful for employers to collect or receive from an 

7 . employee any part of wages paid. California Labor Code § 450 makes it unlawful for an employer 

8 to compel or coerce employees to purchase anything of value from the employer. 

• 9 i 84. Defendants have knowingly and willfully failed and continue to fail to indemnify 

10 Plaintiff for all business expenses and/or losses incurred in direct consequence of the discharge of 

11 Plaintiff's duties while working under the direction of Defendants, including but not limited to, by 

12 failing to reimburse employees for use of their personal mobile phone for work purposes. Plaintiff 

13 and other Class members were required to use their personal mobile phones for the purpose of 

14 communicating with management, and for the purpose of using GPS to help fmd their assigned 

15 work locations. Defendants have failed and continue to fail to reimburse Plaintiff for the time 

16 spent and the reasonable expenses incurred in utilising their personal mobile phones in violation 

17 of California Labor Code § 2802 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 9. 

18 85. By requiring Plaintiff to pay for work-related expenses without reimbursement, 

19 Defendants, pursuant to, its policy and practice, willfully violated and continue to violate California 

20 Labor Code §§ 221, 450, and 2802. 

21 86. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff* has 

22 been damaged in an amount according to, proof at trial, and seeks reimbursement of all necessary 

23 expenditures, coerced payments, and unlawful deductions, plus interest thereon pursuant to 

24 California Labor Code §§ 221, 450, and 2802(b). Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all available 

25 statutory penalties and award of costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees, including those 

26 j provided in California Labor Code § 2802(c), as well as other available remedies. Pursuant to 

27 California Labor Code § 1194.5, Plaintiff is also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive 

28 19 
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relief against further violations of the laws and wage orders alleged herein. 

2 VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

3 Wherefore, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all other members of the Class, and on 

4 behalf of aggrieved employees, pray for an award and judgment against Defendants jointly as 

5 follows: 

6 1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be ascertained at trial; 

7 2. For restitution of all monies due to Plaintiff and Class members, as well as 

8 disgorged profits from defendants' unfair and unlawful business practices; 

9 3. For punitive damages on applicable causes of action; 

10 4. For declaratory relief; 

11 5. For statutory and civil penalties according to proof, including but not limited to all 

12 penalties authorized by die California Labor Code § 226(e); 

13 6. For preliminary and.permanent injunctive relief enjoining Defendants from , 

14 violating the relevant provisions of the California Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001 

15 and from engaging in the unlawful business practices complained of herein; 

16 7. For an award of interest, including prejudgment interest, at the legal rate; 

17 8. For an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs on die applicable causes of 

18 action pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 1194 and 2802, California Civil Code 1021.5, and 

19 any other applicable provisions providing for attorneys' fees and costs; 

20 9. For costs of suit incurred; 

21 10. For an order appointing Plaintiff as class representative and Plaintiff's counsel as 

22 class counsel; and 

23 11. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and appropriate. 

24 

25 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

26 Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial in this matter on all matters triable to a jury. 

27 
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chosen. 

Applicable Reasons for Choosing Court Filing Location (Column C) 

Class actions must be filed In the Stanley Mask Courthouse, Central DiattiCt 

Pennissr,,e filing in central district. 

Location where cause of action arase. 

Mandatary personal injury filing In North Olstt& 

Location where pertbtmanoe required or defendant resides. 

S. Location of property or permanently garaged vehicle.  

Location where petitioner resides. 

Location wherein defendant/respondent functions wholly, 

Location where one or more of the patios reside. 

Location of Labor Commissioner Office.  

Mandatory filing location (Hub cases - unlawful detalner, limited 
non-collection, limited collection, or personal injury). 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2/16) CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 

LAW Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 1 of 4 
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SHORT TITLE 
GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE NUMBER 

CM Cape CoverSheet 
detagotyNo. 

Type or Action 
(Check oily one) 

C APpilrible 
Reasons= See Step 3' 

Above 

Business Tort (07) 0 A6029 Other Commerciale3usinetrd Tort (rot fraud/breach of contract) 1, 2, 3 

I72  Civi Rights (08) 0 M005 CM Rights/Discrimination 1, 2, 3 

3,1 Defamation (13) 0 A8010 Defamaton (slanderNbel) 1, 2, 3 
'9 5 

7_ Freud (18) 0 A8013 Fraud (no contract) 1, 2, 3 

3 
I i 

t 
Professional Negligence (25) 

0 A6017 Legal Malpractice 

0 A8050 Other Professional Malpractice (not medi or cal legal) 

1, 2, 3 

1,2,3 

2 
Other (35) 0 A8025 Other Non-Personid Injury/Property Damage  tort 1, 2, 3 

Wrongful Termination (36) 0 A8037 Wrongful Termination 1. 2, 3 • 

1 

Other Employment (15) 
Q A6024 -Other Employment Complaint Case 

.0 M109 'Lebec Cornintisioner Appeals 

1, 2, 3 

10 

Breach olContrect/ VVerranty 
(06) 

(not Insurance) 

0 A6004 Breach of Rental/LeaseContract (not unlawful detainer or wrongful 
evIceon) 

0 A6066 ContractiWarrenly Breech -Seller Plaintiff (no fraudhurgagence) 

0 A6019 Negligent Breach of ContracteNairanty (no fraud) 

0 A6028 Other Breach of ContractiWarrenty (not fraud or negligence) 

2,5 

2, 5 

1, 2. 5 

1, 2, 5 

Collectlocts (09) 
0 A6002 Collections Casa:Seller Plaintiff 

0 A6012 Other Promissory Note/CdiectIons Case 

0 A6034 Collections Case-eurdased Dahl (Charged Off Con StMer Debt 
Purchased on or after January 1, 2014) 

5, 6, 11 

5, 11 

5, 6, 11 

Insurance Coverage (18) 0 Aso-I 5 Insurance.  CoVeragn (not carioax) 1, 2,5,8 

OthetCardract (37) 

0 A6009 Contractualfraud 

0 A8031 Tortioustnterference 

0 A6027 Otherecintractbispute(not breachAnsuranceffraud/negligence) 

1, 2, 3, 5 

1, 2, 3, 5 

1, 2.3, 8, 9 

-Defeat DatiatkVIriverea • .0 A7300 Emlnent.DeniiiniConcleareation Numbei of Faucets 2, 6 Conderthietiort (44) 

1 

. . 
Wrongiul Eviction (33) 0 A6023. Wroinfie EVIceon Case 2, 6 

I
0 

Other Real Property (26) 

A6618 Mortgage Foredosuit 

0 A0032 Oulet Title 

O Asoqo Other RealProperly (not othincnt domain, tinclicird/tenant, foradosure) 
.. . . 

2,6 

2,6 

'2,8 

ii c 
"read  DarePccinisidal 

(31)  . . 
0 Moil Unfair/ha Detelnentorairterclii (not drugs or %ironed evicton) .8,11 

1 o0- Unlawful Detainer-Reitidenflal 
(32) . A8020 UntawfulDelainer-Realdentral (not drugs or wrongful eviction) 6, 11 

I 
Unlawful Detainer- 

Pest-ForeCloeure (14i 
0 .A0020FUreawful Detainer-Post-Foreclosure 2, 8, 11 

Unlawful Detalner-Drws (38) I 0 A8022 Unlawful Detainer-On/6s 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2/16) CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 
LASC Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 2 of 4 

[sHrnyLe 
GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASZMJS4OER 

A.: C Applicable 
CM CAse Cover Sheet - Type olActon Reasons m See Step 3 

Catego.yNo. (Check only ore) 
, 

Above 

Business Tort (07) 0 M029 Other cwimerciakThMness Tort (riot fraudlbroath of contmct) 1,2.3 

Civil Rights (08) 0 .48005 CM RlghtsitlscThllnatfr3ri 1, 2.3 

Defamation (13) 0 A8010 Defamation (slandermbel) 1,2,3 

Fraud (16) 0 A8013 Fraud (no contract) 1,2,3 

§3: o A6017 Legal Malpractice 1,2,3 
PtufosslonalNegUgenoe(25) 

IL 0 A8050 OtherPmsbwl Malpractice (not medIlor lega l) 11,2,3 

Other (35) 0 *5025 Other Non-Peaonil Ir4uryIPropecly Danlaoe tort 
j 

I, Z 3 

Wrongful Ternilnation (36) 0 .46037 Wrongful Termination 1. 2, 3 

Q *5024 -Other Empcna1  Comp Int Case 1. 2,3 
Other Employment (15) 

• .0 *5109 liborConimlzsionerAppoels 10 

o *6004 Breath of Rental/Lease Contract (not unlawful detalnororwrorftjt 2,5 eviction) 
Breach of Contract/ Warranty 2,5 

(06) o Aaobe Contzncvwarranty Breech -Soler Plaintiff (no fraud/negflgence) 
(not insurance) 0 *6019 Negligent Breath of Contract/Warranty (no fraud) 1. 2. 5 

0 A6028 Other Breath of ConfracbWarmnty (not fraud or negligence) 1,2.5 

0 *6002 COIIeCdOcTS Case-Seller Plaintiff 5.6. 11 

J 
Coflectlons (09) 

0 *5012 Other Promissory NotaJColiedns Case S. 11 

0 *5034 coliectloin Case-Purchased Debt (Charged Off Constaner Debt j5.6. 11 
Pwdierd en swjamsery_1.2014)  _or 

ftinnee Conage (18) 0 M01 5 InSUMMEto'Mte (not ca'nØe) 1,2,5,8 

0 *6009 CoitmotuMFmud 1,2.3,6 

Other,Contmd (37) 0 *8031 Torllous Interference 1.2,3,5 

o *5027 Other Contract blzpute(not b.eathAnsurarcSTiaud/neglerce) 1,2,3,8,9 

Eminent Domafl&iveme 
Condemnation (14) •Q *7300 Eminent DcmIliQondenñdon Numbet of parfs 

. 
2,6 

J WrongfulEvldlon(33) Li A8023. Wrongful Eviction Case 2.6 I 
0 *6618 Mortgage Foreclosure 2,6 

Othar Real Property(26) 0 *6032 QuletTitie 2.6 

Cl Mo OthérReal Piopeny (rwlosnlnontdanain, landlozdutsnant,f&udosura) 2,6 

UniewM DOStW-Ccmmerdaf a *5021 UnISM Dsalner-ComrnerdS (not dnigs or .âvs'9ftd eviction) .6. 11 
C 

j 
a 

unlawful DeWner-ReSdenflal 
(32) . 

0-  *8020 UnfawfulDethiAer-ReSdentfal (not drugs or wrongful Salon) 
. 

61 11 

j
Unlawful DeWner' -M020FUnlawful De(alner-Post'Foqedosuru 2, 6, II 

( Untaw*d Detalmsc-C.ugs (38)_(a M0fl Unlawful Detalner-Oncs j2611 
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CASE MASER &IOW TITLE: 
• GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

Securities Litigation (28) O A803$ Securities Litigation Case 1, 2, 8 

Task Tort 
Environmental (30) O A6036 Toac Tort/Environmental 1, 2, 3, 8 

Insurance Coverage Claims 
from Complex Case (41).  

O M014 Insurance Coverega/Subrogation (complex case only) 1,2,.5,8 

LACR/109 (Rev 2/16) 

LASC Approved 03-04 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM 
AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION 

Local Rule 2.3 

Page 3 of 4 

• CNII eine Cover Sheet 
citte907 No. • . . • - . 

Type of Action 
(Check any one) 

' '' 'CAPPEkinia ' 
ReaSons ‘ See Step3 

Above 

Asset Forfeiture (05) 0 A8108 Asset Forielture Case 2, 3, 8 

Petition re Arbitration (11) 0 A.8115 Petition to ComPel/ContinnNacats Arbitration 2, 5 

Writ of Mandate (02) 

0 M151 Writ- AdmiNstrative Mandamus 

0 A6152 Writ- Mandamus on Limited Court Case Mater 

0 A6153 Writ- Other Limited Court Case Review 

2,8 

2 

2 

Other Judicial Review (39) 0 A6150 Other Writ /JudicbtlReview 2, 8 

Ando-inn/Trade Regulation (03) b A6003 Andtrust/Trade Regulation 1, 2, 8 

CcInstruction Defect (10) 0 M007 Construction Defect 1, 2, 3 

Claims Involving Mass tort 0 A6006 Claims Involving Mass Tort (40) 1, 2, 8 

Enforcement 
of Judgment (20) 

b A8141 Sisfer State Judgment 

-0 M160 Abstract of Judgment 

-0 A8167 Confession of Judgment (non-domestic rotations) 

0 A6140 AdmIntabative Agent),  Award (not unpaid taxes) 

0 A6114 Petitionlearyficatelor Entry of Judgment on Unpaid Tax 

0 A6112 other Enforcement ofJudgment Case 

2, 5, 11 

2, 6 

2, 9 

2, 8 

2, 8 

2, 8, 9 

RICO (27) ❑ A6033 RaduXeisting (RICO) Case 1, 2, 8 

fl 
0 A6030 Declaratory Relief Only 1, 2, 8 

Other Complaints "El A8040 AnItirctive-Reiief Only (ifistdornestir/harassment) 2,8 
•(Not SpeclfledAbeve) (42) p A6011 Other Cbrnmerckil Complaint Cate (non-torthion-complax) 1, 2, 8 

0 A6000 other ComPlaint(noretortinon-complex) 1, 2, 8 

Partnifinifilp Corporistito ' ' • ' • • 
Governance (21) .0 A6113- ParlifiershIp.and Corporate Governs/ye Case 2, 8 

0 A6121 avl Harassment 2, 3, 9 

0 M123 Wcirkplace Harassment 2, 3, 9 

Other Petitions (Not 
Specified Above) (43) 

0 A6124 -Elder/Dependent Ark& Abuse Case 

o Aq190 Election Content 

2, 3, 9 

2 
❑ A6110 Petition for Changeof Name/Change of Gender 2, 7 
0 M170 Petition for Relief from Late Clain LZAk 2. 3, 8 
'0 M100 Other CN0 Petition 2, 9 

cc 
cc 

-6 

I 

I 
I 

t 

I 

I,  I I 

If 

fl 

I' h 

L 

6H0+tT TI1t 
CUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE MJMSER 

❆●✎✶✇✡✎✎✎✎✎✎✎✎✎✎✚✇  - . •B•• 
CMiCsóCoerSbeet TypeàfAcoon . Reasons'  Sao Stop 3 

CkoOorj No. (Checi( o4' one) Above 

Asset Foqfeiture (05) 0 1410$ Asset Foristura Case 2, 3, 6 

Petition re Arbitration It 1) 0 A8115 Petition to Cornpe1fConrwmNacateAct,4treffon 2.5 

C 14151 Writ. Administrative Mandamus 2,8 

Writ of Mandate (02) 0 14152 WrIt- Mandamus on Umitod Court Case Mater 2 

0 A6153 Writ- Other Limited Cowl Case Review 2 

Other jUdid& Review (39) 0 ACISO Other Writ /jtxlkti Review 2,8 

Andtnmtfrrade Regutetfrx'r (03) 0 14003 Astthat/TrSe Regulation 1,2,8 

CtsfrudIen Defect (10) 0 14007 Co,bifltonDefed 1. 2,3 

Claims Involving Mass Ton 13 14006 Claims irnvMng Mass Tort I, 2,8 

Securities Litigation (28) 0 A8035 Seanitles Litigation Case 1,2,8 

Toxic Tail 
0 14036 TocTorUEiwkonmentaI 1,2,3,8 Environmental (30) 

Insurance Coverage Claims 
from Complex case (41) 0 14014 Insurance conragefSubmgaton(oncnpiex case only) i 2.5,8 

❏ 14141 SSar State Judgment 2, 5, II 

.0 14160 AbebactofJudgment  2,6 

Enrorcarnont •Q 14107 Confession of Judgment (non4omes*1crelations) 
❏❆ Judgment (20) 0 14140 MmInIbitive Agency Award (not unpaid taxes) 2.8 

❏ 14114 Petition0AGerVfioaWtrEnbyofJumenton Unpaid Tax 

1 2.9 

2,8 

❏ 14112 Other Ent— content ofJudgmntCase 2,8,9 

RICO (27) ✪✯ A3 Rfleteedng (RICO) Can . 11.2.8 

❏ A8030 Declaratory Relief Only 1,2,8 

Other Complaints fl 1404 InJUrcIve.ReEe! Only (rthtdonesticThasnsnorit) 2,8 
(Not Specified Above) (42) 0 14011 Other Commercial Complaint Cte (nontwthon-complex) 1.2,8 

- 
0 A6000 OthecGivtComInL(non4ortJnon-mpIex) 11,2.8 

14113 Pfle&ilp.end Corporate Governance Case 12,8 

o 14121 Civil Harassment 2, 3, 9 

❏ 14123 WdrkpiaoeHarassm&it 2,3,9 

Oth& petitions (Not 
❏ A6124 EIderDependmitMuftAbuse Case 2,3,9 

Specified Above) (43) 0 

10 

14190 Election Contest 
2 

Cl 14110 petition for Change otName/Change of Gender 2,7 
0 14170 Petition for Rand from iteC1an La' 2.3.8 

14100 OthcrCM•PetItion  2.9 
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OF ATE0 

SHORT TRLE: 
GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE NUMBER 

  

Step 4: Statement of Reason and Address: Check the appropriate boxes for the numbers shown under Column C for the 
type of action that you have selected. Enter the address which Is the basis for the filing location, including zip code. 
(No address required for class action cases). 

ACORES!: 

REASON: 

1.02.91 3.714.05.06.27. 8.11 9.010.011. 

CITY: STATE ZIP COOS: 

Step 5: Certification of Assignment: I certify that this case Is properly filed in the  Central District of 
the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles [Code Civ. Proc, §392 et se d Local Rule 2.3(a)(1)(E)j. 

Dated: 04/15/2019 

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY 
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE: 

1. Original Complaint or Petition. 

2. If filing a Complaint, a completed Summons form for issuance by the Clerk. 

3. Civil Case Cover Sheet, Judicial. Council form CM-010. 

4. Civil Case Cover Sheet Addendum and Statement of Location form, LACIV 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev. 
02/16): 

5. Payment in full of the filing fee, unless there Is court order for waiver, partial or scheduled payments. 

6. A signed order appointing the Guardian ad Litem, Judicial Council form C1V-010, if the plaintiff or petitionerIs a 
minor under 18 years Of age will be required by Court In order to Issue a summons. 

7. Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Copies of the cover sheet and this addendum 
must be served along with the summons and complaint; or other initiating pleading in the case. 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2116) CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 
LASC Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 4 of 4 

W1Oer1flI.E: 

I 

CSNlEER 
Gl.JZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

Step 4: Statement of Reason and Address: Check the appropriate boxes for the numbers shown under Column C for the 
type of action that you have selected. Enter the address which Is the basis for the filing location, including zip code. 
(No address required for class action cases). 

REASON: 

1.02i.3.fl4.M5.06.917. 8.fl 9.010.011. 

STATe I ZIP coce 

Step 5: CertIfication of Assignment: I certify that this case Is properly filed In the Central District of 
the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles [Code Civ. Proc.. §392 et si Local Rule 2.3(a)(1)(E)j. 

'a  

Dated: 04/15/2019 

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY 
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE: 

Original Complaint or PeUUon 

If filing a Complaint, a completed Summons form for issuance by the Clerk. 

Civil Case Cover Sheet. Judicial Council form CM.010. 

Civil Case Cover Sheet Addendum and Statement of Location form, LAdy 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev. 
02/16): 

Payment in full of the filing fee, unless there Is court order foe waiver, partial or scheduled payments, 

A signed otter appointing the Guardian ad Litem1  Judicial Council form CR/-GiG, if the plaintiff or petitioner Is a 
minor under 18 years Of age WIll be reuIrèd by Court In order to Issue a summons. 

Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Copies of the cover sheet and this addendum 
must be served along with the summons and complaint; or other initiating pleading in the case. 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2/16) CML CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2-3 
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Reserved for Clerk's Ale Stamp 
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
'COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

Spring Street Courthouse 

312 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT 

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 

FILED 
Supericr Court of Worth; 

County of Los Angeles 

04116/2019 
sberrift Catr,Enruftve015:ar Clerk olCourt 

BY Steve Drew Deputy 

CASE NUMBER: 

Your case is assigned for all purposes to the judicial officer indicated below. 19STCV13050 

THIS FORM IS TO BE SERVED WITH THE SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT 

ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM • ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM 

ere  Maren Nelson 17 

Given to the PlaintifUCross-Complainant/Attomey of Record Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer / Clerk of Court 

By  Steve Drew , Deputy Clerk on 04/16/2019 

 

   

(Date) 

LACIV 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT — UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 
LASC Approved 05/06 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

pring Street Courthouse 

12 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT 

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 

FILED 

St a
ft  CaM of CaVarda 

Ootmtyof [=Angeles 

04116t2019 
ir4R Ca,Emajhe off= lQetofCow 

By &eVO Drew Depidy 

Your case is assigned for all purposes to the judicial officer indicated below. 195TCV13050 
4 

THIS FORM IS TO BE SERVED WITH THE SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT 

ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM 

V jMaren Nelson 17 

4 

4 

4 

Given zo the PLaintifflCross-Complainant/AttomeyofRecord .Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer/Clerk of Court 

on 04/16/2019 By Steve Drew ,Deputy Clerk 
(Date) 

LAdy 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT - UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 
LASC Approved 05106 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR HANDLING UNLIMITED CIVIL CASES 

..The following critical provisions of the California Rules of Court, Title 3, Division 7, as applicable in the Superior Court, are summarized 
for your assistance. 

APPLICATION  
The Division 7 Rules were effective January I, 2007. They apply to all general civil cases. 

PRIORITY OVER OTHER RULES 
The Division 7 Rules shall have priority over all other Local Rules to the extent the others are inconsistent. 

CHALLENGE TO ASSIGNED JUDGE 
A challenge under Code of Civil Procedure Section 170.6 must be made within 15 days after notice of assignment for all purposes 
to a judge, or if a party has not yet appeared, within 15 days of the first appearance. 

'TIME STANDARDS  
Cases assigned to the Independent Calendaring Courts will be subject to processing under the following time standards: 

COMPLAINTS  
All complaints shall be served within 60 days of filing and proof of service, shall be filed within 90 days. 

CROSS-COMPLAINTS  
Without leave of court first being obtained, no cross-complaint may be filed by any party after their answer is filed. Cross- 
complaints shall be served within 30 days of the filing date and a proof of service filed within 60 days of the filing date. 

STATUS CONFERENCE 
A status conference will be scheduled by the assigned Independent Calendar Judge no later than 270 days after the filing of the 
complaint. Counsel must be fully prepared to discuss the following issues: alternative dispute resolution, bifurcation, settlement, 
trial date, and expert witnesses. 

FINAL STATUS CONFERENCE 
The Court will require the parties to attend a final status conference not more than 10 days before the scheduled trial date. MI 
parties shall have motions in limine, bifurcation motions, statements of major evidentiary issues, diapositive motions, requested 
form jury instructions, special jury instructions, and special jury verdicts timely filed and served prior to the conference. These 
matters may be heard and resolved at this conference. At least five days before this conference, counsel must also have exchanged 
lists of exhibits and witnesses, and have submitted to the court a brief statement of the case to be read to the jury panel as required 
by Chapter Three of the Los Angeles Superior Court Rule& 

SANCTIONS  
The court will impose appropriate sanctions for the failure or refusal to comply with Chapter Three Rules, orders made by the 
Court, and time standards or deadlines established by the Court or by the Chapter Three Rules. Such sanctions may be on a party, 
or if appropriate, on counsel for a party. 

This is not a complete delineation of the Division 7 or Chapter Three Rules, and adherence only to the above provisions is 
therefore not a guarantee against the imposition of sanctions under Trial Court Delay Reduction. Careful reading and 
compliance with the actual Chapter Rules is imperative. 

Class Actions 
Pursuant to Local Rule 2.3, all class actions shall be filed at the Stanley Mosk Courthouse and are randomly assigned to a complex 
judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be a class action it will be returned to an Independent 
Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

*Provisionally Complex Cases 
Cases filed as provisionally complex are initially assigned to the Supervising Judge of complex litigation for determination of 
complex status. If the case is deemed to be complex within the meaning of California Rules of Court 3.400 et seq., it will be 
randomly assigned to a complex judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be complex, it will be 
returned to an Independent Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

LACIV 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 
LASC Approved 05/06 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR HANDLING UNLIMITED CIVIL CASES 

The following critical provisions of the California Rules of Court, Title 3, Division 7, as applicable in the Superior Court, are summarized 
for your assistance. 

APPLICATION 
The Division 7 Rules were effective January I, 2007. They apply to all general civil cases. 

PRIORITY OVER OTHER RULES 
The Division 7 Rules shall have priority over all other Local Rules to the extent the others are inconsistent. 

CHALLENGE TO ASSIGNED JUDGE 
A challenge under Code of Civil Procedure Section 170.6 must be madewithin 15 days after notice of assignment for all purposes 
to a judge, or if a party has not yet appeared, within 15 days of the first appearance. 

'TIME STANDARDS - - 

Cases assigned to the Independent Calendaring Courts will be subject to processing under the following time standards: 

COMPLAINTS - 

All complaints shall be served within 60 days of filing and proof of service•  shall be filed within 90 days. 

CROSS-COMPLAINTS 
Without leave of court first being obtained, no cross-complaint may be filed by any party after their answer is filed. Cross- 
complaints shall be served within 30 days of the filing date and a proof of service filed within 60 days of the filing date. 

STATUS CONFERENCE 
A status conference will be scheduled by the assigned Independent Calendar Judge no later than 270 days after the filing of the 
complaint. Counsel must be filly prepared to discuss the following issues: alternative dispute resolution, bifurcation, settlement, 
trial date, and expert witnesses. 

FINAL STATUS CONFERENCE 
The Court will require the parties to attend a final status conference not more than 10 days before the scheduled trial date. MI 
parties shall have motions in lirnine, bifurcation motions, statements of major evidentiary issues, dispositive motions, requested 
form jury instructions, special jury instructions, and special jury verdicts timely filed and served prior to the conference. These 
matters may be heard and resolved at this conference. At least five days before this conference, counsel must also have exchanged 
lists of exhibits and witnesses, and have submitted to the court a brief statement of the case to be read to the jury panel as required 
by Chapter Three of the Los Angeles Superior Court Rule 

SANCTIONS 
The court will impose appropriate sanctions for the failure or refusal to comply with Chapter Three Rules, orders made by the 
Court, and time standards or deadlines established by the Court or by the Chapter Three Rules. Such sanctions may be on a party, 
or if appropriate, on counsel for a party. 

This is not a complete delineation of the Division 7 or Chapter Three Rules, and adherence only to the above provisions is 
therefore not a guarantee against the Imposition of sanctions under Trial Court Delay Reduction. Careful reading and 
compliance with the actual Chapter Rules is imperative. 

Class Actions 
Pursuant to Local Rule 2.3, all class actions shall be filed at the Stanley Mosk Courthouse and are randomly assigned to a complex 
Judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be a class action it will be returned to an Independent 
Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

*Provisionally Complex Cases 
Cases filed as provisionally complex are initially assigned to the Supervising Judge of complex Litigation for determination of 
complex status. If the case is deemed to be complex within the meaning of California Rules of Court 3.400 et seq., it will be 
randomly assigned to a complex judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be complex, it will be 
returned to an Independent Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 
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Superior Court of California 
County of Los Angeles 

LACBA 
Los Angeles County 
Bar Association 
Lit'patron Section 

Los Angeles County 
Bar,Association Labor and 
Employment Law Section 

Southern California 
Defense Counsel 

Association of 
Business Trial Lawyers 

-awry 

• 

. . 
California Ereployment 
Lawyers Association 

VOLUNTARY EFFICIENT LITIGATION STIPULATIONS 

111PM. Aft_ Ian 
/ 

 Attorneys 
Association of Loa Angeles 

LACIV 230 (NEW) 
LASC Approved 4-11 
For Optional Use 

The Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, Discovery 

Resolution Stipulation, and Motions in Limine Stipulation are 

voluntary stipulations entered into by the parties. The parties 

may enter into one, two, or all three of the stipulations; 

however, they may not alter the stipulations as written, 

because the Court wants to ensure uniformity of application. 

These stipulations are meant to encourage cooperation 

between the parties and to assist in resolving issues in a 

manner that promotes economic case resolution and judicial 

efficiency. 

The following organizations endorse the goal of 

promoting efficiency in litigation and ask that counsel 

consider using these stipulations as a voluntary way to 

promote communications and procedures among counsel 

and with the court to fairly resolve issues in their cases. 

*Los Angeles County Bar Association Litigation Section* 

• Los Angeles County Bar Association 

Labor and Employment Law Sections 

*Consumer Attorneys Association of Los Angeles* 

*Southern California Defense Counsel* 

*Association of Business Trial Lawyers* 

*California Employment Lawyers Associations 

I .  

Consumer Attorneys 
Association of Lea Angeles 

VOLUNTARY EFFICIENT LITIGATION STIPULATIONS 

The Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, Discovery 

Resolution Stipulation, and Motions in Limine Stipulation are 

voluntary stipulations entered into by the parties. The parties 

may enter into one, two, or all three of the stipulations; 

however, they may not alter the stipulations as written, 

because the Court wants to ensure uniformity of application. 

These stipulations are meant to encourage cooperation 

between the parties and to assist in resolving issues in a 

manner that promotes economic case resolution and judicial 

efficiency. 

The following organizations endorse the goal of 

promoting efficiency in litigation and ask that counsel 

consider using these stipulations as a voluntary way to 

promote communications and procedures among counsel 

and with the court to fairly resolve issues in their cases. 

a 
Superior Court of California 
County of Los Angeles 

Los Angeles County 
Bar Association 
Litlgatfon Section 

Los Angeles County 
Bar Association Labor and 
Employment Law Section 

*Los Angeles County Bar Association Litigation Section* 
Southern California 
Defense Counsel 

Association of 
Business Trial Lawyers 

• Los Angeles County Bar Association 

Labor and Employment Law Sections 

*Consumer Attorneys Association of Los AngeIes 

*Southern California Defense Counsel* 

•Association of Business Trial Lawyers 

California Emplàymcnt 
Lawyers Association 

LACIV 230 (NEW) 
LASC Approved 4.11 
For Optional Use 

*California Employment Lawyers Associations 
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Nat AND ADDRESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: 

TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

STATE SOIMAO3ER R•semsel ., OW. Flo Sump 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
CASE NUMBER: 

This stipulation is intended to encourage cooperation among the parties at an early stage in 
the litigation and to assist the parties in efficient case resolution. 

The parties agree that: 

1. The parties commit to conduct an initial conference (in-person or via teleconference or via 
videoconference) within 15 days from the date this stipulation is signed, to discuss and consider 
whether there can be agreement on the following: 

a. Are motions to challenge the pleadings necessary? If the issue can be resolved by 
amendment as of right, or if the Court would allow leave to amend, could an amended 
complaint resolve most or all of the issues a demurrer might otherwise raise? If so, the parties 
agree to work through pleading issues so that a demurrer need only raise issues they cannot 
resolve. Is the issue that the defendant seeks to raise amenable to resolution on demurrer, or 
would some other type of motion be preferable? Could a voluntary targeted exchange of 
documents or information by any party cure an uncertainty in the pleadings? 

b. Initial mutual exchanges of documents at the "core" of the litigation. (For example, in an 
employment case, the employment records, personnel file and documents relating to the 
conduct in question could be considered "core." In a personal injury case, an incident or 
police report, medical records, and repair or maintenance records could be considered 
"core."); 

c. Exchange of names and contact information of witnesses; 

d. Any insurance agreement that may be available to satisfy part or all of a judgment, or to 
indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy a judgment; 

e. Exchange of any other information that might be helpful to facilitate understanding, handling, 
or resolution of the case in a manner that preserves objections or privileges by agreement; 

1. Controlling issues of law that, if resolved early, will promote efficiency and economy in other 
phases of the case. Also, when and how such Issues can be presented to the Court; 

g. Whether or when the case should be scheduled with a settlement officer, what discovery or 
court ruling on legal issues is reasonably required to make settlement discussions meaningful, 
and whether the parties wish to use a sitting judge or a private mediator or other options as 

LACIV 229 (Rev 02/15) 
LASC Approved 04/11 STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
For Optional Use Page 1 of 2 

NAPC ANDACORESS OF ArTORHEVOR PMWWITKOIJT AflO*CV: STATE OAR Nt&WER Rqnsd .q alit. ii. 

TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-ItIL ADDRESS (OoUonal): 

I SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES I 

STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

This stipulation is Intended to encourage cooperation among the parties at an early stage In 
the litigation and to assist the parties in efficient case resolution. 

The parties agree that: 

1. The parties commit to conduct an initial conference (in-person or via teleconference or via 
vldeoconference) within 15 days from the date this stipulation is signed, to discuss and consider 
whether there can be agreement on the following: 

Are motions to challenge the pleadings necessary? If the issue can be resolved by 
amendment as of right, or if the Court would allow leave to amend, could an amended 
complaint resolve most or all of the issues a demurrer might otherwise raise? if so, the parties 
agree to work through pleading issues so that a demurrer need only raise issues they cannot 
resolve. Is the issue that the defendant seeks to raise amenable to resolution on demurrer, or 
would some other type of motion be preferable? Could a voluntary targeted exchange of 
documents or information by any party cure an uncertainty in the pleadings? 

initial mutual exchanges of documents at the"core" of the litigation. (For example, in an 
employment case, the employment records, personnel file and documents relating to the 
conduct in question could be considered "core." In a personal injury case, an incident or 
police report, medical records, and repair or maintenance records could be considered 
.core."); 

Exchange of names and contact information of witnesses; 

Any insurance agreement that may be available to satisfy part or all of a judgment, or to 
Indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy a judgment; 

Exchange of any other information that might be helpful to facilitate understanding, handling, 
or resolution of the case in a manner that preserves objections or privileges by agreement; 

1. Controlling issues of law that, if resolved early, will promote efficiency and economy in other 
phases of the case. Also, when and how such Issues can be presented to the Court; 

g. Whether or when the case should be scheduled with a settlement officer, what discovery or 
court ruling on legal issues is reasonably required to make settlement discussions meaningful, 
and whether the parties wish to use a sitting judge or a private mediator or other options as 

LACIV 229 (Rev 02115) 
LAsC Approved 04/I1 STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
For Optional Use Page I o12 
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUMBER 

  

discussed in the "Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Package" served with the 
complaint; 

h. Computation of damages, including documents, not privileged or protected from disclosure, on 
which such computation is based; 

i. Whether the case is suitable for the Expedited Jury Trial procedures (see information at 
www.lacourt.orq  under "Civil" and then under "General Information"). 

2. The time for a defending party to respond to a complaint or cross-complaint will be extended 
to for the complaint, and for the cross- 

(INSERT DATE) (INSERT DATE) 

complaint, which is comprised of the 30 days to respond under Government Code § 68616(b), 
and the 30 days permitted by Code of Civil Procedure section 1054(a), good cause having 
been found by the Civil Supervising Judge due to the case management benefits provided by 
this Stipulation. A copy of the General Order can be found at www.lacouttoto  under "Civil', 
click on "General Information", then click on "Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations". 

3. The parties will prepare a joint report titled "Joint Status Report Pursuant to Initial Conference 
and Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, and if desired, a proposed order summarizing 
results of their meet and confer and advising the Court of any way it may assist the parties' 
efficient conduct or resolution of the case. The parties shall attach the Joint Status Report to 
the Case Management Conference statement, and file the documents when the CMC 
statement is due. 

4. References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

• (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

LACIV 229 (Rev 02/15) STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING LASC Approved 04/11 Page 2 of 2 

SJCRT lIRE CASE NUMBER 

discussed in the Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Package" served with the 
complaint; 

h. Computation of damages, including documents, not privileged or protected from disclosure, on 
which such computation is based; 

1. Whether the case is suitable for the Expedited Jury Trial procedures (see information at 
www.lacourt.org  under "Civil" and then under "General Information"). 

The time for a defending party to respond- to a complaint or cross-complaint will be extended 
to for the complaint, and 

______ for the cross- 
(INSERT DATE) (INSERT DATE) 

complaint, which is comprised of the 30 days to respond under Government Code § 68616(b), 
and the 30 days permitted by Code of Civil Procedure section 1054(a), good cause having 
been found by the Civil Supervising Judge due to the case management benefits provided by 
this Stipulation. A copy of the General Order can be found at www.lacourt.org  under "Civil' 
click on "General Information", then click on "Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations". 

The parties will prepare a joint report titled "Joint Status Report Pursuant to Initial Conference 
and Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, and if desired, a proposed order summarizing 
results of their meet and confer and advising the Court of any way it may assist the parties' 
efficient conduct or resolution of the case. The parties shall attach the Joint Status Report to 
the Case Management Conference statement, and file the documents when the CMC 
statement is due. 

References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 
Date: 

Date: 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) . (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR  

Date: 

Date: 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR __ 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR_________________ 

LAcIv229 (Rev o2iI5) 
LAsc Approved 04/11 STIPULATION - EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING Page 2of2 
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WAKEN° ADORESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTE/EPLEY. 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO..(OptIonal): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

STATE BAR NUMBER Recuond for Oates Fla SU my 

• 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
CASE NUMBER 

This stipulation is intended to provide a fast and informal resolution of discovery issues 
through limited paperwork and an informal conference with the Court to aid in the 
resolution of the issues. 

The parties agree that: 

1. Prior to the discovery cut-off in this action, no discovery motion shall be filed or heard unless 
the moving party first makes a written request for an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant 
to the terms of this stipulation. 

2. At the Informal Discovery Conference the Court will consider the dispute presented by parties 
and determine whether it can be resolved informally. Nothing set forth herein will preclude a 
party from making a record at the conclusion of an Informal Discovery Conference, either 
orally or in writing. 

3. Following a reasonable and good faith attempt at an informal resolution of each issue to be 
presented; a party may request an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant to the following 
procedures: 

a. The party requesting the Informal Discovery Conference will: 

i. File a Request for Informal Discovery Conference with the clerk's office on the 
approved form (copy attached) and deliver a courtesy, conformed .copy to the 
assigned department; 

ii. Include a brief summary of the dispute and specify the relief requested; and 

iii. Serve the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed method of service 
that ensures that the opposing party receives the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference no later than the next court day following the filing. 

b. Any Answer to a Request for Informal Discovery Conference must: 

i. Also be filed on the approved form (copy attached); 

ii. Include a brief summary of why the requested relief should be denied; 
LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
Page 1 of 3 

MMAE MO ADOMS OFAflORHEYoR PARTYW1THOtJT ArTORNEY: STATE flNUMDtR I Reorad rot Oar, FM &arnt, 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Ootionafl: 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 

This stipulation is intended to provide a fast and informal resolution of discovery issues 
through limited paperwork and an informal conference with the Court to aid in the 
resolution of the issues. 

- 

The parties agree that: 

Prior to the discovery cut-off in this action, no discovery motion shall be filed or heard unless 
the moving party first makes a written request for an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant 
to the terms of this stipulation. 

At the Informal Discovery Conference the Court will consider the dispute presented by parties 
and determine whether it can be resolved informally. Nothing set forth herein will preclude a 
party from making a record at the conclusion of an Informal Discovery Conference, either 
orally or in writing. 

Following a reasonable and good faith attempt at an informal resolution of each issue to be 
presented; a party may request an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant to the following 
procedures: 

a. The party requesting the Informal Discovery Conference will: 

File a Request for Informal Discovery Conference with the clerk's office on the 
approved form (copy attached) and deliver a courtesy, conformed .copy to the 
assigned department; 

InbIude a brief summary of the dispute and specify the relief requested; and 

Serve the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed method of service 
that ensures that the opposing party receives the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference no later than the next court day following the filing. 

b. Any Answer to a Request for Informal Discovery Conference must: 

Also be filed on the approved form (copy attached); 

ii. Include a brief summary of why the requested relief should be denied; 

LAdy 036 (new) 
LA5c Approved 04/I1 STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
For Optional Use Page 1 of 3 
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUtcaat 

  

iii. Be filed within two (2) court days of receipt of the Request; and 

iv. Be served on the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed upon 
method of service that ensures that the opposing party receives the Answer no 
later than the next court day following the filing. 

c. No other pleadings, including but not limited to exhibits, declarations, or attachments, will 
be accepted. 

d. If the Court has not granted or denied the Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
within ten (10) days following the filing of the Request, then it shall be deemed to have 
been denied. If the Court acts on the Request, the parties will be notified whether the 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference has been granted or denied and, if granted, 

• the date and time of the Informal Discovery Conference, which must be within twenty (20) 
days of the filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference. 

e. If the conference is not held within twenty (20) days of the filing of the Request for 
Informal Discovery Conference, unless extended by agreement of the parties and the 
Court, then the Request for the Informal Discovery Conference shall be deemed to have 
been denied at that time. 

4. If (a) the Court has denied a conference or (b) one of the time deadlines above has expired 
without the Court having acted or (c) the Informal Discovery Conference is concluded without 
resolving the dispute, then a party may file a discovery motion to address unresolved issues. 

5. The parties hereby further agree that the time for making motion to compel or other 
discovery motion is tolled from the date of filing of the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference until (a) the request is denied or deemed denied or (b) twenty (20) days after the 
filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference, whichever is earlier, unless extended 
by Order of the Court. 

It is the understanding and intent of the parties that this stipulation shall, for each discovery 
dispute to which it applies, constitute a writing memorializing a "specific later date to which 
the propounding [or demanding or requesting] party and the responding party have agreed In 
writing," within the meaning of Code Civil Procedure sections 2030.300(c), 2031.320(c), and 
2033.290(c). 

6. Nothing herein will preclude any party from applying ex parte for appropriate relief, including 
an order shortening time for a motion to be heard concerning discovery. 

7. Any party may terminate this stipulation by giving twenty-one (21) days notice of intent to 
terminate the stipulation. 

8. References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day. 

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
Page 2 of 3 

SHORT flhl& CASE AJ%GERZ 

Be filed within two (2) court days of receipt of the Request; and 

Be served on the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed upon 
method of service that ensures that the opposing party receives the Answer no 
later than the next court day following the filing. 

No other pleadings, including but not limited to exhibits, declarations, or attachments, will 
be accepted. 

lithe Court has not granted or denied the Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
within ten (10) days following the filing of the Request, then it shall be deemed to have 
been denied. If the Court acts on the Request, the parties will be notified whether the 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference has been granted or denied and, if granted, 
the date and time of the Informal Discovery Conference, which must be within twenty (20) 
days of the filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference. 

If the conference is not held within twenty (20) days of the filing of the Request for 
Informal Discovery Conference, unless extended by agreement of the parties and the 
Court, then the Request for the Informal Discovery Conference shall be deemed to have 
been denied at that time. 

11(a) the Court has denied a conference or (b) one of thetime deadlines above has expired 
without the Court having acted or (c) the Informal Discovery Conference is concluded without 
resolving the dispute, then a party may file a discovery motion to address unresolved issues. 

The parties hereby further agree that the time for making .a motion' to compel or other 
discovery motion is tolled from the date of filing of the Request for Informal Discovery 

• Conference until (a) the request is denied or deemed denied or (b) twenty (20) days after the 

• filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference, whichever is earlier, unless extended 
by Order of the Court. 

It is the understanding and intent of the parties that this stipulation shall, for each discovery 
dispute to which it applies, constitute a writing memorializing a "specific later date to which 
the propounding for demanding or requesting party and the responding party have agreed In 
writing," within the meaning of Code Civil Procedure sections 2030.300(c), 2031.320(c), and 
2033.290(c). 

Nothing herein will preclude any party from applying exparte for appropriate relief, including 
an order shortening time for a motion to be heard concerning discovery. 

Any party may terminate this stipulation by giving twenty-one (21) days notice of intent to 
terminate the stipulation. 

References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day. 

lAsc Approved 04111 STIPULATION - DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
For Optional Use Page 2 of 3 
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511ORT TIME: CASE NUMBER: 

  

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

➢ 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR 

4, 

• 

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
Page 3 of 3 

IORT1U1.Ei CASEM.PA&t 
- 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

'-S 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

> 
(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR  

4,  

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved O4/11 STIPULATION - DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
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NAME MO ADDRESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY. 

• 
TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 

E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 
ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

STATE BAR NUMBER Rea for Clery TO StaP 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

• INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

CASE NUMBER. 

1. This document relates to: 

❑ Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
❑ Answer to Request for Inforthal Discovery Conference 

2. Deadline for Court to decide on Request: 
the Request). 

3. Deadline for Court to hold Informal Discovery Conference: 
days following filing of the Request). 

4. For a Request for Informal Discovery Conference briefly  describe the nature of the 
discovery dispute, including the facts and legal arguments at issue. For an Answer to 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly  describe why the Court should deny 
the requested discovery, Including the facts and legal arguments at issue. 

LACIV 094 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

(insert date 10 calendar days following filing of 

(insert date 20 calendar 

NAME MC ACORESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WTOIOUT ATTORNEY. STATE OAR MOltER Re WOW. TA. Slap 

TELEPHONE No.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

✑✙✑✑ ❄◆❅ ✙ 

I INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

This document relates to: 

D Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
U Answer to Request for Informal Discovery Conference 

Deadline for Court to decide on Request: (Insert date 10 calendar days following filing ol 
the Request). 

Deadline for Court to hold Informal Discovery Conference: (insert date 20 calendar 
days following filing of the Request). 

For a Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly describe the nature of the 
discovery dispute, including the facts and legal arguments at issue. For an Answer to 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly describe why the Court should deny 
the requested discovery, including the facts and legal arguments at Issue. 

LAdy U94 (new) INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
LAsc Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use (pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 
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NAME MO ADDRESS Of ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

STATE GAR NUMBER Roared kw Poles Fie ShatP 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE 
CASE NUMBER: 

This stipulation is intended to provide fast and informal resolution of evidentiary 
issues through diligent efforts to define and discuss such issues and limit paperwork. 

The parties agree that:' 

1. At least days before the final status conference, each party will provide all other 
parties with a list containing a one paragraph explanation of each proposed motion in 
limine. Each one paragraph explanation must identify the substance of a single proposed 
motion in limine and the grounds for the proposed motion. 

2. The parties thereafter will meet and confer, either in person or via teleconference or 
videoconference, concerning all proposed motions in limine. In that meet and confer, the 
parties will determine: 

a. Whether the parties can stipulate to any of the proposed motions. If ,the parties so 
stipulate, they may file a stipulation and proposed order with the Court. 

b. Whether any of the proposed motions can be briefed and submitted by means of a 
short joint statement of issues. For each motion which can be addressed by a short 
joint statement of issues, a short joint statement of issues must be filed with the Court 
10 days prior to the final status conference. Each side's portion of the short joint 
statement of issues may not exceed three pages. The parties will meet and confer to 
agree on a date and manner for exchanging the parties' respective portions of the 
short joint statement of issues and the process for filing the short joint statement of 
issues. 

3. All proposed motions in limine that are not either the subject of a stipulation or briefed via 
a short joint statement of issues will be briefed and filed in accordance with the California 
Rules of Court and the Los Angeles Superior Court Rules. 

LACIV 075 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE 
Page 1 of 2 

M*S45 Ma ADDRESS OCATTORkZY OR PARWYflfl4OUT ATTOR2€Y STATE GAR WJIIOER Ros..d I.raat, fl, Sls.,p 

TELEPHONE NO.: 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Ocionan: 

FAX NO. (Optional): 

[€i] iRIfL'fl 

STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LIMINE 

This stipulation is Intended to provide fast and informal resolution of evidentiary 
issues through diligent efforts to define and discuss such issues and limit paperwork. 

The parties agree that:' 

At least days before the final status conference, each party will provide all other 
parties with a list containing a one paragraph explanation of each proposed motion in 
limine. Each one paragraph explanation must identify the substance of a single proposed 
motion in limine and the grounds for the proposed motion. 

2. The parties thereafter will meet and confer, either in person or via teleconference or 
videoconference, concerning all proposed motions in limine. In that meet and confer, the 
parties will determine: 

Whether the parties can stipulate to any of the proposed motions. If ,the parties so 
stipulate, they may file a stipulation and proposed order with the Court. 

Whether any of the proposed motions can be briefed and submitted by means of a 
short joint statement of issues. For each motion which can be addressed by a short 
joint statement of issues, a short joint statement of issues must be filed with the Court 
10 days prior to the final status conference. Each side's portion of the short joint 
statement of issues may not exceed three pages. The parties will meet and confer to 
agree on a date and manner for exchanging the parties' respective portions of the 
short joint statement of issues and the process for filing the short joint statement of 
issues. 

3. All proposed motions in limine that are nat either the subject of a stipulation or briefed via 
a short joint statement of issues will be briefed and filed in accordance with the California 
Rules of Court and the Los Angeles Superior Court Rules. 

LASCApprvedb4f11 STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LlMlNE 
For Optional use 

- 
Page 1 of 2 
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SHORT TIRE: CASE NIJICIER 

  

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR 

THE COURT SO ORDERS. 

Date: 
JUDICIAL OFFICER 

LACIV 075 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE Page 2 of 2 

) 

fiRE: CASE 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR-
_ 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR 

THE COURT SO ORDERS. 

Date: 
JUDICIAL OFFICER 

'I 

LAdy 075 (new) STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LIMINE LASC Approved 04/Il Page 2 of 2 
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Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR  

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR:  

1. Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 
settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

2. Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 
strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 
acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 
Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 

a 

w 
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's tees and witness tees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR 

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 
settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate thefl 
strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 
acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 
Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 
• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LAsc civ 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory use 
California Rules of court, rule 3.221 
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3. Arbitration: Arbitration is less formal than trial, but like trial, the parties present evidence and arguments to the 
'person who decides the outcome. In "binding" arbitration, the arbitrator's decision is final; there is no right to 
trial. In "nonbinding" arbitration; any party can request a trial after the arbitrator's decision. For more 
information about arbitration, 'visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm • 

4. Mandatory Settlement Conferences (MSC): MSCs are ordered by the Court and are often held close to the trial 
date. The parties and their attorneys meet with a judge orsettlement officer who does not make a decision but 

4 assists the parties in evaluating the strengths and weaknesses of the case and in negotiating a settlement. 
For information about the Court's MSC programs for civil cases, visit: www.lacourt.org/division/civil/settlement  

Los Angeles Superior Court ADR website: www.lacourtorg/division/civil/settlement 
For general information and videos about ADR, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm  

LASC2 
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For Mandatory Use • 
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Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR  

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

1. Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 
settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

2. Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 
strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 
acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 
Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 

Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages ofADR 

Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR hnd litigation and trial. 

No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 

settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 

strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 

acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 

Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
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3. Arbitration: Arbitration is less formal than trial, but like trial, the parties present evidence and arguments to the 
person who decides the outcome. In "binding" arbitration, the arbitrator's decision is final; there is no right to 
trial. In "nonbinding" arbitration, any party can request a trial after the arbitrator's decision. For more 
information about arbitration, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm   

4. Mandatory Settlement Conferences (MSC): MSCs are ordered by the Court and are often held close to the trial 
date. The parties and their attorneys meet with a judge or settlement officer who does not make a decision but 
assists the parties in evaluating the strengths and weaknesses of the case and in negotiating a settlement. 
For information about the Court's MSC programs for civil cases, visit: www.lacourt.org/division/civil/settlement  

Los Angeles Superior Court ADR website: www.lacourtorg/division/civil/settlement 
For general information and videos about ADR, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm  
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In 

;z_t CT Corporation Service of Process
Transmittal
04/18/2019
CT Log Number 535324909

TO: Harold Busch, Corporate Counsel
KEURIG DR PEPPER SNAPPLE GROUP
5301 Legacy Dr
Plano, TX 75024-3109

RE: Process Served in California

FOR: Keurig Dr Pepper Inc.  (Domestic State: DE)

Page 1 of  1 / SC

Information displayed on this transmittal is for CT
Corporation's record keeping purposes only and is provided to
the recipient for quick reference. This information does not
constitute a legal opinion as to the nature of action, the
amount of damages, the answer date, or any information
contained in the documents themselves. Recipient is
responsible for interpreting said documents and for taking
appropriate action. Signatures on certified mail receipts
confirm receipt of package only, not contents.

ENCLOSED ARE COPIES OF LEGAL PROCESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTORY AGENT OF THE ABOVE COMPANY AS FOLLOWS:
    
TITLE OF ACTION: JUAN M.GUZMAN-LOPEZ, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,

PLTF. vs. THE AMERICAN BOTFLING COMPANY, a corporation, ET AL., DFTS. // TO:
Keurig Dr Pepper Inc.

DOCUMENT(S) SERVED: Summons, Cover Sheet, Complaint, Certificate, Instructions, Notice, Order,
Stipulation

COURT/AGENCY: Los Angeles County - Superior Court, CA
Case # 19STCV13050

NATURE OF ACTION: Employee Litigation - CLASS ACTION Failure to Pay Minimum Wage

ON WHOM PROCESS WAS SERVED: C T Corporation System, Los Angeles, CA

DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE: By Process Server on 04/18/2019 at 11:03

JURISDICTION SERVED : California

APPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE: Within 30 calendar days after this summons and legal papers are served on you

ATTORNEY(S) / SENDER(S): VACHE A. THOMASSIAN
KJT LAW GROUP LLP
230 North Maryland Avenue, Suite 306
Glendale, CA 91206
818-507-8525

ACTION ITEMS: CT has retained the current log, Retain Date: 04/19/2019, Expected Purge Date:
04/24/2019

Image SOP

Email Notification,  Janet Barrett  janet.barrett@dpsg.com

Email Notification,  Harold Busch  harold.busch@dpsg.com

SIGNED: C T Corporation System
ADDRESS: 818 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, CA 90017
TELEPHONE: 213-337-4615
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c_cr tt-exTre. 

SUM-100 
SUMMONS 

(CITACION JUDICIAL) 
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: 
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): 

THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY, a corporation; 
KEURIG-DR. PEPPER, INC., a corporation; and DOES 1-20, inclusive, 
YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: 
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): 

JUAN M. GUZMAN-LOPEZ, individually and on behalf of all others S 
similarly situated, 

FOR coon USE ONLY 
(SOLO PAU too DE LA CORTE) 

cONFORIVIEU eaPv 
OlfrIONNAL tirietttt 

Superior Court ol California 
Connly nr I nc Annalps 

APR 1 61019 

erri R. Carter, Executive 011icer/Clerk ol Court 

By: Steven Drew, Deputy 

NOTICE, You have been sued. The court may deckle against you without your being hoard unless you respond within 30 days. Road the Informatbn 
below. 

You-have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after thls summons and legal papers ere served on you to file a written response at this court and have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response musthe hi proper legal form ft you want the court to hear your 
case. Them-may bee court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more Infommtion at the California Courts 
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.tagovisedhelp). your county law library, or the courthouse newest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask 
the court cleric for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on lime, you may bee the case by default, and your wages, money, and property 
may be taken without further warning from the court. 

There arpothor legal requirements. You may want to call en attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want b call an attorney 
referral service. If yeti cannot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal services ham a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate . 
these noniyottl groups et the California Legal Services Web site (vnvw.latihelpcalifomia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Canter 
(vnew.coustritice.gcnaelfhe(o). or by contacting your local court or county bar assedation. NOTE: The court hes a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more In a call case. The court's Gen must be paid before the court will dismiss the case. 

114WS01-  Lo hen demandado. SI no responds derifro do 30 dies, la onto puedo docldk en all centre sin oscucher au version. Lea la Informecien a 
continuation. • • 

Thane 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despu6s.de QUO lo•entroguon osta °Macron y paroles locales pare presenter tine respuesta pot °strife en este 
code ',hear quasi animus tine copier al &mandate. Una torte o tine llamado felefrroke no lo protegen. Su respuesto poritSailt Ilene quo inter 
en famato legal correct° al doses queprocesen su case on la cafe. Es postblo qua haya tin formvlario qua creed puede usar para ru respuesta. 
Proxfo caesarian( Gatos formularies de I e coda y mss information en el Centre de Ayude do lee Codas do California cierow.sucorte.ca.gov), en la 
bibecifece de hOyes do su•oondado o an la code oil le quedo mascara Si no padsi pager to outdo de presentation, plde al secretes* de la arts 
quo le de tin fairnulado.de sicencion depogo deewfes. Si no-present° arrespripste o tempo, puede ponder or caso par Incumpanclento y la code k 
podni quitter a roof° diner° y bloats slit male ealvertantle. 

Hayotros roquisitos looks. Es recomendebb quo Remo a cm abound°, inrnediatemente. Si no conoco a tin abroad°, puede liana' gun sonicio do 
nurthrron a ebogadas. SI no puede pager a un abolido, es parole quo cumpla con bs regular's pare °broiler servicias logelas gratultos do tin 
programs de sandal= legates sin fides de fucro. Riede encontrar silos grupos sh Mesa (ice en el alo web do Califorrea.Leael Senates, 
(wiwritawhelPoitfornborg), on el Centro do Ayucfa de las Codes de Cerro, Avveasucorte.ce.gov) o porirondose en contact° con la cafe o el 
cologroap alrorgadosloceles. AO SO: Paley, le torte Hang dorocho a rociamar 1 a s cuotos y los costes excintos par baronet un•gravemen mare 
cuakiiniOr ratuparecron de 310,000 6 mss de valor reabide mediente to acuenfo o tine arocesfiro do eroltraro en tin caso de dorsal° ail. Done quo 
pager el gravamen dole cafe antes do quo la code puede desochar of area 

The name and address of the court Is: 
(El neatly y &reactor de la coffees): Superior Court of California 
Stanley Mosk Courthouse - Central District 
11 l North Hill Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

The name, address, and telephone number of .plaIntif8s attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, Is: 
(Elnonibre, la dlracciony el armor° detelefono del °booed° del demandante, o del demandante quo no liens °booed°, es): 
Vache Thomassian, Esq., 230 North Maryland Avenue, Suite 306; Glendale, CA 91206 Ph:818-507-8525 

DATF:. APR 1 6 :2019 Sherri R. Carter, Clerk clerk;  by , Deputy 
Feci7a) (Secretado) STEVEN DREW (Ad)unto)  
(For. prOof of service Of this summons, usci:ProOf of Service Of Summons. (form POSL010).) 
(Para prueba de entmga de rale citation use el formulado Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)). 

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served 
1. F-1 as an Individual-defendant. 
2. r---1 the personsued under the fictitious name of.(specity): 

keu Or. er f I hc - / ecy- 
rerciAtcr? of (specify): 

under. Lid CCP 416.10 (corporation) Q CCP 416.60 (minor) 
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By: Steven Drew, Deputy 
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10 

11 SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

JUAN M. GUZNIAN-LOPF7. Case No.: 19STCV13050 
14 'similarly situated, 

individually and on behalf of all others
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7. Failure to Pay All Wages Due to Discharged 

and Quitting Employees; 
8. Unfair Business Practices; and 
9. Failure to Indemnify Employees for Business 

Expenditures and Losses 
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PlaintiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez brings this action on behalf of himself, and on behalf of 

all other similarly-situated members of the public, and alleges the following: 

I. INTRODUCTION  

1. PlaintiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez ("Plaintiff") brings this dass action to remedy wage-

and-hour violations by Defendants Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., The American Bottling Company and 

Does 1 through 20 (collectively, "Defendants"). For at least four years prior to the filing of this 

Complaint and through the present, Defendants have engaged in a uniform policy and systematic 

scheme of wage abuse against Plaintiff and other non-exempt employees of Defendants in violation 

of applicable California laws, including, without limitation, failing to provide meal and rest breaks, 

and failing to pay minimum and overtime wages. 

II. THE PARTIES 

2. Defendant The American Bottling Company is a subsidiary of Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

Inc. offering bottling services and is distributor of Dr. Pepper affiliated soft drinks. At all times 

mentioned herein, Defendant The American Bottling Company was and is an employer covered 

by the California Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage 

Order. 

3. Defendant &trig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., formerly Dr. Pepper-Snapple Group, Inc., is a 

nationwide conglomerate and makers of various assortments of soft drinks. M all times mentioned 

herein, Defendant Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. was and is an employer covered by die California 

Labor Code and the California Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order. 

4. Plaintiff is unaware and ignorant of the true names and capacities of defendants sued 

herein as Does I through 20, inclusive, and for that reason sues said defendants by such fictitious 

names (the "Doe Defendants"). 

5. At all times herein relevant, Defendants, and each of them, were die agents, 

partners, joint-venturers, joint employers, alter-egos, representatives, servants, employees, 

successors-in-interest, co-conspirators and assigns, each of the other, and at times relevant hereto 

were acting with the course and cope of theirs authority as such agents, partners, joint-venturers, 
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4 1. PlaintiffJuan  M. Guzman-Lopez ("Plaintiff") brings this class action to remedy wage- 

5 and-hour violations by Defendants Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc., The American Bottling Company and 

6 Does 1 through 20 (collectively, "Defendants"), For at least four years prior to the filing of this 

7 Complaint and through the present, Defendants have engaged in a uniform policy and systematic 

scheme of wage abuse against Plaintiff and other non-exempt employees of Defendants in violation 

of applicable California laws, including, without limitation, failing to provide meal and rest breaks, 

and failing to pay minimum and overtime wages. 
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1 joint employers, alter-egos, representatives, servants, employees, successors-in-interest, co- 

2 conspirators and assigns, and all acts or omissions alleged herein were duly committed with the 

3 i ratification, knowledge, permission, encouragement, authorization, and consent of each defendant 

4 designated herein. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that the acts of 

5 each Defendants are legally attributable to the other Defendants. 

6 6. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that each of the Doe 

7 Defendants is legally responsible for die events and happenings referred to in this Complaint, and 

8 unlawfully caused the injuries and damages to Plaintiff and similarly situated employees as alleged 

9 in this Complaint. Plaintiff will file and serve an amendment to this Complaint alleging the true 

10 names and capacities of the Doe Defendants when such true names, capacities, and involvement is 

11 ascertained. 

12 • 7. PlabatiffJuan M. Guzman-Lopez was jointly employed by Defendants at its facility 

13 in Vernon, California as a merchandiser from approximately November 2017 to September 2018. 

14. As a merchandiser, Plaintiff would drive to various storefronts throughout Los Angeles County in 

15 order to set up promotional signs and stock-up on merchandise under the Keurig-Dr. Pepper 

16 banner. At all times during his employment with Defendants, Plaintiff was a non-exempt 

17 employee, paid in whole or in part on an hourly basis. Plaintiff is an individual residing in the 

18 County of Los Angeles, California. 

19 8. Plaintiff brings this class action on behalf of himself and a Class, defined as: All 

20 persons who have been employed by The American Bottling Company and Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 

21 Inc. in California as a non-exempt employee at any time during the period beginning four years 

22 prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the "Class 

23 Period"). 

24 9. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants jointly exercised control over die 

25 wages, hours, and working conditions of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; suffered and 

26 permitted Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to work; and otherwise engaged Plaintiff and 

27 similarly situated employees to work, so as to create an employer-employee relationship between 

28
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16 banner. At all times during his employment with Defendants, Plaintiff was a non-exempt 

17 employee, paid in whole or in part on an hourly basis. Plaintiff is an individual residing in die 
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20 persons who have been employed by The American Bottling Company and Keurig-Dr. Pepper, 
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Defendants and Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. AL all relevant. times, Defendants were 

2 j "employers" of Plaintiff within the meaning of all applicable California state laws. 

3 III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4 10. This class action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 382. 

5 i The monetary damages and restitution sought by Plaintiff exceed the minimal jurisdiction limits of 

6 the Superior Court and will be established according to proof at trial. 

7 11. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under the California Constitution, Article 

8 VI, Section 10, which grants the Superior Court original jurisdiction in all causes except those 

9 given by statute to other courts. The statutes under which this action is brought do not specifically 

10 grant jurisdiction to any other court, and the issues are based solely on California statutes and law, 

11 including the California Labor Code, California 1VVC Wage Orders, California Code of Civil 

12 Procedure, California Civil Code, and the California Business and Professions Code. 

13: 12. The California Superior Court has jurisdiction over Defendants, because they are 

14 citizens of California, have sufficient minimum contacts in California, and otherwise intentionally 

15 avail themselves to die California market, including establishing their principal place of business 

16 and transacting business in California. Venue is proper in this Court, because Defendants transact 

17 business in the County of Los Angeles, including offering their services in the county, and during 

18 relevant time periods, Plaintiff was employed by'Defendants in the County of Los Angeles. 

19 IV. FACTUAL BACKGROUND  

20 13. At all relevant times set forth in this Complaint, Defendants employed Plaintiff and 

21 similarly situated employees as hourly, non-exempt employees. 

22 I 14. Plaintiff and each member of the Class were covered under one or more IWC 

23 Wage Orders and/or the California Labor Code provisions relating to wage-and-hour laws, and 

24 other applicable wage orders, regulations, and statutes, which imposed an obligation on the part of 

25 Defendants, among other things, to provide uninterrupted meal and rest periods, to pay overtime 

26 wages, to pay wages for all hours worked, and to provide accurate wage statements. 

27 15. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants are, 

28
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21 similarly situated employees as hourly, non-exempt employees. 
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1 and at all times relevant hereto were, authorized to conduct business in the state of California, and 

2 does conduct business in the state of California. Specifically, Defendants maintains facilities and 

3 j conducts business in, and engages in illegal payroll practices or policies in the county of Los 

4 Angeles, State of California. 

5 16. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants 

6 I engaged in a uniform policy and systematic scheme of wage abuse against its non-exempt 

7 1 employees, including, without limitation, depriving their employees of uninterrupted thirty-minute 

8 meal periods for work periods of at least five hours; depriving their employees of ten-minute rest 

9 periods for work periods of four hours or major fractions; failing to compensate employees for all 

10 hours worked, including overtime wages; failing to provide timely, accurate itemized wage 

11 statements; and failing to pay, within the time constraints imposed by applicable laws, all earned 

12 compensation at separation of employment. 

13 17. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

14 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees the required meal periods or payment of one 

15 additional hour of pay at Plaintiff's and the other Class members' regular rate of Pay when a meal 

16 break was missed during the Class Period. This was a result of Defendants' uniform policy and 

17 practice of altering Plaintiffs and other Class members' time records by recording fictitious 30- 

18 minute meal breaks in Defendants' timekeeping system so as to create the appearance that 

19 Defendants provided Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 30-minute meal breaks when in fact 

20 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were not at all times provided 30-minute meal breaks. 

21 As a result of Defendants' demanding deadlines, Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were 

22 required to perform work as ordered by Defendants for more than five hours during a shift 

23 without receiving a duty-free, uninterrupted meal break and/or more than ten hours in a shift 

24 without receiving a second meal break. Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice for 

25 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to report missed meal periods or recover lost wages, and 

26 Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice to provide one hour of additional wages for each 

27 workday that the meal breaks were not provided. 

28 5 
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1 

18. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

2 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees rest periods of at least ten minutes per four 

3 hours worked, or major fraction thereof, and failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated 

4 employees one hour of additional wages at Plaintiff's and other Class members' regular rate of pay 

5 when a rest break was not provided during the Class Period. Defendants had no policy, 

6 procedure, or practice for Plaintiff and similarly situated employees to report missed rest breaks or 

7 recover lost wages, and Defendants had no policy, procedure, or practice to provide one hour of 

8 additional wages for each workday that the rest break was not provided. 

9 19. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants failed 

10 to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees' wages, including overtime wages, for all hours 

11 worked, meaning the time during which Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were subject to 

12 the control of Defendants, including all the time they were suffered or permitted to work. This 

13 was a result of Defendants' uniform policy and practice of requiring Plaintiff and similarly situated 

14 employees to work off-the-clock without paying them for all the time they were under Defendants' 

15 control performing pre-shift and post-shift duties and during purported meal breaks. Plaintiff and 

16 similarly situated employees were entitled to receive compensation for all hours worked, and that 

17 they did not receive compensation for all hours worked. Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

18 worked over eight hours in a day, and/or forty hours in a week during their employment with 

19 Defendants and Defendants failed to pay overtime wages to Plaintiff and similarly situated 

20 employees for all hours worked more than eight hours in a day and/or forty hours per week. 

21 20. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants had 

22 unlawfully failed to provide timely, accurate, itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and similarly 

23 situated employees. 

24 21. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants have 

25 failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees California's prevailing minimum wage for 

26 "all hours worked". Plaintiff and similarly situated employees were subject to Defendants' 

27 excessive expectation that its employees complete their assigned routes within predetermined 

28
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19 Defendants and Defendants failed to pay overtime wages to Plaintiff and similarly situated 

20 employees for all hours worked more than eight hours in a day and/or forty hours per week. 

21 20. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges that Defendants had 

22 unlawfully failed to provide timely, accurate, itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and similarly 

23 situated employees. 
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timeframe at all cost. As a result of Defendants' demands, Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees had their 30 minute meal breaks deducted so as to appear as if they took their duty-

free, uninterrupted meal breaks. Such deducted time expended by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees qualified as "hours worked" within the meaning of the California Labor Code and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, for which Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and similarly 

situated employees. 

22. As a direct result and proximate result of the unlawful actions of Defendants, 

Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings in 

amounts as yet unascertained, but subject to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

V. CLASS ALLEGATIONS  

23. Class Definition. The named individual Plaintiff brings this action on his own behalf 

and on behalf of all similarly-situated persons as a class action under California Code of Civil 

Procedure § 382. Plaintiff proposes the following class ("Class"): 

All persons who have been employed by Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. 
and The American Bottling Company in California as a non-exempt 
employee at any time during the period beginning four years prior 
to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as determined 
by the Court (the "Class Period"). 

24. Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or modify the class description with greater 

particularity or further division into subclasses. 

25. AscertainableClass. The proposed Class is ascertainable, because the members can 

be identified and located using information contained in Defendants' payroll and personnel 

records. 

26. Numerosity. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members would be impractical and unfeasible. While the precise number of Class members is 

currently unknown to Plaintiff, Plaintiff is informed and believes drat the Class is estimated to be 

greater than 50 individuals. A) 

27. Typicality. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the Class as Plaintiff and members of the 

Class were all subjected by Defendants to the same violations of die Labor Code, the applicable 
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timeframe at all cost As a result of Defendants' demands, Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees had their 30 minute meal breaks deducted so asia appear as if they took their duty-

free, uninterrupted meal breaks. Such deducted time expended by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees qualified as "hours worked" within the meaning of the California Labor Code and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, for which Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiff and similarly 

situated employees. 

All persons who have been employed by Kcurig-Dr. Pepper, Inc. 
and The American Bottling Company in California as a non-exempt 
employee at any time during the period beginning four years prior 
to the filing of this Complaint and endingon the date as determined 
by the Court (the "Class Period"). 

Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or modify die class- description with greater 

particularity or further division into subclasses. 

Asceiithnah1e Class. The proposed Class is ascertainable, because the members can 

be identified and located using information contained in Defendants' payroll and personnel 

records. 

Numcrosily. The members.of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members would be impractical and unfeasible. While the precise number of Class members is 

currently unknown to Plaintiff, Plaintiff is informed and believes-  that the Class is estimated to be 

greater than 50 individuals. 

27. Typicalfty. Plaintiffs claims are typical of the Class as Plaintiff and members of the 

Class were all subjected by Defendants to the same violations of die Labor Code, the applicable 
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As a direct result and proximate result of the unlawful actions of Defendants, 

Plaintiff and other Class members have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings in 
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IWC Wage Order, and the Business and Professions Code. 

2 28. Adequacy of Representation. The named Plaintiff is fully prepared to take all 

3 necessary steps to represent fairly and adequately the interests of the Class, and has retained 

4 counsel who is experienced in class action and wage-and-hour litigation of this nature. Plaintiff 

5 does not have any interests adverse to the interests of the Class members and will fairly and 

6 adequately protect the interests of all Class members. 

7 29. Superiority. A class action is superior to other available means for the fair and 

8 efficient adjudication of this controversy. The potential class is a significant number. Individual 

9 joinder of all former and current employees is not practicable. 

10 30. Common Question of Law and Fact There are questions of law and fact common 

11 to the potential Class that predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of the 
• 

12 Class which focuses on Defendants' illegal practices and policies which were applied to all non- 

13 exempt employees in violation of the Labor Code, applicable IWC Wage Order, and the Business 

14 and Professions Code which prohibits unfair business practices arising from such violations. 

15 These common questions of law and fact, include, without limitation: 

16 a. Whether Defendants' policies and practices provide meal and rest periods in 

17 compliance with applicable laws; 

18 b. Whether Defendants deprived Plaintiff and similarly situated employees of 

19 meal or rest periods; 

20 c. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

21
adequate off-duty meal periods and missed meal period compensation; 

22
d. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of failing to 

23
properly compensate the Plaintiff and similarly situated employees for all hours 

24
worked; including overtime wages; 

c. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of encouraging 
25 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees not to report all time worked; 
26 

f. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees for 
27 

the work that Defendants required them to perform; 
28 
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g. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of threatening 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees with discharge, demotion, or 

discrimination or otherwise intimidating them if they do not work off-the-clock; 

h. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation when Plaintiff and similarly situated employees worked 

in excess of eight hours in a day or forty in a workweek; 

i. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation at double their regular rate of pay when Plaintiff and 

similarly situated employees worked in excess of twelve hours in a day or in 

'excess of eight on the seventh consecutive day of work in a workweek; 

j. Whether Defendants included all required compensation in calculating the 

overtime rate of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; 

k. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

with accurate itemized wage statements; 

1. Whether Defendants failed to reimburse for business expenditures and losses; 

m. Whether Defendants acted with malice, oppression, or fraud; 

n. Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code SS 201-204, 226.7, 227.3, 

210, 510, 512, 551, 552, 1118.12, 1194 et seq., 1197, and 1198; 

o. Whether Defendants violated Industrial Welfare Commission Orders; 

p. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair business practices in violation of 

California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq.; and 

q. The nature and extent of the injury suffered by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

employees and the measure of damages for the injury. 

31. The nature of this action and the format of laws available to Plaintiff and members 

of die Class make the class action format a particularly efficient and an appropriate procedure to 

redress the wrongs alleged herein. If each member of the Class were required to file an individual 

lawsuit, Defendants would necessarily gain an unconscionable advantage since they would be able 

to exploit and ovenvhelin the limited resources of each individual plaintiff with their vastly superior 
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g. Whether Defendants have engaged in a pattern and/or practice of threatening 

2 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees with discharge, demotion, or 

discrimination or otherwise intimidating them if they do not work off-die-clock, 

Ii. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

S overtime compensation when Plaintiff and similarly situated employees worked 

21 
in excess of eight hours in a day or forty in a workweek, 

i. Whether Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

overtime compensation at double their regular rate of pay when Plaintiff and 

9 
similarly situated employees worked in excess of twelve hours in a day or in 

excess of eight on the seventh consecutive day of work in a workweek; 
10 

j. Whether Defendants included all required compensation in calculating the 
11 

overtime rate of Plaintiff and similarly situated employees; 
12 

k. Whether Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated employees 

13 
with accurate itemized wage statements; 

14 1. Whether Defendants failed to reimburse for business expenditures and losses; 

15 in. Whether Defendants acted with malice, oppression, or fraud; 

16 n. Whether Defendants violated California Labor Code SS 201-204,226.7, 227.3, 

17 210,510,512, 551,552,1118.12,1194 ctscq., 1197, and 1198; 

18 o. Whether Defendants violated Industrial Welfare Commission Others; 

19 P. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair business practices in violation of 

20 California Business & Professions Code SS 17200, ctscq.; and 

21 q. The nature and extent of the injury suffered by Plaintiff and similarly situated 

22 employees and- die measure of damages for die injury. 

23 31. The nature of this action and the format of laws available to Plaintiff and members 

24 of the Class make the class action format a particularly efficient and an appropriate procedure to 

25 redress the wrongs alleged herein. If each member of the Class were required to ifie an individual 

26 lawsuit, Defendants would necessarily gain an unconscionable advantage since they would be able 

27 to exploit and overwhelm the limited resources of each individual plaintiff with their vastly superior 

28 
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financial and legal resources Requiring each Class member to pursue an individual remedy would 

also discourage the assertion of lawful claims by employees who would be disinclined to file an 

3 action against their former or current employer for real and justifiable fear of retaliation and 

4 permanent damage to their careers at subsequent employment 

5 32. Plaintiff is unaware of any difficulties in managing this case that should preclude class 

6 I action. 

7 i VI. CAUSES OF ACTION  

8 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Pay Minimum Wage 

9 (Cal. Labor Code §§ 204, 1194 et seq., 1197, 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No..1-2001, § 4) 

10 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

11 33. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

12 though set forth fully herein: Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

13 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

14 34. California Libor Code § 204, IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 4, and other applicable 

15 laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked. 

16 35. California Labor Code § 1197 further provides, "The minimum wage for employees 

17 fixed by the commission or by any applicable state or local law, is the minimum wage to be paid to 

18 employees, and the payment of a lower wage than the minimum so fixed is unlawful." 

19 36. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

20 wages, including interest, and the cost of suit.. California Labor Code § 1198 further provides that 

21 the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 

22 37. Defendants failed to, and continue to fail to pay Plaintiff and Class members 

23 minimum wages for all hours worked by, among other things: requiring, suffering, or permitting 

24 Plaintiff and Class members to work off-the-clock; requiring, suffering or permitting Plaintiff and 

25 Class members to work through meal breaks; illegally and inaccurately recording time worked by 

26 Plaintiff and Class members; failing to properly maintain Plaintiffs and Class members' records; 

27 failing to provide itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and Class members for each pay period; 

28 and other methods to be discovered. 
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I financial and legal resources. Requiring each Class member to pursue an individual remedy would 

2 also disccwnge the assertion of lawful claims by employees who would be disinclined to file an 

3 action against their former or current employer for real and justifiable fear of retaliation and 

4 permanent damage to their careers at subsequent employment. 

5 32. Plaintiff is unaware of any difficulties in managing this case that should preclude class 

6 action. 

7 VI. CAUSES OFACTION 

8 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
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Failure to Pay Minimum Wage 

(Cal. Labor Code §S 204, 1194 ctscq., 1197, 1197.1, 1198, 1\'VC Wage Order No.. 1-2001, § 4) 

10 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

11 33. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

12 though set forth fully herein: Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

13 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

14 34. California Labor Code § 204, )WC Wage Order 1-2001, § 4, and other applicable 

15 laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked. 

16 35. California Labor Code § 1197 further provides, "The minimum wage for employees 

17 
fixed by the commission or by any applicable state or local law, is the minimum wage to be paid to 

18 employees, and the payment of a lower wage than the minimum so fixed is unlassThl." 

19 36. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

20 wages, including interest, and the cost of suiL California Labor Code § 1198 further provides that 

21 
the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 

22 37.Defendants failed to, and continue to fail to pay Plaintiff and Class members 

23 
minimum wages for all hours worked by, among other things: requiring, suffering, or permitting 

24 Plaintiff and Class members to work off-the-doclq requiring, suffering or permitting Plaintiff and 

25 
Class members to work through meal breaks; illegally and inaccurately recording time worked by 

26 Plaintiff and Class members; failing to properly maintain Plaintiffs and Class remben' records; 

27 failing to provide itemized wage statements to Plaintiff and Class members for each pay period; 

28 and other methods to be discovered. 
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1 38. Defendants knew or should have known that Plaintiff and Class members worked 

2 hours for which they were not compensated. 

3 i 39. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

4 iLabor Code §§ 1194 and 1197 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, §4. Asa proximate result of 

5 the aforementioned violations, Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount 

6 according to proof at trial. Therefore, pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 200, 203, 226, 558, 

7 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions under the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 

8 No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed 

9 to them by Defendants, plus interest, penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

10 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

11
Failure to Pay Overtime Wair-s 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 510, 204, 1194 et seq., 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3) 
12 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

13 40. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

14 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

15 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

16 41. California Labor Code § 204, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3, and other 

17 applicable laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all 

18 hours worked. 

19 42. California Labor Code § 510 provides that employees in California shall not be 

20 employed more than eight hours per workday or forty hours per workweek unless they receive 

21 additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts specified by law. 

22 43. California Labor Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not 

23 be employed more than twelve hours per workday unless they receive wages at double their regular 

24 rate of pay. 

25 4,4. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 

26 f wages, induding overtime compensation and interest, and the cost of suit California Labor Code 

27 § 1198 further provides that the employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the 

28 IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 
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39. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

4 Labor Code SS 1194 and 1197 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, §4. As a proximate result of 

the aforementioned violations, Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount 

according to proof at trial. Therefore, pursuant to California Labor Code §S 200, 203, 226, 558, 

7 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions under die Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 

No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed 

to them by Defendants, plus interest, penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

10 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

1•1 (Cal. Labor Code §S 510, 204, 1194 et seq., 1197.1, 1198, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3) 
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages 

(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 12 

40. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and - re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 13 

though set forth hilly herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 14 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 15 
41. California Labor Code § 204, 1WC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3, and other 16 

applicable laws and regulations, provide that an employer must timely pay its employees for all 17 

hours worked. 18 

42. California Labor Code § .510 provides that employees in California shall not be 19 

employed more than eight hours per workday or forty hours per workweek unless they receive 20 

additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts specified by law. 21 

43. California Labor Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not 22 

be employed more than twelve hours per workday unless they receive wages at double their regular 23 

rate of pay. 24 

44. California Labor Code § 1194 establishes an employee's right to recover unpaid 25 
wages, including overtime compensation and interest, and-the cost of suit California Labor Code 26 

§ 1198 further provides that die employment of an employee for longer than those fixed by the 27 

IWC Wage Orders is unlawful. 28 
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45. Plaintiff and Class members are current and former non-exempt employees entitled 

2 to the protections of California Labor Code §§ 510 and 1194, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

3 46. Defendants maintained and enforced policies and practices of refusing to pay 

4 Plaintiff and Class members for all hours worked. Defendants employed Plaintiff and Class 

5 members for more than eight hours per day and more than 40 hours per workweek during die 

6 operative timefrarnc, but Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and Class members the correct 

7 applicable overtime rate for the number of overtime hours they worked as required by the 

8 f California Labor Code and the applicable IWC Wage Order. 

9 47. Defendants thus required Plaintiff and Class members to work under conditions 

10 prohibited by order of die IWC, in violation of those orders. 

11 48. Defendants owe Plaintiff and Class members overtime wages, have failed and 

12 refused, and continues to fail and refuse, to pay the overtime wages owed. Additionally, 

13 Defendants did not include all the required compensation in calculating the overtime rate of 

14 Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. 

15 49. Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

16 Labor Code §§ 510, 1194 and 1198 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3. Therefore, pursuant 

17 to California Labor Code §§ 200, 203, 226, 558, 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions 

18 under the labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are 

19 entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed to them by Defendants, plus interest, 

20 penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Provide Meal Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226.7, 512, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 11) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

50. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

51. Plaintiff and Class members regularly worked greater than five hours and on 

occasion greater than ten hours per day. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 512, an employer 
12 
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Plaintiff and Class members are current and fomier non-exempt employees entitled 

2 to the protections of California Labor Code §5510 and 1194, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

Defendants maintained and enforced policies and practices of refusing to pay 

Plaintiff and Class members for all hours worked. Defendants employed Plaintiff and Class 

members for more than eight hours per day and more than 40 hours per workweek during die 

M operative timeframe, but Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and Class members the correct 

7 applicable overtime rate for the number of overtime hours they worked as required by die 

California Labor Code and the applicable IWC Wage Order. 

Defendants thus required Plaintiff and Class members to work under conditions 

prohibited by order of the IWC, in violation of those orders. 

Defendants owe Plaintiff and Class members overtime wages, have failed and 

refused, and continues to fail and refuse, to pay the overtime wages owed. Additionally, 

Defendants did not include all the required compensation in calculating the oveninie rate of 

Plaintiff and similarly situated employees. 

Defendants' conduct described herein violates, and continues to violate, California 

Labor Code §5 510, 1194 and 1198 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 3. Therefore, pursuant 

to Calilbrnia Labor Code §5.200, 203, 226, 558, 1194, and 1197.1 and other applicable provisions 

under the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, Plaintiff and Class members are 

entitled to recover the unpaid balance of wages owed to them by Defendants, plus interest, 

penalties, attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs of suit. 
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Failure to Provide Meal Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code §5226.7,512, tM/C Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 11) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 
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of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

Plaintiff and Class members regularly worked greater than five hours and on 

occasion greater than ten hours per day. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 512, an employer 
12 
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may not. employ someone for a shift of more than five hours without providing him or her with a 

meal period of not less than thirty minutes or for more than ten hours without providing him or 

her with a second meal period of not less than thirty minutes. 

52. Despite the requirements of the applicable IWC Wage Order and California Labor 

Code §§ 512 and 226.7, Defendants required, permitted or otherwise suffered Plaintiff and Class 

members to take less than the 30 minute meal period, or to work through them, and have failed to 

otherwise provide the required meal periods to Plaintiff and Class members. 

53. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members were required to work 

through or cut short their meal breaks due to Defendants' requirement that Plaintiff and Class 

members complete their assignments within predetermined amount of time, without taking into 

consideration such factors as travel time, and need to stop for meal breaks. Defendants failed to 

'factor in such impediments, or enact protocols that would have allowed Plaintiff and Class 

members to report missed, delayed, or interrupted meal breaks. 

54. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have 

sustained economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an 

amount according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each 

day in which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further 

entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021-5,-and pursuant to Labbr 

Code section 2699(8)(1), Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of 

the California labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION  
Failure to Provide Rest Periods 

(Cal. LabOr Code § 226.7, 512; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12) 
(By Plaintiff and the ClaSs AgainSt Each Defendant) 

55. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

13 
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may not. employ someone for a shift of more than five hours without providing him or her with a 

2 meal period of not less than thirty minutes or for more than ten hours without providing him or 

3 her with a second meal period of not less than thirty minutes. 

4 52. Despite the requirements of the applicable 1WC Wage Order and California Labor 

5 Code SS 512 and 226.7, Defendants required, permitted or otherwise suffered Plaintiff and Class 

6 members to take less than die 30 minute meal period, or to work through them, and have failed to 

otherwise provide the required meal periods to Plaintiff and Class members. 

During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members were required to work 

through or cut short their meal breaks due to Defendants' requirement that Plaintiff and Class 

members complete their assignments Wit1IkI predetermined amount of time, without taking into 

consideration such factors as travel time, and need to stop for meal breaks. Defendants failed to 

factor in such impediments, or enact protocols that would h ave allowed Plaintiff and Class 

members to report missed, delayed, or interrupted meal breaks 

Pursuant to California Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have 

sustained economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an 

amount according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each 

day in which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further 

entitled to attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 10213,-and pursuant to Labbr 

Code section 2699 1g)(1),  Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of 

the California Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Provide Rest Periods 

(Cal. Labor Code § 226.7,512; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12) 
(By Plaintiff and die Class Againt Each Defendant) 

Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
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1 56. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 (A) , "le'very employer shall 

2 authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall he in the 

3 middle of each work period.. . . (The] authorized rest period time shall be based on the total 

4 hours worked daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours worked or major 

5 fraction thereof.. . . Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours worked, for which 

6 there shall be no deduction from wages." California Labor Code § 226.7(a) prohibits an employer 

7 from requiring any employee to work during any rest period mandated by an applicable order of 

8 the IWC. Under these laws, Defendant was required to authorize and permit Plaintiff and Class 

9 members to take rest periods, based upon the total hours worked at a rate of ten minutes' net rest 

10 per four hours, or major fraction thereof, with no deduction from wages. 

11 .57. During the Covered Period, Defendant provided Plaintiff and Class members with 

12 policies that did not permit first or second rest breaks for shifts between six and eight hours or 

13 third rest breaks for shifts over ten hours. 

14 58. Defendants violated, and continue to violate California Labor Code § 226.7 and 

15 IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 by failing to pay Plaintiff and Class members who were not 

16 provided with a rest break, in accordance with die applicable wage order, one additional hour of 

17 compensation at each employees' regular rate of pay for each workday that a rest period was not 

18 provided. 

19 59. Pursuant to Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have sustained 

20 economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an amount 

21 according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in 

22 which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are further entitled to 

23 attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, and pursuant to Labor Code section 

24 2699(8)(1), Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and 

25 costs relating to their claims for civil penalties due to Defendants' violation of the California Labor 

26 Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. 

27 

28
14 
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1 56. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 12 (A) , "ejvery employer shall 

2 authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall he in the 

3 middle of each work period... . ITliel authorized rest period time shall be based on the total 

4 hours worked daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours worked or major 

5 fraction thereof.... Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours worked, for which 

6 there shall be no deduction from wages." California Labor Code § 226.7(a) prohibits an employer 

7 from requiring any employee to work during any rest period mandated by an applicable order of 

8 the IWC. Under these laws, Defendant was required to authorize and permit Plaintiff and Class 

9 members to take rest periods, based upon the total hours worked at a the of ten minutes' net rest 

10 per four hours, or major fraction thereof, with no deduction from wages. 

11 .57. During the Covered Period, Defendant provided Plaintiff and Class members with 

12 policies that did not permit first or second rest breaks for shifts between six and eight hours or 

13 third rest breaks for shifts over ten hours. 

14 58. Defendants violated, and continue to violate California. Labor Code § 226.7 and 

15 IWC Wage Other No. 1-2001, § 12 by failing to pay Plaintiff and Class members who were not 

16 provided with a rest break, in accordance with the applicable wage order, one additional hour of 

17 compensation at each employees' regular rate of pay for each workday that a rest period was not 

18 provided. 

19 59. Pursuant to Labor Code § 226.7, Plaintiff and Class members have sustained 

20 economic damages, including, but not limited to, unpaid wages and lost interest, in an amount 

21 according to proof at trial, and are entitled to recover one-hour of premium pay for each day in 

22 which a lawful meal period was not provided. Plaintiff and Class members are fuither entitled to 

23 attorneys' fees pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, and pursuant to Labor Code section 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226 & 226.3, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 7) 
(By Plaintiff and die Class Against Each Defendant) 

60. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

61. California Labor Code § 226(a) and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B) require 

employers semimonthly or at the time of each payment of wages to furnish each employee with a 

statement itemizing, among other things, all applicable hourly rates. Labor Code § 226(b) provides 

that if an employer knowingly and intentionally fails to provide a statement itemizing, among other 

things, all applicable hourly rates, then the employee is entitled to recover the greater of all actual 

damages or fifty dollars for the initial violation and one hundred dollars for each subsequent 

violation, up to four thousand dollars. 

62. Defendants knowingly and intentionally.failed to furnish Plaintiff and Class 

members with timely, itemized statements as required by Califoniia Labor Code § 226(a) and 

IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B). As a result, Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and to the Class 

for the amounts provided by Labor Code § 226(b) and for penalties, and attorneys' fees. 

63. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members suffered, and continue to 

suffer, injury as a result of Defendants' failure to.provide timely and accurate itemized wage 

statements, as Plaintiff and Class members could not promptly and easily determine from the wage 

statement alone one or more of the. following: the gross wages earned, the total hours worked, all 

deductions made, the net wages earned, the name and address of the legal entity or entities 

employing Plaintiff and Class members, and/or all applicable hourly rates in effect during cad' pay 

period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate. 

64. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, 

Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial, and seek 

all wages earned and due, plus interest. thereon. Additionally, Plaintiff and Class members are 

entitled to all available statutory and civil penalties, including but not limited to statutory and civil 
15 
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I FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

2 
Failure to Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements 

(Cal. Labor Code §5 226 & 226.3, LWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, 5 7) 

3 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth hilly herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

6 of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

California Labor Code § 226(a) and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B) require 

8 employers semimonthly or at the time of each payment of wages to furnish each employee with a 

statement itemizing, among other things, all applicable hourly rates. Labor Code 5 226(b) provides 

10 that if an employer knowingly and intentionally fails to provide a statement itemizing, among other 

things, all applicable hourly rates, then die employee is entitled to recover the greater of all actual 

12 damages or fifty dollars for the initial violation and one hundred dollars for each subsequent 

13 violation, up to four thousand dollars. 

14 62. Defendants knowingly and intentionallyfailed to furnish Plaintiff and Class 

15 members with timely, itemized statements as required by California Labor Code § 226(a) and 

16 IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7(B). As a result, Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and to die Class 

1.7 for die amounts provided by Labor Code § 226(b) and for penalties, and attorneys' fees. 

18 63. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and Class members suffered, and continue to 

19 suffer, injury as aresult of Defendants' failure to provide timely and accurate itemized wage 

20 staements, as Plaintiff and Class members could not promptly and easily determine from the wage 

21 statement alone one or more of the. following- the gross wages earned, the total hours worked, all 

22 deductions made, the net wages earned, the name and address of the legal entity or entities 

23 
employing Plaintiff and Class members, and/or all applicable hourly rates in effect during each pay 

24 period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate. 

25 64. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, 

26 
Plaintiff and Class members have been damaged in an amount according to proof at trial, and seek 

27 all wages earned and due, plus interest, thereon. Additionally, Plaintiff and Class members are 

28 entitled to all available statutory and civil penalties, including but not limited to statutory and civil 
is 

CLASS ACTION AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 

Case 2:19-cv-04358   Document 1-1   Filed 05/20/19   Page 64 of 107   Page ID #:91



penalties pursuant to California Labor Code § 226(e) and 1174.5, and an award of costs, expenses, 

and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in California Labor 

Code § 226(e), as well as other available remedies. 
SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Failure to Maintain Required Records 
(Cal. Labor Code §§ 226, 1174, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 7) 

(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

65. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

66. As part of Defendants' illegal policies and practices to deprive Plaintiff of all wages 

earned and due, Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to maintain records as required 

under California Labor Code §§ 226 and 1174 and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, § 7, including but 

not limited to the following records, total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of 

pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each employee begins and ends each 

work period; and accurate itemized statements. 

67. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff has 

been damaged in an amount accofding to proof at trial, and is entitled to all wages earned and due, 

plus interest thereon. 

68. Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all available statutory penalties, including but not 

limited to civil penalties pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 226(2) and 1174.5, and an award of 

costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in 

California Labor Code § 226(e), as well as other remedies available. 

5EVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Pay All Wages Due to Discharged and Quitting Employees 

(Cal. Labor Code §§ 201,202, 203) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

69. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
16 
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I penalties pursuant to California Labor Code § £26(e) and 1174.5, and an award of costs, expenses, 

2 and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in California Labor 

3 Code § 226(e), as well as oilier available remedies. 

4 SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Maintain Required Records 

(Cal. labor Code §S 226,1174, IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 7) 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

6 
65. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class actjon and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

66. As part of Defendants' illegal policies and practices to deprive Plaintiff of all wages 
10 

earned and due, Defendants knowingly and intentionally failed to maintain records as required 
11 

under California Labor Code §5 226 and 1174 and IWC Wage Order 1-2001, 5 7, including but 
12 

not limited to the following records,-total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of 
13 

pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each employee begins and ends each 
14 

work period; and accurate itemized statements. 
15 

67. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff has 
16 

been damaged in an amount accotding to proof at trial, and is entitled to all wages earned and due, 
17 

plus interest thereon. 
18 

68, Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all a vailable statutory penalties, including but not 
19 

limited to civil penalties pursuant to California Labor Code §5226(2)  and 1174.5, and an award of 
20 

costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees, including but not limited to those provided in 
21 

California Labor Code § 226(e), as well as other remedies available. 
22 - 

23 SEVENTHCAUSEOF.ACTION 
Failure to Pay All Wages Due to fliscbargcd and Quitting Employees 

24 (Cal. Labor Code §5 201,202, 203) 

25 
(By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

26 
69. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges the paragraphs set forth above as 

27 
though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as a class action and a representative cause 

of action on behalf of himself and all Class members. 
28 
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70. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 201, 202, and 203, Defendants are required to 

2 pay all earned and unpaid wages to discharged and quitting employees. 

3 71. California Labor Code § 201 mandates that if an employer discharges an employee, 

4 the employee's wages accrued and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable 

5 immediately. 

6 72. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 202, Defendants are required to pay all 

7 accrued wages due to an employee no later than 72 hours after die employee quits his or her 

8 employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours previous notice Of his or her intention to 

9 quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages at the time of quitting. 

10 73. California Labor Code § 203 provides that if an employer willfully fails to pay, in 

11 accordance with California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202, any wages of an employee who 

12 discharged or who quits, die employer is liable for waiting time penalties in the form of continued 

13 compensation to the employee at the same rate for up to 30 workdays. 

14 74. During the Class Period, Defendants have willfully failed, and continue to willfully 

15 fail, to pay accrued wages and other compensation to Plaintiff and Class members in accordance 

16 with California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202. 

17 75. As a result, Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to all available statutory 

18 penalties, including the waiting time penalties provided in California Labor Code § 203, together 

19 with interest thereon, as well as other available remedies. 

20
EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION. 

21 Unfair and Unlawful Business Practices 
(Cal. Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq.) 

22 (By Plaintiff and die Class Against Each Defendant) 

23 76. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

24 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows as representative cause of action on behalf 

25 of himself and all Class members. 

26 77. A violation of California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., may be 

27 predicated on the violation of any state or federal law. Defendants' policies, activities, and actions 

28
17 
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70. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 201, 202, and 203, Defendants are required to 

2 pay all earned and unpaid wages to discharged and quitting employees. 

3 71. California Labor Code § 201 mandates that if an employer discharges an employee, 

4 the employee's wages accrued and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable 

S immediately. 

6 72. Pursuant to California Labor Code § 202, Defendants are required to pay all 

7 accrued wages due to an employee no later than 72 hours after the employee quits his or her 

8 employment, unless die enployee provided 72 hours previous notice 'of his or her intention to 

9 quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages at the time of quitting. 

10 73. California Labor Code § 203 provides that if an employer willfully fails to pay, in 

11 accordance with California labor Code SS 201 and 202, any wages of an employee who 

12 discharged or who quits, the employer is liable for waiting time penalties in the form of continued 

13 compensation to the employee at the same rate for up to 30 workdays. 

14 74. During the Class Period, Defendants have willfully failed, and continue to willfully 

15 fail, to pay accrued wages and other compensation to Plaintiff and Class members in accordance 

16 with California Labor Code §S 201 and 202. 

17 75. As a result, Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to all available statutory 

18 penalties, including the waiting time penalties provided in California Labor Code § 203, together 

19 with interest thereon, as well as other available remedies. 

20 
EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

21 Uflfazr and Unlawful Business Practices 
(Cal. Business and Professions Code § 17200, ci seq.) 

22 (By Plaintiff and the Class Against Each Defendant) 

23 76. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

24 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff Alleges as follows as representative cause of action on behalf 

25 of himself and all Class members. 

26 77. A violation of California Business and Professions Code §S 17200, ci seq., may be 
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as alleged herein, arc violations of California law and constitute unlawful business acts and 

2 practices in violation of California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. Defendants 

3 have engaged and continues to engage in unfair and unlawful business practices in California by 

4 practicing, employing, and utilizing the employment practices outlined above, including failing to 

5 pay reporting time pay, and failing to provide meal and rest breaks in violation of the applicable 

6 IWC Wage Order and California Labor Code. 

7 78. Defendants' violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business 

8 practice because Defendants' aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly over a 

9 significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to die detriment of Plaintiff and Class 

10 members. 

11 79. Defendants have avoided payment of wages, overtime wages, meal and rest break 

12 premium payments, and other benefits as required by the California Labor Code, the California 

13 Code of Regulations, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. Furthermore, Defendants have failed to 

14 record, report, and pay the correct sums of assessment to the state authorities under die California 

15 Labor. Code and other applicable regulations. 

16 80. Defendants' unfair and unlawful business practices, as alleged in this Complaint, 

17 have allowed Defendant to reap in unfair and illegal profits during die Class Period at the expense 

18 of Plaintiff; Class members, and members of the public. Defendants should be made to disgorge 

.19 their ill-gotten gains and restore them to Plaintiff and Class members. Plaintiff seeks to enforce 

20 important rights affecting the public.interest within the meaning of the California Code of Civil 

21 Procedure § 1021.5 

22 81. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., Plaintiff 

23 and Class members are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained by Defendants 

24 during the Class Period; an award of attorneys' fees pursuant to California Labor Code § 1194; 

25 and California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5; interest; and an award of costs. 

26 NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
Failure to Indemnify Employees for Necessary Expenditures Incurred In Charge of Duties 

27 (Cal. Labor Code §§ 221, 450, 1198, 2802, 1194.5; IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 9) 
(By Plaintiff Against Each Defendant) 

28 
18 
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I as alleged herein, are violations of California law and constitute unlawful business acts and 

2 practices in violation of California Business and Professions Code SS 17200, ctscq. Defendants 

3 have engaged and continues to engage in unfair and unlawful business practices in California by 

4 practicing, employing, and utilizing the employment practices outlined above, including failing to 

S pay reporting time pay, and failing to provide meal and rest breaks in violation of the applicable 

6 IWC Wage Order and California Labor Code. 

7 78. Defendants' violations of California wage andhour laws constitute a business 

8 practice because Defendants' aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly over a 

9 significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to the detriment of Plaintiff and Class 

10 members. 

11 79. Defendants have avoided payment of wages, overtime wages, meal and rest break 

12 premium payments, and other benefits as required by the California Labor Code, the California 

13 Code of Regulations, and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001. Furthermore, Defendants have tailed to 

14 record, report, and pay the correct sums of assessment to the state authorities Under the California 

15 Labor Code and other applicable regulations. 

16 80. Defendants' unfair and unlawful business practices, as alleged in this Complaint, 

17 have allowed Defendant to reap in unfair and Illegal profits during the Class Period at the expense 

18 of Plaintiff, Class members, and members of the public. Defendants should be made to disgorge 

19 their ill-gotten gains and restore diem to Plaintiff and Class members. Plaintiff seeks to enforce 

20 important rights affecting the public interest within the meaning of the California Code of Civil 

21 Proccdure § 1021.5 

22 81. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code SS 17200, et seq., Plaintiff 

23 and Class members are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained by Defendants 

24 dUring the Class Period; an award of attorneys' fees pursuant to California Labor Code § 1194; 

25 and California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5; interest; and an award of costs. 

2 NINTH  CAUSEOFACTION 6 Failure to Indemnify Employees for Necessary Expcnditnres Incurred In Charge of Duties 
27 (Cal. Labor Code §8 221, 450, 1198, 2802, 1194.5; LWC Wage Order N . . 1-2001, § 9) 

(By Plaintiff Against Each Defendant) 
28 
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82. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

2 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

3 83. California Labor Code § 2802(a) requires an employer to indemnify an employee 

4 for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by an employee in direct consequence of the 

5 discharge of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of the employer. 

6 California Labor Code § 221 makes it unlawful for employers to collect or receive from an 

7 . employee any part of wages paid. California Labor Code § 450 makes it unlawful for an employer 

8 to compel or coerce employees to purchase anything of value from the employer. 

• 9 i 84. Defendants have knowingly and willfully failed and continue to fail to indemnify 

10 Plaintiff for all business expenses and/or losses incurred in direct consequence of the discharge of 

11 Plaintiff's duties while working under the direction of Defendants, including but not limited to, by 

12 failing to reimburse employees for use of their personal mobile phone for work purposes. Plaintiff 

13 and other Class members were required to use their personal mobile phones for the purpose of 

14 communicating with management, and for the purpose of using GPS to help fmd their assigned 

15 work locations. Defendants have failed and continue to fail to reimburse Plaintiff for the time 

16 spent and the reasonable expenses incurred in utilising their personal mobile phones in violation 

17 of California Labor Code § 2802 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 9. 

18 85. By requiring Plaintiff to pay for work-related expenses without reimbursement, 

19 Defendants, pursuant to, its policy and practice, willfully violated and continue to violate California 

20 Labor Code §§ 221, 450, and 2802. 

21 86. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff* has 

22 been damaged in an amount according to, proof at trial, and seeks reimbursement of all necessary 

23 expenditures, coerced payments, and unlawful deductions, plus interest thereon pursuant to 

24 California Labor Code §§ 221, 450, and 2802(b). Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all available 

25 statutory penalties and award of costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees, including those 

26 j provided in California Labor Code § 2802(c), as well as other available remedies. Pursuant to 

27 California Labor Code § 1194.5, Plaintiff is also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive 

28 19 
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1 82. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges paragraphs set forth above as 

2 though set forth fully herein. Plaintiff alleges as follows on behalf of himself and all Class members. 

3 83. California Labor Code § 2802(a) requires an employer to indemnify an employee 

4 for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by an employee in direct consequence of the 

5 discharge of his or her duties, or of his or her obedience to the directions of the employer. 

6 California Labor Code § 221 makes it unlawfiul for employers to collect or receive from an 

7 . employee any part of wages paid. California Labor Code § 450 makes it unlawful for an employer 

8 to compel or coerce employees to purchase anything of value from the employer. 

9 84. Defendants have knowingly and willfully failed and continue to fail to indemnify 

10 Plaintiff for all business expenses and/or losses incurred in direct consequence of the discharge of 

11 Plaintiffs duties while working under the direction of Defendants, including but not limited to, by 

12 failing to reimburse employees for use of their personal mobile phone for work purposes. Plaintiff 

13 and other Class members were required to use their personal mobile phones for the purpose of 

14 communicating with management, and for the purpose'of using GPS to help find their assigned 

15 work locations. Defendants have failed and continue to fail to reimburse Plaintiff for the time 

16 spent and the reasonable expenses incurred in utilizing their personal mobile phones in violation 

17 of California Labor Code § 2802 and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001, § 9. 

18 85. By requiring Plaintiff to pay for work-related expenses without reimbursement, 

19 Defendants, pursuant in its policy and practice, 'willfully violated and continue to violate California 

20 Labor Code §5 221, 450, and 2802. 

21 86. As a proximate result of Defendants' unlawful actions and omissions, Plaintiff has 

22 been damaged  *in an amount according to proof at trial, and seeks reimbursement of all necessary 

23 expenditures, coerced payments, and unlawful deductions, plus interest thereon pursuant to 

24 California Labor Code §§ 221, 450, and 2802(b). Additionally, Plaintiff is entitled to all available 

25 statutory penalties and award of costs, expenses, and reasonable attdrneys' fees, including those 

26 provided in California Labor Code S 2802(c), as well as other available remedies. Pursuant to 

27 California Labor Code § 1194.5, Plaintiff is also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive 
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relief against further violations of the laws and wage orders alleged herein. 

2 VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

3 Wherefore, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all other members of the Class, and on 

4 behalf of aggrieved employees, pray for an award and judgment against Defendants jointly as 

5 follows: 

6 1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be ascertained at trial; 

7 2. For restitution of all monies due to Plaintiff and Class members, as well as 

8 disgorged profits from defendants' unfair and unlawful business practices; 

9 3. For punitive damages on applicable causes of action; 

10 4. For declaratory relief; 

11 5. For statutory and civil penalties according to proof, including but not limited to all 

12 penalties authorized by die California Labor Code § 226(e); 

13 6. For preliminary and.permanent injunctive relief enjoining Defendants from , 

14 violating the relevant provisions of the California Labor Code and IWC Wage Order No. 1-2001 

15 and from engaging in the unlawful business practices complained of herein; 

16 7. For an award of interest, including prejudgment interest, at the legal rate; 

17 8. For an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs on die applicable causes of 

18 action pursuant to California Labor Code §§ 1194 and 2802, California Civil Code 1021.5, and 

19 any other applicable provisions providing for attorneys' fees and costs; 

20 9. For costs of suit incurred; 

21 10. For an order appointing Plaintiff as class representative and Plaintiff's counsel as 

22 class counsel; and 

23 11. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and appropriate. 

24 

25 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

26 Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial in this matter on all matters triable to a jury. 

27 
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CM-OW 
INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET 

To Plaintiffs and Others Filing First Papers. If you are filing a first paper (for example, a complaint) in a civil case, you must 
complete and file, along with your first paper, the Civil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used b compile 
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed. You must complete Items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1, you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1, 
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you in completing the sheet examples of the cases that belong under each case type in Item 1 are provided below. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with your initial paper. Failure to Re a cover sheet with the first paper filed In a civil case may subject a party, 
its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 of the California Rules of Court. 

To Parties in Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A "collections case under rule 3.740 Is defined as an action for recovery of money 
owed in a sum stated to be certain that is not more than $25,000, exclusive of Interest and.attomey's fees, arising from a transaction in 
which property, services, or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seeking the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of 
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case will be subject to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment In rule 3.740. 
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om$'i. landlorStenonf, or 
ftradlwturel 

Unlawful Detalner 
Commercial (3i) 
Residential (32) 
(*Ig (38) (if the .c,e  bn'dvesel 

dnçs, check this Item; otherwise, 
sePat.as  Co,,nwsl orResWonhiai') 

Judicial flsvlsw. 
Asset Podelbio (05) 
Petitàn Re: Arbitration Award (11) 
Writ of Mandate (02) 

1t'Athi*dstrative Mandamus 
"tit-Mar4smus on United Court 

case Matter 
Writ-Other UMted Court Case 

Review 
Other Judicial Review (39) 

Review of Healm Officer Order 
NORM of Aooeal-Labor 

Provisionally Complex Civil UUg.tion (Cal. 
Rule. at Court Rules 3.400-3403) 

Antitrust/Trade Regi.dstlai (03) 
Construction Defod (10) 
Claims Involving Mess Tort (40) 
Seaulties Utigatlon (28) 
EnvlronmentMdbc Tort (30) 
insuranoe Coverage Claims 

(whig atom Prowslianal!Y  covpiox 
case tye listed above) (41) 

Enforcement cfJudgm.nt 
Enftrn'teàt of Judgment (20) 

Abstract of Judgment (Out of 
County) 

Confession of Judgment (non- 
dawiçs* re/ethia) 

Sister State Judgment 
Athnlñlsbttlié Agency Award 

(not taxes) 
PetllienlCcrdficatipn of Entry of 

Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 
Other Enfernent of Judgment 

Case 
Miscellaneous Civil Complaint 

RICO (27) 
Other CariipléInt (not odftod 

above) (42) 
Dedamtery.Reflef Only 
Injunctive Relief Only (non-

htsstiUnQ 
Mechanics Lien 
Other Convterdal Complaint 

Miscellaneous 

wodlied 

Abuse 
Eleon Contest 
Petitiont Name Change 
Petition for Relief From Late 

Claim 
Other Civil Petition 
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.1Seiii$00 31iPove.  

Auto (22)  0 A7100 Meter VOID* - Personal I nheoProperty Damage/Wrongfulaieth 1, 4, 11 

UnInsunx1 Motorist (46) 0 A7110 Personal Mho/Properly DarriageNitrongful Owen — Untrmured Mob:grist 1, 4, 11 
... . . 

El A6070 Asbestoi Property Damage 1, 11 
Asbestos  (04) 

0 A7221.  AstiesteeL Personal InjurylVVrongftel Death 1, 11 

Product Ltabeily (24) :a ASO Product UsWIlty (nut asbestos or loskJemrhomwertel) 1, 4, 11 

0 . A7210 Medical Malpractice a Physicians & Surgeons 1,4,11 
Medical Malpractice (45) 

0 A7240 Other Professbnal Health CaniMalirectice 1, 4, 11 

Other Personal 
.0 A7250 ROP114306.  klatiRty (e.g., sap and fall) 1, 4, 11 

Injury Property 0 A7230 Intantioncd 130dMtinitallProPertYallnarmrintifinealriati. 1, 4, 11 
Damage Wrongful _ assault, van:Warn, etc.) . 

Death (23) . 0 A7270 Intentional Iraklion of Emotional Distress 1, 4, 11 

0 A7220 Other Personal Mho/Property Darnege/Wrcegful Death 1,4,11 

to  

sn'frrITTI GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., El-  AL ''''19STCV13050  

  

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM AND 

STATEMENT OF LOCATION 

. (CERTIFICATE OF GROUNDS FOR ASSIGNMENT TO COURTHOUSE LOCATION) 

This form is required pursuant to Local Rule 2.3 In all new civil case filings In the Los Angeles Superior Court. 

Step 1: After completing the Civil Case Cover Sheet (Judicial Council form CM-010), find the exact case type in 
Column A that corresponds to the case type indicated in the Civil Case Cover Sheet. 

Step 2: In Column B, check the box for the type of action that best describes the nature of the case. 

Step 3: In Column C, circle the number which explains the reason for the court filing location you have 
chosen. 

Applicable Reasons for Choosing Court Filing Location (Column C) 

1. Class actions must be filed in the Stanley Mask Courthouse, Central District. 
2. Permissive filing In central district. 

3. Location where cause of action arose. 

4. Mandatory personal Injury filing In North District. 

5. Location where performance required or defendant resides. 

6. Location of property or permanently garaged vehicle.  

7. Location where petitioner resides. 

8. Location wherein defendant/respondent functions wholly. 

9. Location Mime one or more of the parties reside. 

10. Location of Labor Commissioner Office. 
11. Mandatory filing location (Hub Cases—unlawful detainer, limited 
non-collection, limited collection, or personal injury). 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2/16) CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 
LAW Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 1 of 4 
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Auto (22) 0 A7100 MOW Vehicle Personal lnfl,ope.tyownagemroiçhsDeath 1,4, It 

1MiIttndMota4st (46) 0 A71 to Personal kijw)4Ptcefly,  DAMsçsWmngfW Death —Uttored Motculst 1,4,11 

El MOlD Mbestoà Property Damage . 1,11 
Asbestos (014) 

o A7221 AeaS personal ir*znoWrotADeath 1.11 

EPmdWLIabft(24)   0 A70 Product  tiaI1Ity (t.athestaa or b4c/envlmrTnfll) 1,4,II 

o A72lO MedI LWndice i'tmektns & Surgeons L 4. 11 
Malpractice (45) 1,41 11 o A7240 Other Professional Health Care Malpractice 

.0 ) A7250 Prem4ase (e.g.,aPp and  Sl
Other Personal I 4 11 

Injury Property 0 A7230 Intentional Bodly!r'4wyfl'ropetyOanageiWrongfJ Death (ag., 
14 ,11 

Damage Vftngtul - 
flSS1k vWdSlwi, 

Death (23) .0 A7270 Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress li  4, If 

o A7220 Other Pr.nlh,Jwyfl'ropaty DesnegeANrwgfd Death 1,4, II 
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so 
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CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM AND 
STATEMENT OF LOCATION 

(CERTIFICATE OF GROUNDS FOR ASSIGNMENT TO COURTHOUSE LOCATION) 

This form Is required pursuant to Local Rule 2.3 In all new Civil case filings in the Los Angeles Superior Court. 

Step 1: After completing the Civil Case Cover Sheet (Judicial Council form CM-010), find the exact case type in 

Column A that corresponds to the case type indicated in the Civil Case Cover Sheet. 

Step 2: In Column B, check the box for the type of action that best describes the nature of the case. 

Step 3: in Column C, circle the number which explains the reason for the court filing location you have 
chosen. 

Applicable Reasons for Choosing Court Filing Location (Column C) 

Class actions must be filed In the Stanley Mask Courthouse, Central DiattiCt 

Pennissr,,e filing in central district. 

Location where cause of action arase. 

Mandatary personal injury filing In North Olstt& 

Location where pertbtmanoe required or defendant resides. 

S. Location of property or permanently garaged vehicle.  

Location where petitioner resides. 

Location wherein defendant/respondent functions wholly, 

Location where one or more of the patios reside. 

Location of Labor Commissioner Office.  
Mandatory filing location (Hub cases - unlawful detalner, limited 

non-collection, limited collection, or personal injury). 
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SHORT TITLE 
GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE NUMBER 

CM Cape CoverSheet 
detagotyNo. 

Type or Action 
(Check oily one) 

C APpilrible 
Reasons= See Step 3' 

Above 

Business Tort (07) 0 A6029 Other Commerciale3usinetrd Tort (rot fraud/breach of contract) 1, 2, 3 

I72  Civi Rights (08) 0 M005 CM Rights/Discrimination 1, 2, 3 

3,1 Defamation (13) 0 A8010 Defamaton (slanderNbel) 1, 2, 3 
'9 5 

7_ Freud (18) 0 A8013 Fraud (no contract) 1, 2, 3 

3 
I i 

t 
Professional Negligence (25) 

0 A6017 Legal Malpractice 

0 A8050 Other Professional Malpractice (not medi or cal legal) 

1, 2, 3 

1,2,3 

2 
Other (35) 0 A8025 Other Non-Personid Injury/Property Damage  tort 1, 2, 3 

Wrongful Termination (36) 0 A8037 Wrongful Termination 1. 2, 3 • 

1 

Other Employment (15) 
Q A6024 -Other Employment Complaint Case 

.0 M109 'Lebec Cornintisioner Appeals 

1, 2, 3 

10 

Breach olContrect/ VVerranty 
(06) 

(not Insurance) 

0 A6004 Breach of Rental/LeaseContract (not unlawful detainer or wrongful 
evIceon) 

0 A6066 ContractiWarrenly Breech -Seller Plaintiff (no fraudhurgagence) 

0 A6019 Negligent Breach of ContracteNairanty (no fraud) 

0 A6028 Other Breach of ContractiWarrenty (not fraud or negligence) 

2,5 

2, 5 

1, 2. 5 

1, 2, 5 

Collectlocts (09) 
0 A6002 Collections Casa:Seller Plaintiff 

0 A6012 Other Promissory Note/CdiectIons Case 

0 A6034 Collections Case-eurdased Dahl (Charged Off Con StMer Debt 
Purchased on or after January 1, 2014) 

5, 6, 11 

5, 11 

5, 6, 11 

Insurance Coverage (18) 0 Aso-I 5 Insurance.  CoVeragn (not carioax) 1, 2,5,8 

OthetCardract (37) 

0 A6009 Contractualfraud 

0 A8031 Tortioustnterference 

0 A6027 Otherecintractbispute(not breachAnsuranceffraud/negligence) 

1, 2, 3, 5 

1, 2, 3, 5 

1, 2.3, 8, 9 

-Defeat DatiatkVIriverea • .0 A7300 Emlnent.DeniiiniConcleareation Numbei of Faucets 2, 6 Conderthietiort (44) 

1 

. . 
Wrongiul Eviction (33) 0 A6023. Wroinfie EVIceon Case 2, 6 

I
0 

Other Real Property (26) 

A6618 Mortgage Foredosuit 

0 A0032 Oulet Title 

O Asoqo Other RealProperly (not othincnt domain, tinclicird/tenant, foradosure) 
.. . . 

2,6 

2,6 

'2,8 

ii c 
"read  DarePccinisidal 

(31)  . . 
0 Moil Unfair/ha Detelnentorairterclii (not drugs or %ironed evicton) .8,11 

1 o0- Unlawful Detainer-Reitidenflal 
(32) . A8020 UntawfulDelainer-Realdentral (not drugs or wrongful eviction) 6, 11 

I 
Unlawful Detainer- 

Pest-ForeCloeure (14i 
0 .A0020FUreawful Detainer-Post-Foreclosure 2, 8, 11 

Unlawful Detalner-Drws (38) I 0 A8022 Unlawful Detainer-On/6s 
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A.: C Applicable 
CM CAse Cover Sheet - Type olActon Reasons m See Step 3 

Catego.yNo. (Check only ore) 
, 

Above 

Business Tort (07) 0 M029 Other cwimerciakThMness Tort (riot fraudlbroath of contmct) 1,2.3 

Civil Rights (08) 0 .48005 CM RlghtsitlscThllnatfr3ri 1, 2.3 

Defamation (13) 0 A8010 Defamation (slandermbel) 1,2,3 

Fraud (16) 0 A8013 Fraud (no contract) 1,2,3 

§3: o A6017 Legal Malpractice 1,2,3 
PtufosslonalNegUgenoe(25) 

IL 0 A8050 OtherPmsbwl Malpractice (not medIlorlega l) 11,2,3 

Other (35) 0 *5025 Other Non-Peaonil Ir4uryIPropecly Danlaoe tort 
j 

I, Z 3 

Wrongful Ternilnation (36) 0 .46037 Wrongful Termination 1. 2, 3 

Q *5024 -Other Empcna1  Comp Int Case 1. 2,3 
Other Employment (15) 

• .0 *5109 liborConimlzsionerAppoels 10 

o *6004 Breath of Rental/Lease Contract (not unlawful detalnororwrorftjt 
2,5 eviction) 

Breach of Contract/ Warranty 2,5 
(06) o Aaobe Contzncvwarranty Breech -Soler Plaintiff (no fraud/negflgence) 

(not insurance) 0 *6019 Negligent Breath of Contract/Warranty (no fraud) 1. 2. 5 

0 A6028 Other Breath of ConfracbWarmnty (not fraud or negligence) 1,2.5 

0 *6002 COIIeCdOcTS Case-Seller Plaintiff 5.6. 11 

J 
Coflectlons (09) 

0 *5012 Other Promissory NotaJColiedns Case S. 11 

0 *5034 coliectloin Case-Purchased Debt (Charged Off Constaner Debt j5.6 . 11 
Pwdierd en swjamsery_1.2014)  _or 

ftinnee Conage (18) 0 M01 5 InSUMMEto'Mte (not ca'nØe) 1,2,5,8 

0 *6009 CoitmotuMFmud 1,2.3,6 

Other,Contmd (37) 0 *8031 Torllous Interference 1.2,3,5 

o *5027 Other Contract blzpute(not b.eathAnsurarcSTiaud/neglerce) 1,2,3,8,9 

Eminent Domafl&iveme 
Cond emnation (14) •Q *7300 Eminent DcmIliQondenñdon Numbet of parfs 

. 
2,6 

J WrongfulEvldlon(33) Li A8023. Wrongful Eviction Case 2.6 I 
0 *6618 Mortgage Foreclosure 2,6 

Othar Real Property(26) 0 *6032 QuletTitie 2.6 

Cl Mo OthérReal Piopeny (rwlosnlnontdanain, landlozdutsnant,f&udosura) 2,6 

UniewM DOStW-Ccmmerdaf a *5021 UnISM Dsalner-ComrnerdS (not dnigs or .âvs'9ftd eviction) .6. 11 
C 

j 
a 

unlawful DeWner-ReSdenflal 
(32) . 

0-  *8020 UnfawfulDethiAer-ReSdentfal (not drugs or wrongful Salon) 
. 

61 11 

j
Unlawful DeWner' -M020FUnlawful De(alner-Post'Foqedosuru 2, 6, II 

( Untaw*d Detalmsc-C.ugs (38)_(a M0fl Unlawful Detalner-Oncs j2611 
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CASE MASER &IOW TITLE: 
• GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

Securities Litigation (28) O A803$ Securities Litigation Case 1, 2, 8 

Task Tort 
Environmental (30) O A6036 Toac Tort/Environmental 1, 2, 3, 8 

Insurance Coverage Claims 
from Complex Case (41).  

O M014 Insurance Coverega/Subrogation (complex case only) 1,2,.5,8 

LACR/109 (Rev 2/16) 

LASC Approved 03-04 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM 
AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION 

Local Rule 2.3 

Page 3 of 4 

• CNII eine Cover Sheet 
citte907 No. • . . • - . 

Type of Action 
(Check any one) 

' '' 'CAPPEkinia ' 
ReaSons ‘ See Step3 

Above 

Asset Forfeiture (05) 0 A8108 Asset Forielture Case 2, 3, 8 

Petition re Arbitration (11) 0 A.8115 Petition to ComPel/ContinnNacats Arbitration 2, 5 

Writ of Mandate (02) 

0 M151 Writ- AdmiNstrative Mandamus 

0 A6152 Writ- Mandamus on Limited Court Case Mater 

0 A6153 Writ- Other Limited Court Case Review 

2,8 

2 

2 

Other Judicial Review (39) 0 A6150 Other Writ /JudicbtlReview 2, 8 

Ando-inn/Trade Regulation (03) b A6003 Andtrust/Trade Regulation 1, 2, 8 

CcInstruction Defect (10) 0 M007 Construction Defect 1, 2, 3 

Claims Involving Mass tort 0 A6006 Claims Involving Mass Tort (40) 1, 2, 8 

Enforcement 
of Judgment (20) 

b A8141 Sisfer State Judgment 

-0 M160 Abstract of Judgment 

-0 A8167 Confession of Judgment (non-domestic rotations) 

0 A6140 AdmIntabative Agent),  Award (not unpaid taxes) 

0 A6114 Petitionlearyficatelor Entry of Judgment on Unpaid Tax 

0 A6112 other Enforcement ofJudgment Case 

2, 5, 11 

2, 6 

2, 9 

2, 8 

2, 8 

2, 8, 9 

RICO (27) ❑ A6033 RaduXeisting (RICO) Case 1, 2, 8 

fl 
0 A6030 Declaratory Relief Only 1, 2, 8 

Other Complaints "El A8040 AnItirctive-Reiief Only (ifistdornestir/harassment) 2,8 
•(Not SpeclfledAbeve) (42) p A6011 Other Cbrnmerckil Complaint Cate (non-torthion-complax) 1, 2, 8 

0 A6000 other ComPlaint(noretortinon-complex) 1, 2, 8 

Partnifinifilp Corporistito ' ' • ' • • 
Governance (21) .0 A6113- ParlifiershIp.and Corporate Governs/ye Case 2, 8 

0 A6121 avl Harassment 2, 3, 9 

0 M123 Wcirkplace Harassment 2, 3, 9 

Other Petitions (Not 
Specified Above) (43) 

0 A6124 -Elder/Dependent Ark& Abuse Case 

o Aq190 Election Content 

2, 3, 9 

2 
❑ A6110 Petition for Changeof Name/Change of Gender 2, 7 
0 M170 Petition for Relief from Late Clain LZAk 2. 3, 8 
'0 M100 Other CN0 Petition 2, 9 

cc 
cc 
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I 
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I 

I,  I I 
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fl 
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6H0+tT TI1t 
CUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE MJMSER 

fl.V'A.......... :'  - . •B•• 
CMiCsóCoerSbeet TypeàfAcoon . Reasons'  Sao Stop 3 

CkoOorj No. (Checi( o4' one) Above 

Asset Foqfeiture (05) 0 1410$ Asset Foristura Case 2, 3, 6 

Petition re Arbitration It 1) 0 A8115 Petition to Cornpe1fConrwmNacateAct,4treffon 2.5 

C 14151 Writ. Administrative Mandamus 2,8 

Writ of Mandate (02) 0 14152 WrIt- Mandamus on Umitod Court Case Mater 2 

0 A6153 Writ- Other Limited Cowl Case Review 2 

Other jUdid& Review (39) 0 ACISO Other Writ /jtxlkti Review 2,8 

Andtnmtfrrade Regutetfrx'r (03) 0 14003 Astthat/TrSe Regulation 1,2,8 

CtsfrudIen Defect (10) 0 14007 Co,bifltonDefed 1. 2,3 

Claims Involving Mass Ton 13 14006 Claims irnvMng Mass Tort I, 2,8 

Securities Litigation (28) 0 A8035 Seanitles Litigation Case 1,2,8 

Toxic Tail 
0 14036 TocTorUEiwkonmentaI 1,2,3,8 Environmental (30) 

Insurance Coverage Claims 
from Complex case (41) 0 14014 Insurance conragefSubmgaton(oncnpiex case only) i 2.5,8 

o 14141 SSar State Judgment 2, 5, II 

.0 14160 AbebactofJudgment  2,6 

Enrorcarnont •Q 14107 Confession of Judgment (non4omes*1crelations) 
of Judgment (20) 0 14140 MmInIbitive Agency Award (not unpaid taxes) 2.8 

o 14114 Petition0AGerVfioaWtrEnbyofJumenton Unpaid Tax 

1 2.9 

2,8 

o 14112 Other Ent— content ofJudgmntCase 2,8,9 

RICO (27) JO A3 Rfleteedng (RICO) Can . 11.2.8 

o A8030 Declaratory Relief Only 1,2,8 

Other Complaints fl 1404 InJUrcIve.ReEe! Only (rthtdonesticThasnsnorit) 2,8 
(Not Specified Above) (42) 0 14011 Other Commercial Complaint Cte (nontwthon-complex) 1.2,8 

- 
0 A6000 OthecGivtComInL(non4ortJnon-mpIex) 11,2.8 

14113 Pfle&ilp.end Corporate Governance Case 12,8 

o 14121 Civil Harassment 2, 3, 9 

o 14123 WdrkpiaoeHarassm&it 2,3,9 

Oth& petitions (Not 
o A6124 EIderDependmitMuftAbuse Case 2,3,9 

Specified Above) (43) 0 

10 

14190 Election Contest 
2 

Cl 14110 petition for Change otName/Change of Gender 2,7 
0 14170 Petition for Rand from iteC1an La' 

2.3.8 
14100 OthcrCM•PetItion  2.9 
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OF ATE0 

SHORT TRLE: 
GUZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

CASE NUMBER 

  

Step 4: Statement of Reason and Address: Check the appropriate boxes for the numbers shown under Column C for the 
type of action that you have selected. Enter the address which Is the basis for the filing location, including zip code. 
(No address required for class action cases). 

ACORES!: 

REASON: 

1.02.91 3.714.05.06.27. 8.11 9.010.011. 

CITY: STATE ZIP COOS: 

Step 5: Certification of Assignment: I certify that this case Is properly filed in the  Central District of 
the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles [Code Civ. Proc, §392 et se d Local Rule 2.3(a)(1)(E)j. 

Dated: 04/15/2019 

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY 
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE: 

1. Original Complaint or Petition. 

2. If filing a Complaint, a completed Summons form for issuance by the Clerk. 

3. Civil Case Cover Sheet, Judicial. Council form CM-010. 

4. Civil Case Cover Sheet Addendum and Statement of Location form, LACIV 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev. 
02/16): 

5. Payment in full of the filing fee, unless there Is court order for waiver, partial or scheduled payments. 

6. A signed order appointing the Guardian ad Litem, Judicial Council form C1V-010, if the plaintiff or petitionerIs a 
minor under 18 years Of age will be required by Court In order to Issue a summons. 

7. Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Copies of the cover sheet and this addendum 
must be served along with the summons and complaint; or other initiating pleading in the case. 

LACIV 109 (Rev 2116) CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 
LASC Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 4 of 4 
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CSNlEER 
Gl.JZMAN-LOPEZ v. THE AMERICAN BOTTLING CO., ET AL 

Step 4: Statement of Reason and Address: Check the appropriate boxes for the numbers shown under Column C for the 
type of action that you have selected. Enter the address which Is the basis for the filing location, including zip code. 
(No address required for class action cases). 

REASON: 

1.02i.3.fl4.M5.06.917. 8.fl 9.010.011. 

STATe I ZIP coce 

Step 5: CertIfication of Assignment: I certify that this case Is properly filed In the Central District of 
the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles [Code Civ. Proc.. §392 et si Local Rule 2.3(a)(1)(E)j. 

'a  

Dated: 04/15/2019 

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY 
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE: 

Original Complaint or PeUUon 

If filing a Complaint, a completed Summons form for issuance by the Clerk. 

Civil Case Cover Sheet. Judicial Council form CM.010. 

Civil Case Cover Sheet Addendum and Statement of Location form, LAdy 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev. 
02/16): 

Payment in full of the filing fee, unless there Is court order foe waiver, partial or scheduled payments, 

A signed otter appointing the Guardian ad Litem1  Judicial Council form CR/-GiG, if the plaintiff or petitioner Is a 
minor under 18 years Of age WIll be reuIrèd by Court In order to Issue a summons. 

Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Copies of the cover sheet and this addendum 
must be served along with the summons and complaint; or other initiating pleading in the case. 
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Reserved for Clerk's Ale Stamp 
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
'COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

Spring Street Courthouse 

312 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT 

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 

FILED 
Supericr Court of Worth; 

County of Los Angeles 

04116/2019 
sberrift Catr,Enruftve015:ar Clerk olCourt 

BY Steve Drew Deputy 

CASE NUMBER: 

Your case is assigned for all purposes to the judicial officer indicated below. 19STCV13050 

THIS FORM IS TO BE SERVED WITH THE SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT 

ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM • ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM 

ere  Maren Nelson 17 

Given to the PlaintifUCross-Complainant/Attomey of Record Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer / Clerk of Court 

By  Steve Drew , Deputy Clerk on 04/16/2019 

 

   

(Date) 

LACIV 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT — UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 
LASC Approved 05/06 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

pring Street Courthouse 

12 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT 

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 

FILED 

St a
ft  CaM of CaVarda 
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Given zo the PLaintifflCross-Complainant/AttomeyofRecord .Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer/Clerk of Court 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR HANDLING UNLIMITED CIVIL CASES 

..The following critical provisions of the California Rules of Court, Title 3, Division 7, as applicable in the Superior Court, are summarized 
for your assistance. 

APPLICATION  
The Division 7 Rules were effective January I, 2007. They apply to all general civil cases. 

PRIORITY OVER OTHER RULES 
The Division 7 Rules shall have priority over all other Local Rules to the extent the others are inconsistent. 

CHALLENGE TO ASSIGNED JUDGE 
A challenge under Code of Civil Procedure Section 170.6 must be made within 15 days after notice of assignment for all purposes 
to a judge, or if a party has not yet appeared, within 15 days of the first appearance. 

'TIME STANDARDS  
Cases assigned to the Independent Calendaring Courts will be subject to processing under the following time standards: 

COMPLAINTS  
All complaints shall be served within 60 days of filing and proof of service, shall be filed within 90 days. 

CROSS-COMPLAINTS  
Without leave of court first being obtained, no cross-complaint may be filed by any party after their answer is filed. Cross- 
complaints shall be served within 30 days of the filing date and a proof of service filed within 60 days of the filing date. 

STATUS CONFERENCE 
A status conference will be scheduled by the assigned Independent Calendar Judge no later than 270 days after the filing of the 
complaint. Counsel must be fully prepared to discuss the following issues: alternative dispute resolution, bifurcation, settlement, 
trial date, and expert witnesses. 

FINAL STATUS CONFERENCE 
The Court will require the parties to attend a final status conference not more than 10 days before the scheduled trial date. MI 
parties shall have motions in limine, bifurcation motions, statements of major evidentiary issues, diapositive motions, requested 
form jury instructions, special jury instructions, and special jury verdicts timely filed and served prior to the conference. These 
matters may be heard and resolved at this conference. At least five days before this conference, counsel must also have exchanged 
lists of exhibits and witnesses, and have submitted to the court a brief statement of the case to be read to the jury panel as required 
by Chapter Three of the Los Angeles Superior Court Rule& 

SANCTIONS  
The court will impose appropriate sanctions for the failure or refusal to comply with Chapter Three Rules, orders made by the 
Court, and time standards or deadlines established by the Court or by the Chapter Three Rules. Such sanctions may be on a party, 
or if appropriate, on counsel for a party. 

This is not a complete delineation of the Division 7 or Chapter Three Rules, and adherence only to the above provisions is 
therefore not a guarantee against the imposition of sanctions under Trial Court Delay Reduction. Careful reading and 
compliance with the actual Chapter Rules is imperative. 

Class Actions 
Pursuant to Local Rule 2.3, all class actions shall be filed at the Stanley Mosk Courthouse and are randomly assigned to a complex 
judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be a class action it will be returned to an Independent 
Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

*Provisionally Complex Cases 
Cases filed as provisionally complex are initially assigned to the Supervising Judge of complex litigation for determination of 
complex status. If the case is deemed to be complex within the meaning of California Rules of Court 3.400 et seq., it will be 
randomly assigned to a complex judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be complex, it will be 
returned to an Independent Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 
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Superior Court of California 
County of Los Angeles 

LACBA 
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Bar Association 
Lit'patron Section 

Los Angeles County 
Bar,Association Labor and 
Employment Law Section 
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Defense Counsel 
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Business Trial Lawyers 
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• 

. . 
California Ereployment 
Lawyers Association 

VOLUNTARY EFFICIENT LITIGATION STIPULATIONS 
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/ 

 Attorneys 
Association of Loa Angeles 

LACIV 230 (NEW) 
LASC Approved 4-11 
For Optional Use 

The Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, Discovery 

Resolution Stipulation, and Motions in Limine Stipulation are 

voluntary stipulations entered into by the parties. The parties 

may enter into one, two, or all three of the stipulations; 

however, they may not alter the stipulations as written, 

because the Court wants to ensure uniformity of application. 

These stipulations are meant to encourage cooperation 

between the parties and to assist in resolving issues in a 

manner that promotes economic case resolution and judicial 

efficiency. 

The following organizations endorse the goal of 

promoting efficiency in litigation and ask that counsel 

consider using these stipulations as a voluntary way to 

promote communications and procedures among counsel 

and with the court to fairly resolve issues in their cases. 

*Los Angeles County Bar Association Litigation Section* 

• Los Angeles County Bar Association 

Labor and Employment Law Sections 

*Consumer Attorneys Association of Los Angeles* 

*Southern California Defense Counsel* 

*Association of Business Trial Lawyers* 

*California Employment Lawyers Associations 

I.  

Consumer Attorneys 
Association of Lea Angeles 

VOLUNTARY EFFICIENT LITIGATION STIPULATIONS 

The Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, Discovery 

Resolution Stipulation, and Motions in Limine Stipulation are 

voluntary stipulations entered into by the parties. The parties 

may enter into one, two, or all three of the stipulations; 

however, they may not alter the stipulations as written, 

because the Court wants to ensure uniformity of application. 

These stipulations are meant to encourage cooperation 

between the parties and to assist in resolving issues in a 

manner that promotes economic case resolution and judicial 

efficiency. 

The following organizations endorse the goal of 

promoting efficiency in litigation and ask that counsel 

consider using these stipulations as a voluntary way to 

promote communications and procedures among counsel 

and with the court to fairly resolve issues in their cases. 

a 
Superior Court of California 
County of Los Angeles 

Los Angeles County 
Bar Association 
Litlgatfon Section 

Los Angeles County 
Bar Association Labor and 
Employment Law Section 

*Los Angeles County Bar Association Litigation Section* 
Southern California 
Defense Counsel 

Association of 
Business Trial Lawyers 

• Los Angeles County Bar Association 

Labor and Employment Law Sections 

*Consumer Attorneys Association of Los AngeIes 

*Southern California Defense Counsel* 

•Association of Business Trial Lawyers 

California Emplàymcnt 
Lawyers Association 
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Nat AND ADDRESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: 

TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

STATE SOIMAO3ER R•semsel ., OW. Flo Sump 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
CASE NUMBER: 

This stipulation is intended to encourage cooperation among the parties at an early stage in 
the litigation and to assist the parties in efficient case resolution. 

The parties agree that: 

1. The parties commit to conduct an initial conference (in-person or via teleconference or via 
videoconference) within 15 days from the date this stipulation is signed, to discuss and consider 
whether there can be agreement on the following: 

a. Are motions to challenge the pleadings necessary? If the issue can be resolved by 
amendment as of right, or if the Court would allow leave to amend, could an amended 
complaint resolve most or all of the issues a demurrer might otherwise raise? If so, the parties 
agree to work through pleading issues so that a demurrer need only raise issues they cannot 
resolve. Is the issue that the defendant seeks to raise amenable to resolution on demurrer, or 
would some other type of motion be preferable? Could a voluntary targeted exchange of 
documents or information by any party cure an uncertainty in the pleadings? 

b. Initial mutual exchanges of documents at the "core" of the litigation. (For example, in an 
employment case, the employment records, personnel file and documents relating to the 
conduct in question could be considered "core." In a personal injury case, an incident or 
police report, medical records, and repair or maintenance records could be considered 
"core."); 

c. Exchange of names and contact information of witnesses; 

d. Any insurance agreement that may be available to satisfy part or all of a judgment, or to 
indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy a judgment; 

e. Exchange of any other information that might be helpful to facilitate understanding, handling, 
or resolution of the case in a manner that preserves objections or privileges by agreement; 

1. Controlling issues of law that, if resolved early, will promote efficiency and economy in other 
phases of the case. Also, when and how such Issues can be presented to the Court; 

g. Whether or when the case should be scheduled with a settlement officer, what discovery or 
court ruling on legal issues is reasonably required to make settlement discussions meaningful, 
and whether the parties wish to use a sitting judge or a private mediator or other options as 

LACIV 229 (Rev 02/15) 
LASC Approved 04/11 STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
For Optional Use Page 1 of 2 

NAPC ANDACORESS OF ArTORHEVOR PMWWITKOIJT AflO*CV: STATE OAR Nt&WER Rqnsd .q alit. ii. 

TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-ItIL ADDRESS (OoUonal): 

I SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES I 

STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

This stipulation is Intended to encourage cooperation among the parties at an early stage In 
the litigation and to assist the parties in efficient case resolution. 

The parties agree that: 

1. The parties commit to conduct an initial conference (in-person or via teleconference or via 
vldeoconference) within 15 days from the date this stipulation is signed, to discuss and consider 
whether there can be agreement on the following: 

Are motions to challenge the pleadings necessary? If the issue can be resolved by 
amendment as of right, or if the Court would allow leave to amend, could an amended 
complaint resolve most or all of the issues a demurrer might otherwise raise? if so, the parties 
agree to work through pleading issues so that a demurrer need only raise issues they cannot 
resolve. Is the issue that the defendant seeks to raise amenable to resolution on demurrer, or 
would some other type of motion be preferable? Could a voluntary targeted exchange of 
documents or information by any party cure an uncertainty in the pleadings? 

initial mutual exchanges of documents at the"core" of the litigation. (For example, in an 
employment case, the employment records, personnel file and documents relating to the 
conduct in question could be considered "core." In a personal injury case, an incident or 
police report, medical records, and repair or maintenance records could be considered 
.core."); 

Exchange of names and contact information of witnesses; 

Any insurance agreement that may be available to satisfy part or all of a judgment, or to 
Indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy a judgment; 

Exchange of any other information that might be helpful to facilitate understanding, handling, 
or resolution of the case in a manner that preserves objections or privileges by agreement; 

1. Controlling issues of law that, if resolved early, will promote efficiency and economy in other 
phases of the case. Also, when and how such Issues can be presented to the Court; 

g. Whether or when the case should be scheduled with a settlement officer, what discovery or 
court ruling on legal issues is reasonably required to make settlement discussions meaningful, 
and whether the parties wish to use a sitting judge or a private mediator or other options as 

LACIV 229 (Rev 02115) 
LAsC Approved 04/I1 STIPULATION — EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUMBER 

  

discussed in the "Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Package" served with the 
complaint; 

h. Computation of damages, including documents, not privileged or protected from disclosure, on 
which such computation is based; 

i. Whether the case is suitable for the Expedited Jury Trial procedures (see information at 
www.lacourt.orq  under "Civil" and then under "General Information"). 

2. The time for a defending party to respond to a complaint or cross-complaint will be extended 
to for the complaint, and for the cross- 

(INSERT DATE) (INSERT DATE) 

complaint, which is comprised of the 30 days to respond under Government Code § 68616(b), 
and the 30 days permitted by Code of Civil Procedure section 1054(a), good cause having 
been found by the Civil Supervising Judge due to the case management benefits provided by 
this Stipulation. A copy of the General Order can be found at www.lacouttoto  under "Civil', 
click on "General Information", then click on "Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations". 

3. The parties will prepare a joint report titled "Joint Status Report Pursuant to Initial Conference 
and Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, and if desired, a proposed order summarizing 
results of their meet and confer and advising the Court of any way it may assist the parties' 
efficient conduct or resolution of the case. The parties shall attach the Joint Status Report to 
the Case Management Conference statement, and file the documents when the CMC 
statement is due. 

4. References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

• (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR  
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discussed in the Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Information Package" served with the 
complaint; 

h. Computation of damages, including documents, not privileged or protected from disclosure, on 
which such computation is based; 

1. Whether the case is suitable for the Expedited Jury Trial procedures (see information at 
www.lacourt.org  under "Civil" and then under "General Information"). 

The time for a defending party to respond - to a complaint or cross-complaint will be extended 
to for the complaint, and 

______ for the cross- 
(INSERT DATE) (INSERT DATE) 

complaint, which is comprised of the 30 days to respond under Government Code § 68616(b), 
and the 30 days permitted by Code of Civil Procedure section 1054(a), good cause having 
been found by the Civil Supervising Judge due to the case management benefits provided by 
this Stipulation. A copy of the General Order can be found at www.lacourt.org  under "Civil' 
click on "General Information", then click on "Voluntary Efficient Litigation Stipulations". 

The parties will prepare a joint report titled "Joint Status Report Pursuant to Initial Conference 
and Early Organizational Meeting Stipulation, and if desired, a proposed order summarizing 

results of their meet and confer and advising the Court of any way it may assist the parties' 
efficient conduct or resolution of the case. The parties shall attach the Joint Status Report to 
the Case Management Conference statement, and file the documents when the CMC 
statement is due. 

References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 
Date: 

Date: 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) . (ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR  

Date: 

Date: 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR __ 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR_________________ 

LAcIv229 (Rev o2iI5) 
LAsc Approved 04/11 STIPULATION - EARLY ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING Page 2of2 

Case 2:19-cv-04358   Document 1-1   Filed 05/20/19   Page 81 of 107   Page ID #:108



WAKEN° ADORESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTE/EPLEY. 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO..(OptIonal): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

STATE BAR NUMBER Recuond for Oates Fla SU my 

• 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
CASE NUMBER 

This stipulation is intended to provide a fast and informal resolution of discovery issues 
through limited paperwork and an informal conference with the Court to aid in the 
resolution of the issues. 

The parties agree that: 

1. Prior to the discovery cut-off in this action, no discovery motion shall be filed or heard unless 
the moving party first makes a written request for an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant 
to the terms of this stipulation. 

2. At the Informal Discovery Conference the Court will consider the dispute presented by parties 
and determine whether it can be resolved informally. Nothing set forth herein will preclude a 
party from making a record at the conclusion of an Informal Discovery Conference, either 
orally or in writing. 

3. Following a reasonable and good faith attempt at an informal resolution of each issue to be 
presented; a party may request an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant to the following 
procedures: 

a. The party requesting the Informal Discovery Conference will: 

i. File a Request for Informal Discovery Conference with the clerk's office on the 
approved form (copy attached) and deliver a courtesy, conformed .copy to the 
assigned department; 

ii. Include a brief summary of the dispute and specify the relief requested; and 

iii. Serve the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed method of service 
that ensures that the opposing party receives the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference no later than the next court day following the filing. 

b. Any Answer to a Request for Informal Discovery Conference must: 

i. Also be filed on the approved form (copy attached); 

ii. Include a brief summary of why the requested relief should be denied; 
LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
Page 1 of 3 

MMAE MO ADOMS OFAflORHEYoR PARTYW1THOtJT ArTORNEY: STATE flNUMDtR I Reorad rot Oar, FM &arnt, 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Ootionafl: 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 

This stipulation is intended to provide a fast and informal resolution of discovery issues 
through limited paperwork and an informal conference with the Court to aid in the 
resolution of the issues. 

- 

The parties agree that: 

Prior to the discovery cut-off in this action, no discovery motion shall be filed or heard unless 
the moving party first makes a written request for an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant 
to the terms of this stipulation. 

At the Informal Discovery Conference the Court will consider the dispute presented by parties 
and determine whether it can be resolved informally. Nothing set forth herein will preclude a 
party from making a record at the conclusion of an Informal Discovery Conference, either 
orally or in writing. 

Following a reasonable and good faith attempt at an informal resolution of each issue to be 
presented; a party may request an Informal Discovery Conference pursuant to the following 
procedures: 

a. The party requesting the Informal Discovery Conference will: 

File a Request for Informal Discovery Conference with the clerk's office on the 
approved form (copy attached) and deliver a courtesy, conformed .copy to the 
assigned department; 

InbIude a brief summary of the dispute and specify the relief requested; and 

Serve the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed method of service 
that ensures that the opposing party receives the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference no later than the next court day following the filing. 

b. Any Answer to a Request for Informal Discovery Conference must: 

Also be filed on the approved form (copy attached); 

ii. Include a brief summary of why the requested relief should be denied; 

LAdy 036 (new) 
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUtcaat 

  

iii. Be filed within two (2) court days of receipt of the Request; and 

iv. Be served on the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed upon 
method of service that ensures that the opposing party receives the Answer no 
later than the next court day following the filing. 

c. No other pleadings, including but not limited to exhibits, declarations, or attachments, will 
be accepted. 

d. If the Court has not granted or denied the Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
within ten (10) days following the filing of the Request, then it shall be deemed to have 
been denied. If the Court acts on the Request, the parties will be notified whether the 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference has been granted or denied and, if granted, 

• the date and time of the Informal Discovery Conference, which must be within twenty (20) 
days of the filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference. 

e. If the conference is not held within twenty (20) days of the filing of the Request for 
Informal Discovery Conference, unless extended by agreement of the parties and the 
Court, then the Request for the Informal Discovery Conference shall be deemed to have 
been denied at that time. 

4. If (a) the Court has denied a conference or (b) one of the time deadlines above has expired 
without the Court having acted or (c) the Informal Discovery Conference is concluded without 
resolving the dispute, then a party may file a discovery motion to address unresolved issues. 

5. The parties hereby further agree that the time for making motion to compel or other 
discovery motion is tolled from the date of filing of the Request for Informal Discovery 
Conference until (a) the request is denied or deemed denied or (b) twenty (20) days after the 
filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference, whichever is earlier, unless extended 
by Order of the Court. 

It is the understanding and intent of the parties that this stipulation shall, for each discovery 
dispute to which it applies, constitute a writing memorializing a "specific later date to which 
the propounding [or demanding or requesting] party and the responding party have agreed In 
writing," within the meaning of Code Civil Procedure sections 2030.300(c), 2031.320(c), and 
2033.290(c). 

6. Nothing herein will preclude any party from applying ex parte for appropriate relief, including 
an order shortening time for a motion to be heard concerning discovery. 

7. Any party may terminate this stipulation by giving twenty-one (21) days notice of intent to 
terminate the stipulation. 

8. References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day. 

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 
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SHORT flhl& CASE AJ%GERZ 

Be filed within two (2) court days of receipt of the Request; and 

Be served on the opposing party pursuant to any authorized or agreed upon 
method of service that ensures that the opposing party receives the Answer no 
later than the next court day following the filing. 

No other pleadings, including but not limited to exhibits, declarations, or attachments, will 
be accepted. 

lithe Court has not granted or denied the Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
within ten (10) days following the filing of the Request, then it shall be deemed to have 
been denied. If the Court acts on the Request, the parties will be notified whether the 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference has been granted or denied and, if granted, 
the date and time of the Informal Discovery Conference, which must be within twenty (20) 
days of the filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference. 

If the conference is not held within twenty (20) days of the filing of the Request for 
Informal Discovery Conference, unless extended by agreement of the parties and the 
Court, then the Request for the Informal Discovery Conference shall be deemed to have 
been denied at that time. 

11(a) the Court has denied a conference or (b) one of thetime deadlines above has expired 
without the Court having acted or (c) the Informal Discovery Conference is concluded without 
resolving the dispute, then a party may file a discovery motion to address unresolved issues. 

The parties hereby further agree that the time for making .a motion' to compel or other 
discovery motion is tolled from the date of filing of the Request for Informal Discovery 

• Conference until (a) the request is denied or deemed denied or (b) twenty (20) days after the 

• filing of the Request for Informal Discovery Conference, whichever is earlier, unless extended 
by Order of the Court. 

It is the understanding and intent of the parties that this stipulation shall, for each discovery 
dispute to which it applies, constitute a writing memorializing a "specific later date to which 
the propounding for demanding or requesting party and the responding party have agreed In 
writing," within the meaning of Code Civil Procedure sections 2030.300(c), 2031.320(c), and 
2033.290(c). 

Nothing herein will preclude any party from applying exparte for appropriate relief, including 
an order shortening time for a motion to be heard concerning discovery. 

Any party may terminate this stipulation by giving twenty-one (21) days notice of intent to 
terminate the stipulation. 

References to "days" mean calendar days, unless otherwise noted. If the date for performing 
any act pursuant to this stipulation falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Court holiday, then the time 
for performing that act shall be extended to the next Court day. 
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For Optional Use Page 2 of 3 
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511ORT TIME: CASE NUMBER: 

  

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

➢ 
(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR 

4, 

• 

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION — DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
Page 3 of 3 

IORT1U1.Ei CASEM.PA&t 
- 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

'-S 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

> 
(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR  

4,  

LACIV 036 (new) 
LASC Approved O4/11 STIPULATION - DISCOVERY RESOLUTION 
For Optional Use Page 3 of 3 
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NAME MO ADDRESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY. 

• 
TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 

E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 
ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

STATE BAR NUMBER Rea for Clery TO StaP 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

• INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

CASE NUMBER. 

1. This document relates to: 

❑ Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
❑ Answer to Request for Inforthal Discovery Conference 

2. Deadline for Court to decide on Request: 
the Request). 

3. Deadline for Court to hold Informal Discovery Conference: 
days following filing of the Request). 

4. For a Request for Informal Discovery Conference briefly  describe the nature of the 
discovery dispute, including the facts and legal arguments at issue. For an Answer to 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly  describe why the Court should deny 
the requested discovery, Including the facts and legal arguments at issue. 

LACIV 094 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

(insert date 10 calendar days following filing of 

(insert date 20 calendar 

NAME MC ACORESS OF ATTORNEY OR PARTY WTOIOUT ATTORNEY. STATE OAR MOltER Re WOW. TA. Slap 

TELEPHONE No.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

1911 due 9 

I INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
(pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 

This document relates to: 

D Request for Informal Discovery Conference 
U Answer to Request for Informal Discovery Conference 

Deadline for Court to decide on Request: (Insert date 10 calendar days following filing ol 
the Request). 

Deadline for Court to hold Informal Discovery Conference: (insert date 20 calendar 
days following filing of the Request). 

For a Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly describe the nature of the 
discovery dispute, including the facts and legal arguments at issue. For an Answer to 
Request for Informal Discovery Conference, briefly describe why the Court should deny 
the requested discovery, including the facts and legal arguments at Issue. 

LAdy U94 (new) INFORMAL DISCOVERY CONFERENCE 
LAsc Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use (pursuant to the Discovery Resolution Stipulation of the parties) 
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NAME MO ADDRESS Of ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY: 

TELEPHONE NO.: FAX NO. (Optional): 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Optional): 

STATE GAR NUMBER Roared kw Poles Fie ShatP 

ATTORNEY FOR (Name): 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

PLAINTIFF: 

DEFENDANT: 

STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE 
CASE NUMBER: 

This stipulation is intended to provide fast and informal resolution of evidentiary 
issues through diligent efforts to define and discuss such issues and limit paperwork. 

The parties agree that:' 

1. At least days before the final status conference, each party will provide all other 
parties with a list containing a one paragraph explanation of each proposed motion in 
limine. Each one paragraph explanation must identify the substance of a single proposed 
motion in limine and the grounds for the proposed motion. 

2. The parties thereafter will meet and confer, either in person or via teleconference or 
videoconference, concerning all proposed motions in limine. In that meet and confer, the 
parties will determine: 

a. Whether the parties can stipulate to any of the proposed motions. If ,the parties so 
stipulate, they may file a stipulation and proposed order with the Court. 

b. Whether any of the proposed motions can be briefed and submitted by means of a 
short joint statement of issues. For each motion which can be addressed by a short 
joint statement of issues, a short joint statement of issues must be filed with the Court 
10 days prior to the final status conference. Each side's portion of the short joint 
statement of issues may not exceed three pages. The parties will meet and confer to 
agree on a date and manner for exchanging the parties' respective portions of the 
short joint statement of issues and the process for filing the short joint statement of 
issues. 

3. All proposed motions in limine that are not either the subject of a stipulation or briefed via 
a short joint statement of issues will be briefed and filed in accordance with the California 
Rules of Court and the Los Angeles Superior Court Rules. 

LACIV 075 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 
For Optional Use 

STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE 
Page 1 of 2 

M*S45 Ma ADDRESS OCATTORkZY OR PARWYflfl4OUT ATTOR2€Y STATE GAR WJIIOER Ros..d I.raat, fl, Sls.,p 

TELEPHONE NO.: 
E-MAIL ADDRESS (Ocionan: 

FAX NO. (Optional): 

[€i] iRIfL'fl 

STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LIMINE 

This stipulation is Intended to provide fast and informal resolution of evidentiary 
issues through diligent efforts to define and discuss such issues and limit paperwork. 

The parties agree that:' 

At least days before the final status conference, each party will provide all other 
parties with a list containing a one paragraph explanation of each proposed motion in 
limine. Each one paragraph explanation must identify the substance of a single proposed 
motion in limine and the grounds for the proposed motion. 

2. The parties thereafter will meet and confer, either in person or via teleconference or 
videoconference, concerning all proposed motions in limine. In that meet and confer, the 
parties will determine: 

Whether the parties can stipulate to any of the proposed motions. If ,the parties so 
stipulate, they may file a stipulation and proposed order with the Court. 

Whether any of the proposed motions can be briefed and submitted by means of a 
short joint statement of issues. For each motion which can be addressed by a short 
joint statement of issues, a short joint statement of issues must be filed with the Court 
10 days prior to the final status conference. Each side's portion of the short joint 
statement of issues may not exceed three pages. The parties will meet and confer to 
agree on a date and manner for exchanging the parties' respective portions of the 
short joint statement of issues and the process for filing the short joint statement of 
issues. 

3. All proposed motions in limine that are nat either the subject of a stipulation or briefed via 
a short joint statement of issues will be briefed and filed in accordance with the California 
Rules of Court and the Los Angeles Superior Court Rules. 

LASCApprvedb4f11 STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LlMlNE 
For Optional use 

- 
Page 1 of 2 
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SHORT TIRE: CASE NIJICIER 

  

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(ATTORNEY FOR 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) (ATTORNEY FOR 

THE COURT SO ORDERS. 

Date: 
JUDICIAL OFFICER 

LACIV 075 (new) 
LASC Approved 04/11 STIPULATION AND ORDER — MOTIONS IN LIMINE Page 2 of 2 

) 

fiRE: CASE 

The following parties stipulate: 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 
Date: 

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) 

(ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT) 

(ATTORNEY FOR-
_ 

(ATTORNEY FOR  

(ATTORNEY FOR 

THE COURT SO ORDERS. 

Date: 
JUDICIAL OFFICER 

'I 

LAdy 075 (new) STIPULATION AND ORDER - MOTIONS IN LIMINE LASC Approved 04/Il Page 2 of 2 
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Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR  

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR:  

1. Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 
settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

2. Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 
strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 
acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 
Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 

a 

w 
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's tees and witness tees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR 

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 

settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate thefl 

strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 

acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 

Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LAsc civ 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory use 
California Rules of court, rule 3.221 
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3. Arbitration: Arbitration is less formal than trial, but like trial, the parties present evidence and arguments to the 
'person who decides the outcome. In "binding" arbitration, the arbitrator's decision is final; there is no right to 
trial. In "nonbinding" arbitration; any party can request a trial after the arbitrator's decision. For more 
information about arbitration, 'visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm • 

4. Mandatory Settlement Conferences (MSC): MSCs are ordered by the Court and are often held close to the trial 
date. The parties and their attorneys meet with a judge orsettlement officer who does not make a decision but 

4 assists the parties in evaluating the strengths and weaknesses of the case and in negotiating a settlement. 
For information about the Court's MSC programs for civil cases, visit: www.lacourt.org/division/civil/settlement  

Los Angeles Superior Court ADR website: www.lacourtorg/division/civil/settlement 
For general information and videos about ADR, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm  

LASC2 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use • 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 
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Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages of ADR  

• Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR and litigation and trial. 

• No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

1. Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 
settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

2. Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 
strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 
acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 
Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 

Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles 

What is ADR? 

ADR helps people find solutions to their legal disputes without going to trial. The main types of ADR are negotiation, 

mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. When ADR is done by phone or computer, it may be called Online 

Dispute Resolution (ODR). These "alternatives" to litigation and trial are described below. 

Advantages of ADR 

• Saves Time: ADR is faster than going to trial. 

• Saves Money: Parties can save on court costs, attorney's fees and witness fees. 

• Keeps Control with the parties: Parties choose their ADR process and provider for voluntary ADR. 

• Reduces stress/protects privacy: ADR is done outside the courtroom, in private offices, by phone or online. 

Disadvantages ofADR 

Costs: If the parties do not resolve their dispute, they may have to pay for ADR hnd litigation and trial. 

No Public Trial: ADR does not provide a public trial or a decision by a judge or jury. 

Main Types of ADR: 

Negotiation: Parties often talk with each other in person, or by phone or online about resolving their case with a 

settlement agreement instead of a trial. If the parties have lawyers, they will negotiate for their clients. 

Mediation: In mediation, a neutral "mediator" listens to each person's concerns, helps them evaluate the 

strengths and weaknesses of their case, and works with them to try to create a settlement agreement that is 

acceptable to all. Mediators do not decide the outcome. Parties may go to trial if they decide not to settle. 

Mediation may be appropriate when the parties 

• want to work out a solution but need help from a neutral person. 

• have communication problems or strong emotions that interfere with resolution. 

Mediation may not be appropriate when the parties 

• want a public trial and want a judge or jury to decide the outcome. 

• lack equal bargaining power or have a history of physical/emotional abuse. 

LASC1 
LASC civ 271 NEW 03/19 

For Mandatory Use 

California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 
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3. Arbitration: Arbitration is less formal than trial, but like trial, the parties present evidence and arguments to the 
person who decides the outcome. In "binding" arbitration, the arbitrator's decision is final; there is no right to 
trial. In "nonbinding" arbitration, any party can request a trial after the arbitrator's decision. For more 
information about arbitration, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm   

4. Mandatory Settlement Conferences (MSC): MSCs are ordered by the Court and are often held close to the trial 
date. The parties and their attorneys meet with a judge or settlement officer who does not make a decision but 
assists the parties in evaluating the strengths and weaknesses of the case and in negotiating a settlement. 
For information about the Court's MSC programs for civil cases, visit: www.lacourt.org/division/civil/settlement  

Los Angeles Superior Court ADR website: www.lacourtorg/division/civil/settlement 
For general information and videos about ADR, visit http://www.courts.ca.gov/programs-adr.htm  

LASC 2 
LASC CIV 271 NEW 03/19 
For Mandatory Use 
California Rules of Court, rule 3.221 
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COPY 

CONFORMED COPY ORIGINAL FILED Superior Court of California County of Los Angeles 

MAY 15 2019 
Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer/Clerk of Court 

By: Isaac Lovo, Deputy 
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SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 
Daniel C. Whang (SBN 223451) 
dwhang@seyfarth.com  
Jennifer R. Nunez (SBN 291422) 
jnunez@seyfarth.com  
2029 Century Park East, Suite 3500 
Los Angeles, California 90067-3021 
Telephone: (310) 277-7200 
Facsimile: (310) 201-5219 

Attorneys for Defendants 
THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY and KEURIG 
DR PEPPER INC. 

JUAN M. GUZMAN-LOPEZ, individually, and 
on behalf of all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY, a 
corporation; KEURIG DR PEPPER, INC., a 
corporation; and DOES 1-20, inclusive, 

Defendants. 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

BY FAX 
Case No. 19STCV13050 

CLASS ACTION 

ANSWER BY DEFENDANTS THE 
AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY AND 
KEURIG DR PEPPER INC. TO 
PLAINTIFF'S UNVERIFIED CLASS 
ACTION COMPLAINT 

Date Action Filed: April 16, 2019 
Trial: None Set 

DEFENDANTS' ANSWER TO UNVERIFIED COMPLAINT 
56895792v.2 
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Defendants THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY ("TABC") and KEURIG DR PEPPER 

INC. ("KDP") (collectively, "Defendants") hereby answer the unverified Class Action Complaint filed 

by Plaintiff Juan M. Guzman-Lopez ("Plaintiff'), as set forth below: 

GENERAL DENIAL  

Pursuant to the provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure § 431.30, Defendants deny, 

generally and specifically, each and every allegation, statement, matter and each purported cause of 

action contained in Plaintiff's unverified Class Action Complaint, and without limiting the generality of 

the foregoing, deny that Plaintiff and the putative class members have been damaged in the manner or 

sums alleged, or in any way at all, by reason of any acts or omissions of Defendants. Defendants further 

deny, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff and the putative class members suffered any loss of 

wages, overtime, penalties, compensation, benefits or restitution, or any other legal or equitable relief 

within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

ADDITIONAL DEFENSES  

In further answer to the Class Action Complaint, Defendants allege the following additional 

defenses. In asserting these defenses, Defendants do not assume the burden of proof as to matters that, 

pursuant to law, are Plaintiff's burden to prove. 

FIRST DEFENSE  

(Failure to State a Cause of Action or Claim for Relief All Causes of Action) 

I . Neither the Class Action Complaint as a whole, nor any purported cause of action alleged 

therein, states facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action or claim for relief against Defendants. 

SECOND DEFENSE  

(No Employment Relationship — All Causes of Action) 

2. The Class Action Complaint and each purported cause of action fails as to KDP because 

no employment relationship ever existed between KDP and Plaintiff and/or the putative class members. 

THIRD DEFENSE  

(Statute of Limitations — All Causes of Action) 

3. The alleged claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the applicable statutes of 

limitations, including but not limited to, California Labor Code §§ 201, 202, 203, 221, 224, 226, 226.7, 
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510, 512, 1194, 1197, 1198, 2802; California Code of Civil Procedure §§ 312, 338(a), 340, 343, and 

California Business and Professions Code § 17200 et seq. 

FOURTH DEFENSE  

(Laches — All Causes of Action) 

4. The alleged claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of laches because 

Plaintiff unreasonably delayed in filing the Class Action Complaint. 

FIFTH DEFENSE  

(Waiver — All Causes of Action) 

5. The alleged claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of waiver. Plaintiff and 

the putative class members have waived their right to assert the purported claims contained in the Class 

Action Complaint and each purported cause of action therein against Defendants. Plaintiff and the 

putative class members, by their own conduct and actions, have waived the right, if any, to assert the 

claims in the Class Action Complaint. 

SIXTH DEFENSE 

(Estoppel — All Causes of Action) 

6. Because of Plaintiff's and/or the putative class members' own acts or omissions, Plaintiff 

and the putative class members are barred by the equitable doctrine of estoppel from maintaining this 

action or pursuing any cause of action alleged in the Class Action Complaint against Defendants. 

SEVENTH DEFENSE  

(No Equitable Tolling — All Causes of Action) 

7. To the extent that Plaintiff and the putative class members seek to pursue claims beyond 

the applicable statute of limitations, the alleged claims are not entitled to equitable tolling. 

EIGHTH DEFENSE 

(Reasonable, Good Faith Belief in Actions Taken — All Causes of Action) 

8. The Class Action Complaint, and each alleged cause of action, are barred by the fact that 

any decisions made by Defendants with respect to Plaintiff's and/or the putative class members' 

employment were reasonably based on the facts as Defendants understood them in good faith. To the 

extent a court holds that Plaintiff and the putative class members are entitled to damages or penalties, 
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which are specifically denied, Defendants acted, at all relevant times, on the basis of a good faith and 

reasonable belief that they had complied fully with California wage and hours laws. Consequently, any 

alleged unlawful conduct was not intentional, knowing or willful within the meaning of the California 

Labor Code. 

NINTH DEFENSE  

(Failure to Inform Employer of Alleged Violations — All Causes of Action) 

9. The Class Action Complaint, and each cause of action contained therein, is barred 

because Plaintiff and/or the putative class members did not inform Defendants of any alleged unlawful 

conduct, any alleged meal or rest period violations, any alleged failure to pay wages or premium wages, 

any alleged inaccuracies regarding their pay stubs, or any unreimbursed business expenses prior to filing 

a lawsuit. Thus, Plaintiff did not provide Defendants with an opportunity to correct any alleged 

violations and provide the appropriate remedy, if any, to Plaintiff prior to the filing of the lawsuit. 

TENTH DEFENSE  

(De Minimis Doctrine — All Causes of Action) 

10. The Class Action Complaint, and each cause of action alleged therein, fails to the extent 

that, even if Plaintiff and the putative class members were not paid for all work performed, such work is 

not compensable pursuant to the de minimis doctrine. Pursuant to the de minimis doctrine, an employer 

is not required to pay for insubstantial or insignificant periods of purported off-the-clock work. See, 

e.g., Rutti v. Lojack Corp., 596 F.3d 1046, 1057-1058 (9th Cir. 2010) (noting that courts have generally 

found that de minimis work of less than ten minutes per day is not compensable: "most courts 'have 

found daily periods of approximately ten minutes de 1111111171iS even though otherwise compensable'"); 

Lindow v. United States, 738 F.2d 1057, 1062, 1064 (9th Cir. 1984) ("It is only when an employee is 

required to give up a substantial measure of his time and effort that compensable working time is 

involved"; "most courts have found daily periods of 10 minutes de minimis even though otherwise 

compensable."); Gillings v. Time Warner Cable LLC, 583 Fed. Appx. 712, 714 (9th Cir. 

2014) (federal de minimis wage and hour doctrine applies under California law). 
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ELEVENTH DEFENSE  

(Good Faith Dispute and Waiting Time Penalties — Seventh and Eighth Causes of Action) 

11. Plaintiff is not entitled to any penalty because, at all times relevant and material herein, 

Defendants did not intentionally, knowingly or willfully fail to comply with any provisions of the 

California Labor Code or applicable wage orders, but rather acted in good faith and had reasonable 

grounds for believing that it did not violate the California Labor Code or the applicable wage order. 

TWELFTH DEFENSE  

(Lack of Standing — All Causes of Action) 

12. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

for lack of subject matter jurisdiction to the extent Plaintiff lacks standing to assert any of the causes of 

action contained in the Class Action Complaint because Plaintiff has not suffered any injury. 

THIRTEENTH DEFENSE  

(Accord and Satisfaction — All Causes of Action) 

13. The alleged claims are barred by the doctrine of accord and satisfaction. Specifically, 

Plaintiff and the putative class members were properly and fully compensated for all work performed, 

and their acceptance of these payments constituted an accord and satisfaction for all debts, if any, owed 

by Defendants to Plaintiff and/or the putative class members. 

FOURTEENTH DEFENSE  

(Release — All Causes of Action) 

14. To the extent Plaintiff and/or the putative class members have executed or are bound by a 

release encompassing claims alleged in the Class Action Complaint, their claims are barred by that 

release. 

FIFTEENTH DEFENSE 

(Offset — All Causes of Action) 

15. The Class Action Complaint, and each cause of action contained therein, fails to the 

extent that Defendants are entitled to an off-set for any overpayments of wages provided for work never 

actually performed, any damages incurred by Plaintiff or any putative class member's act or omissions 

or inadvertent overpayment for hours worked. 
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SIXTEENTH DEFENSE  

(Res Judicata and Collateral Estoppel — All Causes of Action) 

16. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

by the doctrines of res judicata and/or collateral estoppel. 

SEVENTEENTH DEFENSE  

(Consent/Ratification — All Causes of Action) 

17. Assuming arguendo that any of the alleged conduct of Defendants occurred (which 

Defendants expressly deny), such conduct was approved, consented to, ratified, or authorized by 

Plaintiff and putative class members through their actions, omissions, and course of conduct, among 

other things. 

EIGHTEENTH DEFENSE  

(Arbitration — All Causes of Action) 

18. To the extent Plaintiff and/or the putative class members have agreed to arbitrate claims 

alleged in the Class Action Complaint on an individual basis only, their claims are barred by their 

contractual agreement to arbitrate their individual claims only and may not participate in this lawsuit. 

NINETEENTH DEFENSE  

(Meal Period Waiver — Third and Eighth Causes of Action) 

19. To the extent Plaintiff and putative class members voluntarily waived the right to a meal 

period for shifts of more than five but less than six hours and/or shifts of more than 10 but less than 12 

hours, no violation of the California Labor Code or the IWC Wage Orders exists. 

TWENTIETH DEFENSE  

(Excessive Penalties — All Causes of Action) 

20. Plaintiff and/or the putative class members are not entitled to recover any penalties 

because, under the circumstances of this case, any such recovery would be unjust, arbitrary, and 

oppressive, or confiscatory or disproportionate to any damage or loss incurred as a result of Defendants' 

conduct and therefore unconstitutional under numerous provisions of the United States Constitution and 

the California Constitution, including the excessive fines clause of the Eighth Amendment, the due 

process clauses of the Fifth Amendment and Section 1 of the Fourteenth Amendment, the self- 
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incrimination clause of the Fifth Amendment, and other provisions of the United States Constitution, 

and the excessive fines clause of Section 17 of Article I, the due process clause of Section 7 of Article I, 

the self-incrimination clause of Section 15 of Article I, and other provisions of the California 

Constitution. 

TWENTY-FIRST DEFENSE  

(Duplicate Damages or Double Recovery — All Causes of Action) 

21. To the extent Plaintiff and/or the putative class members have received other benefits 

and/or awards attributable to an injury for which they seek compensation in this case, such benefits 

and/or awards should offset, in whole or in part, any award they receive here for the same injury. 

TWENTY-SECOND DEFENSE  

(Unavailable Remedies Under the UCL — Eighth Cause of Action) 

22. The Class Action Complaint fails to the extent that it seeks anything but restitution for 

alleged violations of the Labor Code that form the basis of the claims under the UCL. 

TWENTY-THIRD DEFENSE  

(Substantial Compliance — All Causes of Action) 

23. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

in whole or in part because Defendants complied with the statutory obligations, and to the extent it is 

determined that there was a technical non-compliance, Defendants substantially complied with the 

obligations and cannot be liable in whole or in part for the claims. 

TWENTY-FOURTH DEFENSE  

(Privilege/Legitimate Business Reasons — All Causes of Action) 

24. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

because Defendants had an honest, good faith belief that all decisions, if any, affecting Plaintiff and 

putative class members were made by Defendant solely for legitimate, business-related reasons that 

were neither arbitrary, capricious, nor unlawful and were reasonably based upon the facts as Defendants 

understood them. 
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1 TWENTY-FIFTH DEFENSE 

(Contribution by Plaintiff's Own Act — All Causes of Action) 

25. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

because any injuries and/or alleged damages were proximately caused by and/or contributed to by the 

acts, omissions, and/or failure to act by Plaintiff and putative class members. 

TWENTY-SIXTH DEFENSE  

(Labor Code § 2856 — All Causes of Action) 

26. Plaintiff's claims, and those of the members of the putative classes, are barred by Labor 

Code § 2856 to the extent that Plaintiff or putative class members failed substantially to comply with all 

the directions of Defendant, and such failure proximately caused the alleged losses for which they seek 

relief. 

TWENTY-SEVENTH DEFENSE  

13 (Failure to Use Ordinary Case - All Causes of Action) 

14 27. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

15 to the extent that Plaintiff and putative class members received good consideration in agreement to serve 

16 as an employee of Defendants, yet failed to use ordinary care and diligence during their employment, or 

17 employment-related duties, pursuant to California Labor Code sections 2850 and 2854. 

18 TWENTY-EIGHTH DEFENSE  

19 (Failure to Perform Services - All Causes of Action) 

20 28. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

21 to the extent that Plaintiff and putative class members failed to perform services in conformity to the 

22 usage of the place of performance and was not otherwise directed by the employer, and such 

23 performance was neither impracticable, nor manifestly injurious to Plaintiff, putative class members, 

24 and allegedly aggrieved employees, pursuant to California Labor Code Section 2857. 
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TWENTY-NINTH DEFENSE  

(Degree of Skill - All Causes of Action) 

29. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

to the extent that Plaintiff and putative class members failed to exercise a reasonable degree of skill in 

performing their job duties, pursuant to California Labor Code Section 2858. 

THIRTIETH DEFENSE  

(Failure to Use Skill Possessed - All Causes of Action) 

30. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred 

to the extent that Plaintiff and putative class members did not use such skill as they possessed, so far as 

the same is required, for the service specified for Defendants, as provided under California Labor Code 

Section 2859. 

THIRTY-FIRST DEFENSE  

(Not Appropriate for Class Action — All Causes of Action) 

31. The lawsuit cannot proceed on a class action basis because Plaintiff cannot allege facts 

sufficient to warrant certification or an award of class-wide damages, pursuant to California Code of 

Civil Procedure § 382 or Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The Class Action Complaint, 

and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is not proper for treatment as a class action because, 

among other reasons: (a) Plaintiff is an inadequate representative of the purported class; (b) Plaintiff 

cannot establish commonality of claims; (c) Plaintiff cannot establish typicality of claims; and (d) the 

individualized nature of Plaintiff's claims predominate and thus makes class treatment inappropriate. 

Also, the Class Action Complaint does not allege a viable theory for class-wide recovery to show that a 

class action trial is manageable. 

THIRTY-SECOND DEFENSE  

(No Knowledge of Reasonable and Necessary Business Expenses — 

Eighth and Ninth Causes of Action) 

32. The Class Action Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, fails to 

the extent that Plaintiff, and/or some or all of the purported class they seek to represent, did not inform 

Defendants of or seek indemnification for reasonably and necessarily incurred business expenses. An 
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employer cannot be held liable for failing to indemnify an employee's necessary expenses if it does not 

know or have reason to know that the employee has incurred the expense. 

THIRTY-THIRD DEFENSE  

(No Liquidated Damages — First and Second Causes of Action) 

33. Plaintiff and the putative class members are not entitled to liquidated damages because 

any acts or omissions giving rise to the alleged claims were undertaken or made in good faith, and the 

Defendants had reasonable grounds for believing that the actions or omissions did not violate the law. 

Thus, Defendants cannot be held to have willfully failed to comply with the requirements of the 

California Labor Code. 

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS  

Defendants do not presently know all of the facts and circumstances regarding the claims alleged 

in the Class Action Complaint. Defendants have not knowingly or intentionally waived any applicable 

defenses and reserves the right to assert and rely on such other applicable defenses as may later become 

available or apparent. Defendants further reserve the right to amend the answer or defenses accordingly 

and/or to delete defenses that it determines are not applicable during the course of discovery. 

PRAYER  

WHEREFORE, Defendants pray for judgment as follows: 

1. That Plaintiff and the putative class members take nothing by their Class Action 

Complaint; 

2. That judgment be entered in favor of Defendants and against Plaintiff on all causes of 

action; 

3. That Defendants be awarded reasonable attorneys' fees according to proof; 

4. That Defendants be awarded the costs of suit incurred herein; and 

5. That Defendants be awarded such other and further relief as the Court may deem 

appropriate. 
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DATED: May 15, 2019 Respectfully submitted, 

SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 

By: 
Dttn el C,1 Wh 
Jennifer R. Nun 

Attorneys for Defen ants 
THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY 
and KEURIG DR PEPPER INC. 
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PROOF OF SERVICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
) SS 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to the 
within action. My business address is 2029 Century Park East, Suite 3500, Los Angeles, California 
90067-3021. On May 15, 2019, I served the within document(s): 

ANSWER BY DEFENDANTS THE AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY AND KEURIG 
DR PEPPER INC. TO PLAINTIFF'S UNVERIFIED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

rn  by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid, 
LI in the United States mail at Los Angeles, California, addressed as set forth below. 

rn  by personally delivering the document(s) listed above to the person(s) at the address(es) set forth 
LI below. 

rm  by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope or package provided by an 
LE overnight delivery carrier with postage paid on account and deposited for collection with the 

overnight carrier at Los Angeles, California, addressed as set forth below. 

1--1  by transmitting the document(s) listed above, electronically, via the e-mail addresses set forth 
LI below. 

❑ electronically by using the Court's ECF/CM System. 

Vache A. Thomassian Counsel for Plaintiff 
Caspar Jivalagian Juan M Gu:man-Lopez 
KJT LAW GROUP LLP 
230 North Maryland Avenue, Suite 306 
Glendale, CA 91206 
Tel. 818.507.8525 
vache@kjtlawgroup.com  
caspar@kjtlawgroup.com  

Christopher A. Adams Counsel for Plaintiff' 
ADAMS EMPLOYMENT COUNSEL Juan M Guzman-Lopez 
4740 Calle Carga 
Camarillo, CA 93012 
Tel. 818.425.1437 
ca@AdamsEmploymentCounsel.com  

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing correspondence for 
mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with 
postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party 
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16

17
Counsel for Plaintiff 
Juan M. Guzman-Lopez

Vache A. Thomassian
Caspar Jivalagian
KJT LAW GROUP LLP
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ffrey Gimble 

served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is more than one day 
after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. 

Executed on May 15, 2019, at Los Angeles, California. 
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after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

1

2
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true

and correct.3
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After printing this label:
1. Use the 'Print' button on this page to print your label to your laser or inkjet printer.
2. Fold the printed page along the horizontal line.
3. Place label in shipping pouch and affix it to your shipment so that the barcode portion of the label can be read and scanned.

Warning: Use only the printed original label for shipping. Using a photocopy of this label for shipping purposes is fraudulent and could 
result in additional billing charges, along with the cancellation of your FedEx account number. 
Use of this system constitutes your agreement to the service conditions in the current FedEx Service Guide, available on 
fedex.com.FedEx will not be responsible for any claim in excess of $100 per package, whether the result of loss, damage, delay, non-
delivery,misdelivery,or misinformation, unless you declare a higher value, pay an additional charge, document your actual loss and file 
a timely claim.Limitations found in the current FedEx Service Guide apply. Your right to recover from FedEx for any loss, including 
intrinsic value of the package, loss of sales, income interest, profit, attorney's fees, costs, and other forms of damage whether direct, 
incidental,consequential, or special is limited to the greater of $100 or the authorized declared value. Recovery cannot exceed actual 
documented loss.Maximum for items of extraordinary value is $1,000, e.g. jewelry, precious metals, negotiable instruments and other 
items listed in our ServiceGuide. Written claims must be filed within strict time limits, see current FedEx Service Guide. 

Page 1 of 1https://www.fedex.com/shipping/html/en/PrintIFrame.html
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Keurig-Dr. Pepper, Distributor Facing Wage and Hour Suit in California

https://www.classaction.org/news/keurig-dr.-pepper-distributor-facing-wage-and-hour-suit-in-california
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